
  

This short form prospectus constitutes a public offering of these securities only in those jurisdictions where they may be lawfully offered for sale 
and therein only by persons permitted to sell such securities. These securities have not been and will not be registered under the United States 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “U.S. Securities Act”) or the securities laws of any state of the United States. Accordingly, these 
securities may not be offered or sold within the United States, except pursuant to transactions exempt from registration under the U.S. Securities 
Act and applicable state securities laws. This short form prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy any of 
these securities within the United States. See “Plan of Distribution”. 

No securities regulatory authority has expressed an opinion about these securities and it is an offence to claim otherwise. Information has been 
incorporated by reference in this short form prospectus from documents filed with securities commissions or similar authorities in Canada. 
Copies of the documents incorporated herein by reference may be obtained without charge upon request to Investor Relations, Morneau Shepell 
Inc. at 895 Don Mills Road, Suite 700, Tower One, Toronto, Ontario, M3C 1W3, and are also available electronically at www.sedar.com. 
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This short form prospectus (the “Prospectus”) qualifies the distribution (the “Offering”) of 7,910,000 subscription 
receipts (the “Subscription Receipts”) of Morneau Shepell Inc. (the “Company”) at a price of $26.55 per 
Subscription Receipt (the “Subscription Price”). The Offering is being made pursuant to an underwriting 
agreement dated July 13, 2018 (the “Underwriting Agreement”) made by the Company with TD Securities Inc. 
(“TDS”) and National Bank Financial Inc. (“NBF” and together with TDS, the “Co-Lead Underwriters”), CIBC 
World Markets Inc., Scotia Capital Inc., BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc., Canaccord Genuity Corp. and GMP Securities 
L.P. (collectively with the Co-Lead Underwriters, the “Underwriters”). The Subscription Price was determined by 
negotiation between the Company and the Co-Lead Underwriters, on behalf of the Underwriters. 

On July 9, 2018, the Company announced that its principal operating subsidiary, Morneau Shepell Ltd., had entered 
into an agreement of purchase and sale (the “Purchase Agreement”) to acquire all of the issued and outstanding 
shares of LifeWorks Corporation Ltd. (“LifeWorks”) (the “Acquisition”). LifeWorks currently provides employee 
assistance, wellness, recognition, and incentive programs in Canada, the United States, the United Kingdom and 
Australia. The Acquisition, which is subject to certain closing conditions and obtaining the conditional approval of 
the Toronto Stock Exchange (“TSX”) for the issuance of Common Shares to Jamie True and Jack Bekhor in 
connection with the Acquisition (which conditional approval has been obtained), is expected to close on or about 
July 27, 2018 (the “Acquisition Closing”). The Company intends to use the net proceeds of the Offering to fund a 
portion of the purchase price of the Acquisition and the Company’s expenses related to the Acquisition and the 
Offering. See “The Acquisition” and “Use of Proceeds”. 

Upon satisfaction of the Escrow Release Conditions (as defined below), each Subscription Receipt will entitle the 
holder thereof, without payment of any additional consideration or any further action on the part of the holder, to (a) 
receive one common share of the Company (a “Common Share”), subject to customary anti-dilution protection, and 
(b) an amount per Subscription Receipt equal to the amount per Common Share of cash dividends declared by the 
Company for which record dates have occurred during the period from and including the date of the Offering 
Closing (as defined herein) to, but excluding the date upon which the Common Shares are issued or deemed to be 
issued pursuant to the Subscription Receipt Agreement (as defined herein) (the “Dividend Equivalent Payment”), 
if any, less applicable withholding taxes, if any. It is currently expected that the closing of the Offering will occur on 
the Acquisition Closing. If the closing of the Acquisition occurs on the same date or prior to the date of the closing 
of the Offering, the Company will deliver Common Shares, instead of Subscription Receipts, to investors on closing 
of the Offering. 

If Subscription Receipts are issued, the gross proceeds from the sale of the Subscription Receipts, net of half of the 
Underwriters’ Fee (as defined herein) and reasonable fees and expenses incurred by the Underwriters in connection 

  



 

 

with the Offering (the “Underwriters’ Expenses”) (together with the Earned Interest (as defined herein), the 
“Escrowed Funds”), will be delivered to and held by AST Trust Company (Canada), as subscription receipt agent 
(the “Subscription Receipt Agent”), and upon receipt of a direction from the Company, invested in short-term 
obligations of, or guaranteed by, the Government of Canada (and other approved investments that would each be a 
qualified investment for Exempt Plans (as defined herein)) pending the earlier of (a) the satisfaction or waiver of the 
Escrow Release Conditions and (b) the occurrence of a Termination Event (as defined herein). Upon satisfaction of 
the Escrow Release Conditions, (i) one Common Share will be automatically issued in exchange for each 
Subscription Receipt held (subject to customary dilution protection), without payment of additional consideration or 
any further action on the part of the holder; (ii) the Dividend Equivalent Payment, if any, less applicable withholding 
taxes, if any, will become payable in respect of each Subscription Receipt; (iii) the Escrowed Funds (less the 
remaining half of the Underwriters’ Fee payable) less any amounts required to pay the Dividend Equivalent 
Payments, if any, as applicable, will be released by the Subscription Receipt Agent to the Company, which will then 
be utilized to fund a portion of the purchase price of the Acquisition; and (iv) the remaining half of the 
Underwriters’ Fee will be released by the Subscription Receipt Agent to the Underwriters. 

If (a) the Acquisition Closing does not occur at or before 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on October 31, 2018, (b) the 
Company delivers to the Co-Lead Underwriters and the Subscription Receipt Agent a notice, executed by the 
Company, declaring that the Purchase Agreement (as defined herein) has been terminated or that the Company will 
not be proceeding with the Acquisition, or (c) the Company formally announces to the public by way of a press 
release that it does not intend to proceed with the Acquisition (each, a “Termination Event”), each Subscription 
Receipt will entitle the holder thereof to receive an amount equal to the aggregate of (i) the Subscription Price; (ii) 
its, his or her pro rata share of the interest or other income actually earned on the investment of the Escrowed Funds 
from, and including, the date of the Offering Closing to, but excluding, the date of the Termination Event 
(the “Earned Interest”), and (iii) its, his or her pro rata share of the interest that would have otherwise been earned 
on the 50% of the Underwriters’ Fee and on the Underwriters’ Expenses paid to the Underwriters on the Offering 
Closing as if such 50% of the Underwriters’ Fee and 100% of the Underwriters’ Expenses had been held in escrow 
as part of the Escrowed Funds and not paid to the Underwriters (the “Deemed Interest”), less applicable 
withholding taxes, if any. In the event that the gross proceeds of the Offering are required to be remitted to 
purchasers of the Subscription Receipts, the Company will pay an amount equal to the sum of half of the 
Underwriters’ Fee and the amount of the Underwriters’ Expenses payable with respect to the Offering plus the 
Deemed Interest such that all of the gross proceeds of the Offering would be refunded to purchasers of the 
Subscription Receipts. See “Description of the Subscription Receipts”. 

The currently issued and outstanding Common Shares are listed and posted for trading on the TSX under the symbol 
“MSI”. The closing price of the Common Shares on the TSX on July 6, 2018, the last full trading day prior to the 
announcement of the Offering, was $27.17. The closing price of the Common Shares on the TSX on July 19, 2018, 
the last trading day prior to the filing of this Prospectus, was $27.86. The TSX has conditionally approved the listing 
of the Subscription Receipts (including the Subscription Receipts issuable pursuant to the Over-Allotment Option 
(as defined herein)) and the Common Shares issuable upon exchange of the Subscription Receipts. Listing is subject 
to the Company fulfilling all of the listing requirements of the TSX on or before October 11, 2018. 
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Price to the Public(1) Underwriters’ Fee(2) 

Net Proceeds to 
the Company(3) 

Per Subscription Receipt ............................................  $26.55 $1.062 $25.488 
Total(4) ........................................................................  $210,010,500 $8,400,420 $201,610,080 

 
Notes: 
(1) The Subscription Price was determined by negotiation between the Company and the Co-Lead Underwriters, on behalf of the 

Underwriters, with reference to the market price of the Common Shares and other applicable factors. 

(2) Pursuant to the terms of the Underwriting Agreement, and in consideration of the services rendered by the Underwriters in connection with 
the Offering, the Underwriters will receive an aggregate fee (the “Underwriters’ Fee”) of $8,400,420, representing 4% of the gross 
proceeds from the Offering. The Underwriters’ Fee is payable as to 50% upon the Offering Closing and 50% upon release of the Escrowed 
Funds to the Company. If the Acquisition is not completed, the Underwriters’ Fee will be reduced to the amount payable upon the Offering 
Closing. The Company will also pay the Underwriters a fee equal to 4% of the gross proceeds of the Over-Allotment Option sold by the 
Company if the Over-Allotment Option is exercised. See “Plan of Distribution”. 

(3) Before deducting expenses of the Offering, estimated at $1,250,000 (exclusive of all applicable taxes and excluding interest, if any, on the 
Escrowed Funds and transaction costs associated with the Acquisition), which, together with the Underwriters’ Fee, will be paid from the 
proceeds of the Offering. 

(4) The Company has granted to the Underwriters an option (the “Over-Allotment Option”), exercisable in whole or in part at any time not 
later than the earlier of (i) up to 30 days after the Offering Closing and (ii) the occurrence of a Termination Event, to purchase up to an 
additional 791,000 Subscription Receipts (representing an additional 10% of the Offering) at the Subscription Price on the same terms as 
set forth above solely to cover over-allotments, if any, and for market stabilization purposes. If the Over-Allotment Option is exercised in 
full, the total price to the public, the Underwriters’ Fee and net proceeds to the Company (before deducting expenses of the Offering) will 
be $231,011,550, $9,240,462 and $221,771,088, respectively. This Prospectus qualifies the distribution of the Over-Allotment Option and 
any additional Subscription Receipts issuable on the exercise thereof as well as the Common Shares issuable in lieu of Subscription 
Receipts if the closing of the Over-Allotment Option occurs concurrently with or following the Acquisition Closing. A purchaser who 
acquires Subscription Receipts forming part of the Underwriters’ over-allocation position acquires those securities under this Prospectus, 
regardless of whether the over-allocation position is ultimately filled through the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option or secondary 
market purchases. See “Use of Proceeds” and “Plan of Distribution”. 

Underwriters’ Position 
Maximum Size or Number 

of Securities Available  Exercise Period Exercise Price 

Over-Allotment Option Option to purchase up to 
791,000 Subscription Receipts 

At any time not later than 
the earlier of (i) up to 30 
days after the Offering 

Closing and (ii) the 
occurrence of a 

Termination Event 

$26.55 per Subscription 
Receipt 

 
An investment in Subscription Receipts is subject to a number of risks that should be carefully considered by 
a prospective investor. There is currently no market through which the Subscription Receipts may be sold 
and purchasers may not be able to resell the Subscription Receipts purchased under this Prospectus. This 
may affect the pricing of the Subscription Receipts in the secondary market, the transparency and 
availability of trading prices, the liquidity of the Subscription Receipts and the extent of issuer regulation. See 
“Risk Factors”. 

Each of TDS, NBF, CIBC World Markets Inc., Scotia Capital Inc. and BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc. are affiliates 
of banks that are lenders to the Company or its subsidiaries under the Existing Credit Facility (as defined 
herein). National Bank of Canada (“NBC”), an affiliate of NBF, has also committed to underwrite the entire 
amount available under the Amended and Restated Credit Facility (as defined herein). In addition, TDS 
advised the Company in connection with the Acquisition and, in the ordinary course of business, certain of 
the Underwriters and/or their affiliates have provided and/or may provide in the future investment banking, 
commercial banking and/or other financial services to the Company for which they have received or will 
receive compensation. Accordingly, the Company may be considered a “connected issuer” of each of TDS, 
NBF, CIBC World Markets Inc., Scotia Capital Inc. and BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc. within the meaning of 
applicable Canadian securities legislation. See “Plan of Distribution”. 

The Underwriters, as principals, conditionally offer the Subscription Receipts qualified under this Prospectus for 
sale, subject to prior sale, if, as and when issued, sold and delivered by the Company and accepted by the 
Underwriters in accordance with the conditions of the Underwriting Agreement referred to under “Plan of 

Price: $26.55 per Subscription Receipt 
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Distribution” and subject to the approval of certain legal matters on behalf of the Company by Goodmans LLP and 
on behalf of the Underwriters by Torys LLP. 

Subject to applicable laws, the Underwriters may, in connection with the Offering, over-allot or effect transactions 
that stabilize or maintain the market price of the Subscription Receipts and/or the Common Shares at levels other 
than those that might otherwise prevail on the open market. Such transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued 
at any time. The Underwriters propose to offer the Subscription Receipts initially at the Subscription Price. After 
the Underwriters have made reasonable efforts to sell all of the Subscription Receipts at the Subscription 
Price, the Underwriters may subsequently reduce the selling price to investors from time to time in order to 
sell any of the Subscription Receipts remaining unsold. Any such reduction will not affect the proceeds 
received by the Company. See “Plan of Distribution”. 

Subscriptions for the Subscription Receipts will be received subject to rejection or allotment in whole or in part, and 
the right is reserved to close the subscription books at any time without notice. The Offering will be effected only 
through the book-based system administered by CDS Clearing and Depository Services Inc. (“CDS”). Subscription 
Receipts must be purchased or transferred through a CDS participant and all rights of holders of Subscription 
Receipts must be exercised through, and all payments or other property to which such holder is entitled will be made 
or delivered by, CDS or the CDS participant through which the holder of Subscription Receipts holds such 
Subscription Receipts. Beneficial owners of Subscription Receipts will not, except in certain limited circumstances 
as required by law, be entitled to receive physical certificates evidencing their ownership of Subscription Receipts or 
Common Shares issuable upon the exchange of Subscription Receipts. See “Description of the Subscription Receipts 
– Delivery and Form of Subscription Receipts and Common Shares” and “Plan of Distribution”. 

The closing of the Offering (the “Offering Closing”) is expected to take place on or about July 27, 2018 (or such 
other date as the Company and the Underwriters may agree, but in any event no later than August 24, 2018). 

Prospective investors should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this 
Prospectus or to which we have referred you. Neither the Company nor the Underwriters has authorized any other 
person to provide prospective investors with any different or additional information, other than the documents filed 
as “Marketing Materials” under the Company’s profile on the System for Electronic Document Analysis and 
Retrieval (“SEDAR”) at www.sedar.com. To the extent of any discrepancy between the information contained in 
the Marketing Materials and this Prospectus, prospective investors are advised that Marketing Materials do not 
provide full disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered. Prospective investors should read this 
Prospectus and any amendment for disclosure of those facts, especially risk factors relating to, among other things, 
the Company, the Subscription Receipts and the Common Shares before making an investment decision. Neither the 
Company nor the Underwriters is making an offer to sell Subscription Receipts in any jurisdiction where such an 
offer or sale is prohibited. Unless otherwise stated, the information contained in this Prospectus is accurate only as 
of the date of this Prospectus, regardless of the time of delivery of this Prospectus or any sale of Subscription 
Receipts. The Company’s business, financial condition and results of operations may have changed since the date of 
this Prospectus. The Company does not undertake to update the information contained or incorporated by reference 
herein, except as required by the applicable securities laws. 

The Company’s principal and head office is located at 895 Don Mills Road, Suite 700, Tower One, Toronto, Ontario 
M3C 1W3. 
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GENERAL MATTERS 

In this Prospectus, references to the “Company” or “Morneau Shepell” refer to Morneau Shepell Inc. and, where 
applicable, its subsidiaries; “Subscription Receipts” means the subscription receipts of the Company being offered 
pursuant to this Prospectus; and “Common Shares” means the common shares of the Company. 

All capitalized terms referred to above are defined elsewhere in this Prospectus including under “Glossary of 
Terms”. 

All currency amounts in this Prospectus are expressed in Canadian dollars, unless otherwise indicated. 

Unless otherwise indicated, the disclosure in this Prospectus assumes that the Over-Allotment Option is not 
exercised. 

CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This Prospectus, including the documents incorporated by reference herein, contains “forward-looking information” 
and “forward looking statements” as defined under Canadian securities laws (collectively, “forward-looking 
statements”). All statements other than statements of historical fact contained in this Prospectus, or in the 
documents incorporated by reference herein, are forward-looking statements, including, without limitation, the 
Company’s statements regarding the Company’s business and the environment in which it operates, the Company’s 
dividend policy, the intention of the Company to complete the Offering and the Acquisition on the terms and 
conditions described herein, the expected timing regarding completion of the Offering and the Acquisition, use of 
proceeds of the Offering, the means of funding the Acquisition, the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option, the 
listing of the Subscription Receipts and the Common Shares issuable upon exchange of the Subscription Receipts on 
the TSX, the anticipated effect of the Offering and the Acquisition on the performance of the Company (including 
the extent to which the Acquisition is accretive to EBITDA per share, the quantum and timing of potential synergies, 
expected revenues, expected EBITDA and future growth opportunities, including organic growth and potential 
acquisitions and the retention of senior executives of LifeWorks following completion of the Acquisition). In certain 
cases, forward-looking statements can be identified by the use of words such as “plans”, “expects”, “budget”, 
“scheduled”, “estimates”, “forecasts”, “intends”, “anticipates”, “projects” or “believes”, “pro forma” or variations of 
such words and phrases or state that certain actions, events or results “may”, “could”, “would”, “might” or “will”, 
“occur” or “be achieved” and similar words or the negative thereof. Although management of the Company believes 
that the expectations represented in such forward-looking statements are reasonable, there can be no assurance that 
such expectations will prove to be correct. 

The forward-looking statements in this Prospectus are based on certain assumptions, including without limitation 
that all conditions to completion of the Offering and the Acquisition will be satisfied or waived, the accuracy of the 
LifeWorks financial statements, that the Company will be able to implement business improvements and achieve 
cost savings, that the Company will be able to retain key personnel, that there will be no unexpected expenses 
occurring as a result of the Acquisition, that currency exchange rates remain consistent, the Company’s ability to 
obtain financing on acceptable terms, the timing of satisfaction of the conditions to closing of the Acquisition, and 
assumptions regarding present and future business strategies and the environment in which the Company will 
operate in the future, including expected revenues from certain contracts, and ability to achieve goals. They are not 
guarantees of future performance and involve risks and uncertainties that are difficult to control or predict. A 
number of factors could cause actual results to differ materially from the results discussed in the forward-looking 
statements, including, but not limited to, the factors discussed under the heading “Risk Factors” in this Prospectus 
and in the Company’s annual information form available at www.sedar.com. 

There can be no assurance that forward-looking statements will prove to be accurate as actual outcomes and results 
may differ materially from those expressed in these forward-looking statements. Readers, therefore, should not place 
undue reliance on any such forward-looking statements. Further, these forward-looking statements are made as of 
the date of this Prospectus and, except as expressly required by applicable law, the Company assumes no obligation 
to publicly update or revise any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or 
otherwise. 
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NON-IFRS MEASURES 

The information presented, or incorporated by reference, in this Prospectus with respect to the Company includes 
certain adjusted financial measures which are not defined under IFRS as noted below. The method of calculating 
such non-IFRS measures may differ from the methods used by other issuers. Therefore, these non-IFRS measures 
may not be comparable to similar measures presented by other issuers. 

Morneau Shepell Non-IFRS Measures 

EBITDA comprises profit before finance costs, income tax expenses, depreciation and amortization, while Adjusted 
EBITDA represents EBITDA before taking into account certain unusual expenditures. EBITDA and Adjusted 
EBITDA are intended to represent an indication of the Company’s capacity to generate profit from operations before 
taking into account management’s financing decisions and costs of consuming tangible capital assets and intangible 
assets, which vary according to their vintage, technological currency, and management’s estimate of their useful life. 
Management believes that both EBITDA and Adjusted EBITDA are useful measures in evaluating the Company’s 
performance and the Company utilizes them to monitor compliance with debt covenants. 

Free Cash Flow is defined as cash provided by operating activities adjusted for capital expenditures. Normalized 
Free Cash Flow is defined as cash provided by operating activities, adjusted for changes in non-cash operating 
working capital, capital expenditures, current income taxes (net of income taxes paid) and certain unusual 
expenditures. The twelve-month rolling Normalized Payout Ratio is defined as dividends declared as a percentage of 
Normalized Free Cash Flow on a rolling twelve-month basis, while the twelve-month rolling Normalized Payout 
Ratio including changes in adjusted non-cash operating working capital, is defined as dividends declared as a 
percentage of Normalized Free Cash Flow including changes in adjusted non-cash operating working capital on a 
rolling twelve-month basis. Management believes that Free Cash Flow, Normalized Free Cash Flow, the twelve-
month rolling Normalized Payout Ratio, and the twelve-month rolling Normalized Payout Ratio including changes 
in adjusted non-cash operating working capital, are useful supplemental measures of Morneau Shepell’s ability to 
generate cash after deducting capital expenditures required to maintain or expand the business. Management also 
utilizes them to make decisions related to dividends to shareholders. 

LifeWorks Non-IFRS Measures 

EBITDA comprises profit before finance costs, income tax expenses, depreciation and amortization, while Adjusted 
EBITDA represents EBITDA before taking into account certain unusual expenditures that are not indicative of 
normalized operating results. 

Free Cash Flow is defined as cash provided by operating activities adjusted for capital expenditures. Normalized 
Free Cash Flow is defined as cash provided by operating activities, adjusted for changes in non-cash operating 
working capital, capital expenditures and certain unusual expenditures. 

Non-IFRS Disclosure 

The Company’s non-IFRS measures and LifeWorks’ non-IFRS measures (collectively, the “Non-IFRS Measures”), 
are not standard measures recognized under IFRS and do not have standardized meanings prescribed by IFRS. These 
Non-IFRS Measures are supplemental measures of a company’s historical performance, which for purposes of this 
Prospectus, have also been presented on a pro forma basis (see “Caution Regarding Unaudited Pro Forma 
Consolidated Financial Statements”) and “normalized pro forma” basis, which includes certain adjustments which 
are not reflected in the unaudited pro forma financial statements included elsewhere, or incorporated by reference, in 
this Prospectus. Reconciliations of Non-IFRS Measures to the most directly comparable measure calculated in 
accordance with IFRS are provided in the Company’s most recent management’s discussion and analysis and in this 
Prospectus under “The Acquisition - Selected Pro Forma Financial Information”. 

The Non-IFRS Measures should not be construed as alternatives to net income (loss), net income (loss) before 
income taxes, income (loss) per share or cash flows from operating activities determined in accordance with IFRS as 
indicators of the Company’s or LifeWorks’ performance, or as alternatives to pro forma net income and pro forma 
income per share, as such amounts are presented in the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements, 
included elsewhere or incorporated by reference in this Prospectus. 
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EXCHANGE RATE INFORMATION 

If the Acquisition is completed, the Company will expand into the U.K. market and increase its footprint in the U.S. 
and Canadian markets. Accordingly, the Company would be further exposed to the impact of fluctuations in the 
Canadian/U.S. dollar and the Canadian dollar/pound sterling exchange rates. Unless otherwise stated, all financial 
information contained in this Prospectus is disclosed in Canadian dollars. The Canadian dollar equivalent of the 
Acquisition has been reflected throughout this Prospectus using foreign currency exchange rates as of March 31, 
2018. The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high, low, average and period-ended daily average 
exchange rates for US$1.00 and £1.00, expressed in Canadian dollars, published by the Bank of Canada. 

 
US$ - Year ended  

December 31 

US$ - Three 
months ended 

March 31 
£ - Year ended  
December 31 

£ - Three 
months ended  

March 31 
 2017 2018 2017 2018 
 C$ C$ C$ C$ 
Highest rate during the 
period 1.3743 1.3088 1.7767 1.8371 
Lowest rate during the 
period 1.2128 1.2288 1.5865 1.6822 
Average rate for the 
period 1.2986 1.2647 1.6719 1.7601 
Rate at the end of the 
period 1.2545 1.2894 1.6961 1.8106 

 
On July 19, 2018, the daily average exchange rate posted by the Bank of Canada for conversion of U.S. dollars into 
Canadian dollars was US$1.00 equals C$1.3255. 

On July 19, 2018, the daily average exchange rate posted by the Bank of Canada for conversion of pounds sterling 
into Canadian dollars was £1.00 equals C$1.7230. 

CAUTION REGARDING UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This Prospectus contains the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements of the Company comprised of 
the consolidated statements of financial position of the Company as at March 31, 2018 and the consolidated 
statements of income and comprehensive income of the Company for (a) the year ended December 31, 2017 and 
(b) the three-month period ended March 31, 2018, giving effect to: (i) the Offering, assuming no exercise of the 
Over-Allotment Option and the issuance of Common Shares pursuant to the terms of the Subscription Receipts; and 
(ii) the completion of the Acquisition. Such unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared using certain of the respective historical financial statements of the Company and of LifeWorks, as more 
particularly described in the notes to such unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements. In preparing such 
unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements, the Company has not independently verified the financial 
statements of LifeWorks that were used to prepare the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements. Such 
unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements are not intended to be indicative of the results that would 
actually have occurred, or the results expected in future periods, had the events reflected herein occurred on the 
dates indicated. Actual amounts recorded upon the finalization of the purchase price allocation under the Acquisition 
may differ from the amounts reflected in such unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements. Since the 
unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements have been developed to retroactively show the effect of 
transactions that have occurred or are expected to occur at a later date (even though this was accomplished by 
following generally accepted practice using reasonable assumptions), there are limitations inherent in the very nature 
of pro forma data. The data contained in the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements represents only a 
simulation of the potential financial impact of the Offering and Company’s acquisition of LifeWorks. Undue 
reliance should not be placed on such unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements. See “Cautionary Note 
Regarding Forward-Looking Statements” and “Risk Factors”. 

ELIGIBILITY FOR INVESTMENT 

In the opinion of Goodmans LLP, counsel to the Company, and Torys LLP, counsel to the Underwriters, based on 
the current provisions of the Tax Act, the Subscription Receipts and Common Shares will be qualified investments 
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at the time of acquisition by a trust governed by a RRSP, RESP, RRIF, DPSP, RDSP or TFSA (an “Exempt Plan”) 
provided that, at the time of the acquisition by the Exempt Plan, (i) in the case of the Subscription Receipts, either 
the Subscription Receipts are listed on a “designated stock exchange” (as defined in the Tax Act and which currently 
includes the TSX), or the following conditions are met (a) the Common Shares are listed on a designated stock 
exchange at that time, (b) the Company is not, and deals at arm’s length for purposes of the Tax Act with each 
person who is, an annuitant, a beneficiary, an employer or a subscriber under, or holder of, such Exempt Plan, and 
(c) the Escrowed Funds are invested in qualified investments for such Exempt Plan, and (ii) in the case of the 
Common Shares, either such shares are listed on a designated stock exchange or the Company is a “public 
corporation” (as defined in the Tax Act). 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if the Subscription Receipts or the Common Shares are “prohibited investments” (as 
defined in the Tax Act) for a trust governed by a TFSA, RRSP, RRIF, RESP or RDSP, the holder, annuitant or 
subscriber thereof, as the case may be, will be subject to a penalty tax as set out in the Tax Act. The Subscription 
Receipts and the Common Shares will not be prohibited investments for a trust governed by a TFSA, RRSP, RRIF, 
RESP or RDSP provided that the holder, annuitant or subscriber thereof, as the case may be, (a) deals at arm’s 
length with the Company for purposes of the Tax Act, and (b) does not have a “significant interest” (as defined for 
purposes of the prohibited investment rules in the Tax Act) in the Company. In addition, the Common Shares will 
not be “prohibited investments” if the Common Shares are “excluded property” (as defined in the Tax Act) for a 
trust governed by a TFSA, RRSP, RRIF, RESP or RDSP. Prospective purchasers who intend to hold Subscription 
Receipts or Common Shares in an Exempt Plan are advised to consult their own tax advisors. 

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE 

Information has been incorporated by reference in this Prospectus from documents filed with the securities 
commissions or similar authorities in each of the provinces of Canada. Copies of the documents incorporated 
herein by reference may be obtained without charge upon request to Investor Relations, Morneau Shepell Inc. at 895 
Don Mills Road, Suite 700, Tower One, Toronto, Ontario, M3C 1W3, and are also available electronically under the 
Company’s SEDAR profile at www.sedar.com. 

The following documents filed by the Company with the appropriate securities commissions or similar regulatory 
authorities in each of the provinces of Canada, are specifically incorporated by reference into, and form an integral 
part of, this Prospectus: 

(a) the annual information form of the Company dated March 7, 2018 for the financial year ended 
December 31, 2017 (the “Annual Information Form”); 

(b) the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the financial years ended 
December 31, 2017 and 2016, together with the notes thereto and the auditors’ report thereon (the 
“Annual Financial Statements”); 

(c) management’s discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations of the 
Company for the financial year ended December 31, 2017; 

(d) the unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements of the Company for the three-
month periods ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, together with notes thereto (the “Interim 
Financial Statements”); 

(e) management’s discussion and analysis of the financial condition and results of operations of the 
Company for the three-month period ended March 31, 2018; 

(f) the management information circular of the Company dated March 7, 2018; 

(g) the template version of the term sheet for the Offering dated July 9, 2018, filed on SEDAR in 
connection with the Offering (the “Term Sheet”); 

(h) the investor presentation of the Company dated July 9, 2018, filed on SEDAR in connection with 
the Offering (together with the Term Sheet, the “Marketing Materials”); and 
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(i) the material change report of the Company dated and filed on July 9, 2018 with respect to the 
Offering and the Acquisition. 

Any documents of the types referred to in the preceding paragraphs (a) through (i), annual information forms, annual 
financial statements and the auditor’s report thereon and related management’s discussion and analysis, interim 
financial reports and related management’s discussion and analysis, information circulars, material change reports 
(other than confidential material change reports, if any), business acquisition reports and any other documents as 
may be required to be incorporated by reference herein under applicable securities laws, which are filed by the 
Company with the securities commissions or similar regulatory authorities in each of the provinces of Canada 
subsequent to the date of this Prospectus and prior to the termination of this distribution shall be deemed to be 
incorporated by reference in this Prospectus. 

Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference herein shall 
be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purposes of this Prospectus to the extent that a statement 
contained herein or in any other subsequently filed document which also is, or is deemed to be, incorporated 
by reference herein modifies or supersedes such statement. The modifying or superseding statement need not 
state that it has modified or superseded a prior statement or include any other information set forth in the 
document that it modifies or supersedes. The making of a modifying or superseding statement shall not be 
deemed an admission for any purposes that the modified or superseded statement, when made, constituted a 
misrepresentation, an untrue statement of a material fact or an omission to state a material fact that was 
required to be stated or that was necessary to make a statement not misleading in light of the circumstances 
in which it was made. Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed, except as so modified or 
superseded, to constitute a part of this Prospectus. 

MARKETING MATERIALS 

The Marketing Materials are not part of this Prospectus to the extent that the contents of the Marketing Materials 
have been modified or superseded by a statement contained in this Prospectus or any amendment. Any template 
version of “marketing materials” (as defined in National Instrument 41-101 – General Prospectus Requirements) 
filed after the date of this Prospectus and before the termination of the distribution under the Offering (including any 
amendments to, or an amended version of, the Marketing Materials) is deemed to be incorporated by reference 
herein. 
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PROSPECTUS SUMMARY 

The following is a summary of certain information contained in this Prospectus and should be read 
together with the more detailed information and financial data and statements contained elsewhere in this 
Prospectus. Please refer to the “Glossary of Terms” for a list of defined terms used herein. 

Offering 

Issuer: Morneau Shepell Inc. 

Listing: The TSX has conditionally approved the listing of the Subscription 
Receipts (including the Subscription Receipts issuable pursuant to the 
Over-Allotment Option) and the Common Shares issuable upon exchange 
of the Subscription Receipts. Listing is subject to the Company fulfilling 
all of the listing requirements of the TSX on or before October 11, 2018. 

Closing: Closing of the Offering is expected to occur on or about July 27, 2018 or 
such later date as the Company and the Underwriters may agree but in any 
event no later than August 24, 2018.  

Use of Proceeds: The Company intends to use the net proceeds of the Offering to fund a 
portion of the purchase price of the Acquisition and the Company’s 
expenses related to the Acquisition and the Offering. If the Over-
Allotment Option is exercised, the additional net proceeds received by the 
Company will be used to repay indebtedness incurred in connection with 
the Acquisition and/or for general corporate purposes. See “The 
Acquisition” and “Use of Proceeds”. 

Risk Factors: An investment in the Subscription Receipts is subject to certain risks and 
investments considerations. See “Risk Factors”. 

 
Subscription Receipts 

Issue: 7,910,000 Subscription Receipts. See “Description of the Subscription 
Receipts” and “Plan of Distribution”. 

Price: $26.55 per Subscription Receipt. See “Plan of Distribution”. 

Total Amount of Offering: $210,010,500 ($231,011,550 if the Over-Allotment Option is exercised in 
full). 

Over-Allotment Option: The Company has agreed to grant to the Underwriters the Over-Allotment 
Option which is exercisable in whole or in part at any time not later than 
the earlier of (i) the 30th day following the Offering Closing, and (ii) the 
occurrence of a Termination Event, to purchase up to an aggregate of 
791,000 additional Subscription Receipts (representing 10% of the number 
of Subscription Receipts) at the Subscription Price to cover over-
allotments and for market stabilization purposes. 

Issuance of Common Shares: It is currently expected that the closing of the Offering will occur on the 
Acquisition Closing. If the closing of the Acquisition occurs on the same 
date or prior to the date of the closing of the Offering, the Company will 
deliver Common Shares, instead of Subscription Receipts, to investors on 
closing of the Offering. 

Subscription Receipts and Escrowed 
Funds: 

The proceeds from the sale of the Subscription Receipts, less 50% of the 
Underwriters’ Fee in respect of the issue and sale of Subscription Receipts 
pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement and less the Underwriters’ 
Expenses, will be delivered to and held by the Subscription Receipt Agent 
and invested in short-term obligations of, or guaranteed by, the 
Government of Canada (or other approved investments that would each be 
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a qualified investment for Exempt Plans) pending the earlier to occur of (i) 
the satisfaction or waiver of the Escrow Release Conditions and release of 
the Escrowed Funds to the Company and (ii) the occurrence of a 
Termination Event. 

Upon the satisfaction or waiver of the Escrow Release Conditions: (a) one 
Common Share will be automatically issued in exchange for each 
Subscription Receipt, without payment of additional consideration or any 
further action on the part of the holder; (b) the Dividend Equivalent 
Payment, if any, less applicable withholding taxes, if any, will become 
payable in respect of each Subscription Receipt; (c) the Escrowed Funds 
(less the remaining half of the Underwriters’ Fee) less any amounts 
required to pay the Dividend Equivalent Payments, if any, will be released 
by the Subscription Receipt Agent to the Company, which will then be 
utilized to fund a portion of the purchase price of the Acquisition and the 
Company’s expenses related to the Acquisition and the Offering; and (d) 
the remaining half of the Underwriters’ Fee will be released by the 
Subscription Receipt Agent to the Underwriters. The Escrowed Funds may 
be subject to a special release to the Company or, at its direction, under 
other escrow conditions, in order to facilitate the actual completion of the 
Acquisition. The Subscription Receipt Agreement will contain customary 
anti-dilution provisions with respect to the Subscription Receipts. 

Termination Event: If (a) the Acquisition Closing does not occur at or before 5:00 p.m. 
(Toronto time) on October 31, 2018, (b) the Company delivers to the Co-
Lead Underwriters and the Subscription Receipt Agent a notice, executed 
by the Company, declaring that the Purchase Agreement has been 
terminated or that the Company will not be proceeding with the 
Acquisition, or (c) the Company formally announces to the public by way 
of a press release that it does not intend to proceed with the Acquisition, 
each Subscription Receipt will entitle the holder thereof to receive an 
amount equal to the aggregate of (i) the Subscription Price; (ii) Earned 
Interest, and (iii) Deemed Interest, less applicable withholding taxes, if 
any.  

Dividend Equivalent Payments: Each Subscription Receipt will entitle the holder thereof to an amount per 
Subscription Receipt equal to the amount per Common Share of cash 
dividends declared by the Company for which record dates have occurred 
during the period from and including the date of the Offering Closing to, 
but excluding the date upon which the Common Shares are issued or 
deemed to be issued pursuant to the Subscription Receipt Agreement, if 
any, less applicable withholding taxes, if any, upon the satisfaction of the 
Escrow Release Conditions without payment of any additional 
consideration or any further action on the part of the holder. 
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THE COMPANY 

The Company was incorporated on October 19, 2010, pursuant to the provisions of the Business Corporations Act 
(Ontario) (the “OBCA”) and is the successor to Morneau Sobeco Income Fund, which was an income trust 
established on August 22, 2005. The Company indirectly carries on its business through its principal operating 
subsidiary, Morneau Shepell Ltd., and its subsidiaries. 

The Company is a human resources consulting and technology company that takes an integrated approach to 
employee assistance, health, benefits and retirement needs. The Company is the leading provider of employee and 
family assistance programs, the largest administrator of retirement and benefits plans and the largest provider of 
integrated absence management solutions in Canada. As a leader in strategic human resources consulting and 
innovative pension design, the Company helps clients solve complex workforce problems and provides integrated 
productivity, health and retirement solutions. With more than 4,000 employees in offices globally, the Company 
offers services to approximately 20,000 organizations in Canada, the United States and around the globe directly and 
through distribution channel partners. 

For further information, see “Description of the Business” in the Annual Information Form. 

LIFEWORKS CORPORATION LTD. 

On July 9, 2018, the Company announced that Morneau Shepell Ltd. had entered into the Purchase Agreement 
pursuant to which Morneau Shepell Ltd. agreed to acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares of LifeWorks. 
LifeWorks is a global company, with headquarters in both North America and Europe, and offices throughout 
Canada, the United States, the United Kingdom and Australia. See “The Acquisition” for further details about the 
terms of the Acquisition. 

History 

LifeWorks Corporation Ltd., formerly named WorkAngel Organisation Limited (“LifeWorks”), was 
formed in March 2016 pursuant to a joint venture between Ceridian HCM Holding Inc. (“Ceridian HCM”) and 
Work Angel Technology Ltd. (“WorkAngel”). 

Ceridian HCM is a global human capital management (“HCM”) software company. In 2007, Ceridian 
HCM was acquired by Thomas H. Lee Partners, L.P. and Cannae Holdings, Inc. In connection with the formation of 
LifeWorks as described above, Ceridian HCM contributed its employee assistance program business to LifeWorks. 
Ceridian HCM distributed its interest in LifeWorks to existing shareholders prior to Ceridian HCM’s 2018 initial 
public offering. 

WorkAngel was a mobile-first employee reward and recognition platform that offered communication, 
collaboration and social recognition tools for businesses, coupled with a bespoke employee benefits and rewards 
program. WorkAngel was founded in 2012 by Jamie True and officially launched its flagship mobile application in 
2015. 

On June 19, 2018, LifeWorks acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of Optum Health & Technology 
(Australia) Pty Ltd (“Optum”), an established employee well-being service provider in Australia. Optum offers an 
employee assistance program (“EAP”) platform complementary to the existing LifeWorks model and expands 
LifeWorks’ customer reach into Australia. 

Services Provided by LifeWorks 

LifeWorks offers a unified well-being platform that combines an EAP with an immersive wellness and 
engagement mobile offering accessible on mobile devices running iOS or Android operating systems. Its user 
experience and synergistic interconnections between platform modules help address employee health and 
productivity. 
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Evolved Employee Assistance Program 

LifeWorks’ advanced, personalized EAP is a total well-being platform available to employees. The 
program’s functionality is designed to help employees proactively manage and prevent challenges. LifeWorks offers 
extensive well-being content libraries and an action-oriented approach to connect employees to content. The 
LifeWorks EAP provides immediate phone access to over 24,000 qualified clinical counsellors, certified coaches 
and specialized professionals across a variety of support and work-life services via chat, video, telephonic and in-
person counselling. In addition, LifeWorks delivers services to help employees deal with family, financial and legal 
issues, as well as critical incident onsite support for clients and employees to provide stability and stress reduction in 
times of trauma or crisis. 

Human Resources Communications and Community 

LifeWorks’ human resources communication and recognition platform creates a community within an 
organization and drives employee engagement. These communities are supported via LifeWorks’ personalized news 
feed, “push” notifications, colleague directory and leaderboard (which keep track of achievements and allows 
employees to compete against each other on initiatives with colleagues). The platform also facilitates easy 
distribution of human resources and business communications, and provides a company news hub with targeted 
posts and “push” notifications to share and distribute important human resources benefits, employee offers and 
business communications. Management can also easily communicate with groups and individuals in order to 
maximize awareness and engage employees. 

Perks and Saving 

LifeWorks offers employee perks and savings that help employees save money on their purchases across 
1,200 brands and retailers worldwide. The cash-back benefit provided by LifeWorks partners is higher than other 
consumer sites. LifeWorks also provides financial education and support via ongoing assessments of employees’ 
financial risk and attitude to budget planning and offers free consultations with trained specialists as well as digital 
content on financial well-being. 

Rewards and Recognition 

LifeWorks helps its clients build a thriving company culture by facilitating public recognition and rewards. 
LifeWorks fosters well-being through the gamification of rewards between employees and teams. Its platform 
celebrates and awards outstanding performance and/or alignment with core values, and provides rewards to 
incentivize participation, healthy habits and sustainable behaviour change. Employees are empowered to send 
instant peer-to-peer recognition and can redeem real-time rewards. LifeWorks also helps support managers with a 
view of team recognition as an effective way to provide holistic feedback on employee engagement and company 
values. 

 

Rewards & 
Recognition 

Perks &  
Savings 

HR Comms. & 
Community 

Wellness 

 Analytics &  
Reporting 

Evolved EAP 
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Wellness 

LifeWorks provides: 

• personalized coaching and support programs for employee health, including personalized 
wellness services (smoking cessation, stress management, weight management, sleep hygiene, 
diabetes prevention and critical incident support); 
 

• action-driven work assessments whereby LifeWorks identifies at-risk or disengaged employees; 
and 
 

• online and mobile access to a digital wellness platform that assesses users’ risk and provides them 
with a variety of wellness coaching materials. 

LifeWorks also identifies health risks through an interactive risk assessment, and allows employees to 
connect their wearable technology to the LifeWorks interface, allowing employees to track progress and engage in 
health, wellness and fitness challenges. 

Analytics and Reporting 

The analytics and insight offered by the LifeWorks dashboard helps clients transform raw data into 
valuable insights and actionable outcomes. The platform allows employers to: 

• track behaviour and utilization across the employee experience; 
 

• understand what well-being trends are present in their organizations; 
 

• justify investments in human resources with visibility into their impact on business outcomes; 
 

• identify at-risk employees; and 
 

• flag users based on targeted intervention. 

LifeWorks’ holistic platform creates a powerful feedback loop: 

 

Clients 

LifeWorks’ business is diversified, both geographically and by industry. LifeWorks currently serves over 
4,200 clients across 57 industries, including technology, medical and pharmaceuticals, insurance, hospitality, 
banking and finance, benefits and consulting, and charity and non-profit. 
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Client Retention and Growth 

LifeWorks utilizes methods of engagement to maximize customer retention and cater to an evolving work 
environment. LifeWorks works closely with its clients throughout the launch process with its tiered model that 
addresses the uniqueness and complexity of market sub-segments including enterprise, mid-market and small and 
medium sized businesses. LifeWorks then helps established clients develop a communication and engagement 
strategy and build their program launch and rollout, and offers new features and module launches. LifeWorks also 
meets with customers for ongoing business reviews, defining success based on clients’ strategic initiatives and 
corporate climates. 

LifeWorks’ clients typically use employee health and productivity services on a recurring basis. To 
maintain and grow its revenue, LifeWorks focuses its efforts on: 

• Driving market adoption of a total well-being technology. 
 

• Upselling enhanced offering across its customer base. 
 

• Acquiring block contracts from insurers, carriers and regional EAP providers. 
 

• Expanding revenue and margins with new programs. 

Competition and LifeWorks’ Competitive Advantage 

LifeWorks has emerged as the leading integrated technology platform in the employee well-being market 
and is servicing a substantial amount of demand primarily driven by changing workforce dynamics, percolating 
challenges in the well-being space and largely fragmented end markets. While there are competitors in the 
marketplace that provide solutions catering to various needs of employees, these companies typically provide 
piecemeal solutions and fail to fully engage employees. LifeWorks has emerged with a “one-stop-shop” well-being 
solution to enable, engage and reward employees. 

Workforce 

LifeWorks has headquarters in London, England and Atlanta, Georgia, with additional offices in the U.S., 
Canada, the UK and Australia. LifeWorks employs a workforce of more than 500 employees and has access to a 
worldwide network of over 24,000 qualified counsellors, certified coaches and specialized professionals across a 
variety of disciplines. 

THE ACQUISITION 

On July 9, 2018, the Company announced that Morneau Shepell Ltd. had entered into the Purchase Agreement 
pursuant to which Morneau Shepell Ltd. agreed to acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares of LifeWorks for 
an aggregate purchase price of approximately US$325 million, payable in cash and by the issuance of Common 
Shares, subject to certain customary closing adjustments. The terms and conditions of the Purchase Agreement are 
described in more detail below under “Purchase Agreement”. 

Rationale for the Acquisition and Investment Highlights 

LifeWorks is a significant global EAP provider, offering employee assistance, wellness, recognition and incentive 
programs in Canada, the United States, the UK and Australia. The acquisition of LifeWorks bolsters the Company’s 
recurring revenue base by expanding Morneau Shepell’s EAP platform. In addition, LifeWorks gives Morneau 
Shepell the growth potential of its technology-enabled total employee well-being application. The combined 
organization will offer a one-stop shop to meet employers’ and their employees’ well-being needs across the globe.  

The acquisition of LifeWorks constitutes an attractive acquisition for Morneau Shepell and is consistent with the 
Company’s strategy for the following reasons: 
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Leveraging Morneau Shepell’s Core Strengths 

The Acquisition presents a significant addition to the Company’s EAP offering and is consistent with its growth 
strategy and vison to optimize the health and productivity of people – the heart of every organization. LifeWorks has 
developed an industry-leading and unified well-being platform that combines EAP with an immersive wellness and 
engagement mobile offering. The Acquisition will allow the Company to better address multiple well-being 
challenges faced by its clients and their employees. LifeWorks’ business model is also consistent with Morneau 
Shepell’s highly successful recurring revenue model. 

Enhancing Morneau Shepell’s Core Capabilities 

The Company currently offers EAP clinical support, EAP content and well-being components together with strong 
clinical cost containment and upselling capabilities. The addition of the LifeWorks business will provide the 
opportunity to add a perquisite platform to the Company’s EAP offering (covering 8 million combined lives). The 
combined organization will be able to offer strong complementary capabilities to provide a comprehensive clinical 
and technology experience, creating a single point of contact for employees, improving user experience and driving 
cross-selling results. 

Geographic Expansion and Development 

The Acquisition is consistent with Morneau Shepell’s strategy of growing its U.S. and international businesses. The 
Company is already a market leader in Canada with a growing presence in the U.S., multi-nationals with expatriates 
in multiple global locations and international strength through joint ventures in emerging markets. The Acquisition 
will bolster the Company’s geographic footprint through LifeWorks’ established presence in the U.S., U.K., 
Australia and Canada. Following the Acquisition, U.S. and international revenue contribution is expected to increase 
from 15% to 24% of the Company’s total revenues. Morneau Shepell and LifeWorks are leaders in their respective 
geographic markets and management believes that following the Acquisition Morneau Shepell will become one of 
the largest EAP leaders. 

Industry Leading Technology 

LifeWorks offers a unified platform focused on transforming total employee well-being across EAP, rewards and 
recognition, human resources communications and community, perks and savings and wellness. As a result, the 
Company will be able to deliver a comprehensive portfolio of services designed to build and sustain mental and 
physical health through engagement in addition to addressing issues through clinical treatment. Following the 
Acquisition, the Company will also add the capability to deliver many of its existing services through LifeWorks’ 
software as a service (“SaaS”) model, enhancing cross-selling opportunities for well-being services and increasing 
utilization through an integrated platform. 

Financially Attractive 

LifeWorks’ earnings profile features a core EAP business that generates a high quality, stable cash flow representing 
approximately 97% of its revenue, complemented by the ability of LifeWorks to offer its enhanced module to 
existing and potential clients that subscribe to core functionality. The enhanced module includes an employee 
physical assistance program, physical wellness products, analytics and reporting, enhanced perks and savings, 
additional community features, and an enhanced well-being news feed.  

In 2017, LifeWorks generated revenue of approximately $105 million.  The Acquisition represents a purchase price 
multiple of approximately 11.2x anticipated 2019 EBITDA, including in year synergies. Immediately following 
completion of the Acquisition, management anticipates that the Company’s total debt to Adjusted EBITDA ratio 
will be approximately 2.8x based on a pro forma Adjusted EBITDA for the Company and LifeWorks for the latest 
12 months. See “Non-IFRS Measures”. 

Expected to Generate Significant Run-Rate Synergies 

Management anticipates that the Acquisition will generate significant run-rate synergies of approximately 
$10 million in 2019 and approximately $15 million per year by 2020. Such synergies are expected to be realized 
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primarily from cost rationalization and efficiency enhancements from the Company’s more cost-efficient delivery of 
services and call centre operations. In addition, the Company anticipates that it will be able to cross-sell products to 
existing Morneau Shepell and LifeWorks clients. See “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements”, 
“Non-IFRS Measures”, “Caution Regarding Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Statements”, and the 
unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements of the Company contained herein. 

Cash Flow Accretion 

The Acquisition is aligned with Morneau Shepell’s financial objectives and management anticipates the Acquisition 
to be more than 10% accretive to the Company’s 2019 earnings per share excluding acquisition related amortization 
of acquired intangibles, and including in year synergies. See “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking 
Statements”, “Non-IFRS Measures”, “Caution Regarding Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Statements”, 
and the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements of the Company contained herein. 

Financial Statements 

The Acquisition represents a “significant acquisition” for the Company for the purposes of Part 8 of National 
Instrument 51-102 - Continuous Disclosure Obligations. Please see page F-1 for an index of the LifeWorks 
historical financial statements and unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements of the Company reflecting 
the Acquisition included in this Prospectus. The acquisition date to be used for the purposes of the Company’s future 
financial statements will be the closing date of the Acquisition. 

Selected Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Information 

The selected unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information set forth below is based upon the pro forma 
consolidated financial statements included in this Prospectus, and should be read in conjunction with such pro forma 
consolidated financial statements. Such pro forma consolidated financial statements are based upon the Annual 
Financial Statements, the Interim Financial Statements, the audited consolidated financial statements of LifeWorks 
and notes thereto for the year ended December 31, 2017 and the unaudited consolidated financial statements of 
LifeWorks and the notes thereto for the three months ended March 31, 2018, each of which is included in or 
incorporated by reference in this Prospectus. See “Caution Regarding Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial 
Statements” and “Non-IFRS Measures”. 

Pro Forma Consolidated Net Income and Reconciliation to Adjusted EBITDA for the Three-Month Period 
Ended March 31, 2018 

In thousands of Canadian dollars, 
except per share amounts 

Morneau 
Shepell  LifeWorks Pro forma 

adjustments(1) Notes Pro forma 
Consolidated 

      
Revenue $167,526 $27,174 -  $194,700 
      
Profit (loss) for the period 14,229 (1,656) (7,199) (1) 5,374 
Add/(deduct):      
Finance costs 3,155 (58) 1,786 (1) 4,883 
Depreciation and amortization 10,220 1,303 7,891 (1) 19,414 
Income tax expenses 5,694 979 (2,478) (1) 4,195 
Depreciation and income tax expenses 
on share of income of joint ventures 286 - -  286 
EBITDA $33,584 $568 $-  $34,152 
      
Adjustments:      
Transitional services agreement - 689 - (2) 689 
Implementation costs - 260 - (2) 260 
Stock option expenses - 276 - (2) 276 
Costs related to internally developed 
software - 1,581 - (2) 1,581 
Other - 406 - (2) 406 
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In thousands of Canadian dollars, 
except per share amounts 

Morneau 
Shepell  LifeWorks Pro forma 

adjustments(1) Notes Pro forma 
Consolidated 

Adjusted EBITDA $33,584 $3,780 $-  $37,364 
      
Cash provided by /(used in) 
operating activities 16,916 (874) (1,082) (3) 14,960 
Deduct: capital expenditures (6,850) (1,662) - (4) (8,512) 
Free Cash flow $10,066 $(2,536) $(1,082)  $6,448 
Add (deduct):      
Change in non-cash operating 
working capital 7,046 1,194 -  8,240 
Current income taxes, net of income 
taxes paid (280) - -  (280) 
Adjustments to EBITDA - 2,936 - (5) 2,936 
Normalized free cash flow $16,832 $1,594 $(1,082)  $17,344 
      
Earnings per share (basic) $0.26    $0.08 
Earnings per share (diluted) $0.25    $0.08 
Adjusted EBITDA per share $0.60    $0.58 
Twelve-month rolling Normalized 
Payout Ratio 61.2%    57.1% 
Twelve-month rolling Normalized 
Payout Ratio, including changes in 
adjusted non-cash working capital 74.0%    89.1% 

(1) Pro forma adjustments are described in the notes to the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements included in this Prospectus. 
(2) Represents estimated cost reductions due to initiatives implemented by LifeWorks management in 2018 or costs that are not expected to 

recur post-Acquisition: 
(i) Transitional services agreement (the “TSA”) - corporate and applications support charges from Ceridian HCM, one of LifeWorks’ 

shareholders, that are not expected to continue after (ii) below or post-Acquisition. 
(ii) Implementation costs - costs incurred to implement services previously provided under the TSA and applications to support sales, 

operations and finance. The work will be substantially completed prior to the Acquisition Closing and is not expected to recur in 
future periods. 

(iii) Stock option expenses - all of Lifeworks’ stock options outstanding will be exercised or settled before the Acquisition Closing. 
(iv) Costs related to internally developed software – post-Acquisition management will implement processes to track costs and benefits 

related to internally developed software projects to facilitate the capitalization of development costs as required under IFRS. 
(v) Others - represents human resource expenses and costs that will be eliminated with the new application and are not expected to be 

incurred post-Acquisition. 
(3) Represents the impact of pro forma adjustments on cash used in operating activities. 
(4) Capital expenditures of LifeWorks adjusted for capitalization of internally developed software costs noted in (2)(iv) above. 
(5) Represents adjustments to EBITDA, excluding non-cash stock option expenses of $276. 

Pro Forma Consolidated Net Income and Reconciliation to Adjusted EBITDA for the Year Ended December 
31, 2017 

In thousands of Canadian dollars, 
except number of shares outstanding 

Morneau 
Shepell LifeWorks Pro forma 

adjustments(1) Notes Pro forma 
Consolidated 

      
Revenue $631,155 $105,233 -  $736,388 
      
Profit/(loss) for the period 34,582 (6,637) (34,020) (1) (6,075) 
Add/(deduct):      
Finance costs 13,165 (36) 6,187 (1) 19,316 
Depreciation and amortization 38,200 5,346 31,947 (1) 75,493 
Income tax expenses 15,190 6,963 (11,784) (1) 10,369 
EBITDA $101,137 $5,636 $(7,670)  $99,103 
Adjustments:      
Sublease loss provisions 1,225 - -  1,225 
Mercer Canada Outsourcing 
conversion costs 7,157 - -  7,157 
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In thousands of Canadian dollars, 
except number of shares outstanding 

Morneau 
Shepell LifeWorks Pro forma 

adjustments(1) Notes Pro forma 
Consolidated 

Retirement allowance 4,131 - -  4,131 
Reorganization and operational 
effectiveness initiatives 6,241 - -  6,241 
Lease exit costs 929 - -  929 
Acquisition costs - - 7,670 (2) 7,670 
Transitional services agreement - 5,588 - (3) 5,588 
Implementation costs - 1,060 - (3) 1,060 
Stock option expenses - 2,260 - (3) 2,260 
Costs related to internally developed 
software - 6,493 - (3) 6,493 
Other - 1,045 - (3) 1,045 
Adjusted EBITDA $120,820 $22,082 $-  $142,902 
      
Cash provided by (used in) 
operating activities 77,588 (7,024) (9,261) (4) 61,303 
Deduct: capital expenditures (31,415) (6,885) - (5) (38,300) 
Free Cash flow $46,173 $(13,909) $(9,261)  $23,003 
Add (deduct):      
Changes in non-cash operating 
working capital 14,470 10,036 -  24,506 
Current income taxes, net of income 
taxes paid (4,549) - -  (4,549) 
Adjustments to EBITDA 16,237 14,186 7,670 (6) 38,093 
Normalized free cash flow $72,331 $10,313 $(1,591)  $81,053 
      
Earnings (loss) per share (basic & 
diluted) $0.62    $(0.09) 
Adjusted EBITDA per share $2.18    $2.22 
Twelve-month rolling Normalized 
Payout Ratio 57.8%    52.4% 
Twelve-month rolling Normalized 
Payout Ratio, including changes in 
adjusted non-cash working capital 73.6%    75.1% 

(1) Pro forma adjustments are described in the notes to the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements included in this Prospectus. 
(2) Represents estimated transaction costs related to the Acquisition. 
(3) Represents estimated cost reductions due to initiatives implemented by LifeWorks management in 2018 or costs that are not expected to 

recur post-Acquisition: 
(i) TSA - corporate and applications support charges from Ceridian HCM, one of LifeWorks’ shareholders, that are not expected to 

continue after (ii) below or post-Acquisition. 
(ii) Implementation costs - costs incurred to implement services previously provided under TSA and applications to support sales, 

operations and finance. The work will be substantially completed prior to the Acquisition Closing and is not expected to recur in 
future periods. 

(iii) Stock option expenses - all of Lifeworks’ stock options outstanding will be exercised or settled before the Acquisition Closing. 
(iv) Costs related to internally developed software – post-Acquisition management will implement processes to track costs and benefits 

related to internally developed software projects to facilitate the capitalization of development costs as required under IFRS. 
(v) Others –represents human resources expenses and costs that will be eliminated with the new internal application that are not expected 

to be incurred post-Acquisition. 
(4) Represents the impact of pro forma adjustments on cash used in operating activities. 
(5) Capital expenditures of LifeWorks adjusted for capitalization of internally developed software costs noted in (3)(iv) above. 
(6) Represents adjustments to EBITDA, excluding non-cash stock option expenses of $2,260, non-cash component of the retirement allowance 

of $2,027, lease exit costs of $194 and sublease loss provisions. 

Purchase Agreement 

Morneau Shepell Ltd. has agreed to acquire all of the issued and outstanding shares of LifeWorks for an aggregate 
purchase price of approximately US$325 million, subject to working capital adjustments and other adjustments 
relating to outstanding debt and transaction expenses. The purchase price will be satisfied by delivering cash in the 
amount of approximately US$301 million and the issuance of approximately 898,435 Common Shares to Jamie 
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True (the current Chief Executive Officer of LifeWorks) and approximately 237,574 Common Shares to Jack 
Bekhor (the current Chief Financial Officer of LifeWorks). The value attributed to the Common Shares issued 
pursuant to the Purchase Agreement is $27.17 per share, calculated based on the volume weighted average price of 
the Common Shares for the five day trading period immediately prior to the execution of the Purchase Agreement. 
Jamie True and Jack Bekhor have each agreed not to transfer the Common Shares they receive in connection with 
the Acquisition for a period of 24 months following the Acquisition Closing (the “Initial Lock-up Period”). The 
Common Shares received by Jamie True and Jack Bekhor, as applicable, will be released from the lock-up upon 
notice of termination, incapacity or death of such person. Upon notice of resignation, the Common Shares will be 
released from the lock-up upon the earlier of (i) the 12 month anniversary of such notice of resignation and (ii) the 
expiry of the remaining term under the Initial Lock-up Period.  The Company has also agreed to make certain 
deferred cash payments to each of Jamie True and Jack Bekhor which are dependent on the trading price of the 
Common Shares on certain dates in the future, such payments not to exceed US$1,156,000, subject to certain 
conditions described in the Purchase Agreement. 

The Company intends to use the net proceeds of the Offering to fund a portion of the purchase price of the 
Acquisition and the Company’s expenses related to the Acquisition and the Offering. The balance of the cash 
purchase price will be funded by incremental debt funded pursuant to the Amended and Restated Credit Facility and 
excess cash on hand. 

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, the Acquisition Closing will occur on the second business day following the 
satisfaction or waiver of all the conditions to the closing of the Purchase Agreement (other than those conditions that 
by their nature will be satisfied on the date of the Acquisition Closing) but not prior to the earlier of (i) July 27, 2018 
or (ii) the date on which the Offering is completed. The Company anticipates that the Acquisition Closing will occur 
in late July 2018. 

The Purchase Agreement contains representations and warranties customary for transactions of this nature 
negotiated between sophisticated purchasers and sellers acting at arm’s length, certain of which are qualified as to 
materiality and knowledge and subject to certain exceptions. Subject to certain exceptions, the representations and 
warranties of the parties to the Purchase Agreement will survive the Acquisition Closing for a period of 12 months. 
Certain “fundamental” representations of the parties will survive the Acquisition Closing for the earlier of (i) 30 
days after the applicable statute of limitations and (ii) six years following the Acquisition Closing if no statute of 
limitations applies. Certain representations by LifeWorks relating to taxes will survive the Acquisition Closing for a 
period of 24 months. 

Each selling shareholder has agreed to an employee non-solicitation covenant that is in effect for three years from 
and following the Acquisition Closing, in accordance with the terms outlined in the Purchase Agreement. Each of 
Jamie True and Jack Bekhor have agreed to certain non-solicitation and non-competition covenants for a period of 
three years following the Acquisition Closing. 

Subject to limited exceptions, the selling shareholders will not have any obligation to indemnify the Company until 
the Company has suffered aggregate losses on a cumulative basis equal to US$1,625,000. For claims related to 
breaches by LifeWorks or the selling shareholders of “fundamental” representations” and representations relating to 
taxes, the Company will be entitled to indemnification for the full amount of such losses (from the first dollar) after 
the aggregate losses exceed US$1,625,000. For claims related to all other breaches by LifeWorks or the selling 
shareholders of their representations and warranties, the Company will only be entitled to indemnification for losses 
to the extent of any such excess above US$1,625,000. Subject to limited exceptions, in no event shall the aggregate 
liability of the selling shareholders for any and all losses (i) with respect to a breach of the tax representations, 
exceed amounts available in the indemnification escrow account funded by the selling shareholders in connection 
with the Acquisition, or (ii) with respect to a breach of any other representations, exceed US$1,625,000 (which such 
amount shall be satisfied exclusively from the escrow account). The indemnification escrow account will be 
US$3,000,000 funded at the Acquisition Closing and held in escrow for a period of 24 months (subject to any then-
pending disputes). 

Pursuant to the Purchase Agreement, Chubb Transactional Risk issued a representation and warranty insurance 
policy to the Company, which will be effective following payment of the representation and warranty insurance 
premium on the Acquisition Closing. The policy limit for the representation and warranty insurance policy is 
US$30,000,000.  The insurer will not have any obligation to cover losses arising from breaches of the 
representations and warranties by LifeWorks or the selling shareholders until the Company has suffered aggregate 
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losses in excess of US$3,250,000 (reduced to US$1,625,000 after the 12-month anniversary of the Acquisition 
Closing). 

The Company has also agreed to indemnify the selling shareholders and their respective officers, directors, 
employees, agents, representatives, successors and permitted assigns for breaches of the Company’s representations, 
warranties and covenants.  Subject to limited exceptions, the Company will not have any obligation to indemnify the 
selling shareholders until the selling shareholders have suffered aggregate losses on a cumulative basis equal to 
US$1,625,000. Subject to limited exceptions, in no event shall the aggregate liability of the Company for any and all 
losses with respect to a breach of its representations exceed US$1,625,000. 

The Acquisition is subject to the satisfaction or waiver of certain customary closing conditions, including, among 
other things: delivery of certain ancillary closing documents relating to the Acquisition and obtaining the conditional 
approval of the TSX for the issuance of Common Shares to Jamie True and Jack Bekhor in connection with the 
Acquisition (which conditional approval has been obtained). 

The Purchase Agreement may be terminated: (a) by mutual agreement of the Company and LifeWorks, (b) by either 
the Company or LifeWorks, if the transactions contemplated by the Purchase Agreement have not been 
consummated on or prior to November 6, 2018, (c) by either the Company or LifeWorks if there has been a breach 
by the Company, LifeWorks or any selling shareholder which would result in the failure to satisfy one or more 
conditions set forth in the Purchase Agreement, and where such breach is incapable of being cured or has not been 
cured prior to the earlier of (i) 20 days after written notice of such breach is provided to the non-breaching party(ies) 
and (ii) November 6, 2018, or (d) by either the Company or LifeWorks in the event that (i) there is any law that 
makes consummation of the Acquisition Closing illegal or (ii) any governmental body has issued an order 
restraining or enjoining the Acquisition Closing. 

FINANCING OF THE ACQUISITION 

General 

The Company intends to finance the cash portion of the purchase price payable in the Acquisition through 
approximately $200 million in cash funded from the net proceeds of the Offering and $188 million by drawing on 
the Amended and Restated Credit Facility described in more detail below. In addition, the Company will issue an 
aggregate of approximately 1,136,009 Common Shares from treasury to certain of the selling shareholders of 
LifeWorks in satisfaction of a portion of the purchase price payable in the Acquisition. 

As the cash portion of the consideration is payable in U.S. dollars, on July 9, 2018 the Company also entered into a 
forward exchange contract and a currency exchange option contract to purchase in aggregate US$310,500,000 to 
reduce the variability in the Canadian dollar equivalent of the cash portion of the purchase price due at the date of 
Acquisition Closing.   

Amended and Restated Credit Facility 

On July 9, 2018 the Company entered into a commitment letter with NBC and NBF to amend and restate the 
Company’s existing credit facility which provided for a revolving facility of $300 million (including a swing line of 
$14 million) (the “Existing Credit Facility”). Pursuant to the proposed amended and restated credit facility 
(the “Amended and Restated Credit Facility”), (i) the Company’s revolving facility will be increased from 
$300 million to $600 million; (ii) the maturity date under the Existing Credit Facility will be extended to five years 
from closing; and (iii) various amendments will be made to certain covenants in the Existing Credit Facility. NBC 
has agreed to backstop the entire $600 million facility in the event that other lenders in the Existing Credit Facility 
syndicate elect not to participate in the Amended and Restated Credit Facility. 

The interest rates for the Amended and Restated Credit Facility will be floating, based on a margin over certain 
referenced rates of interest. The applicable margin may vary up or down depending on the ratio of the Company’s 
consolidated debt to Adjusted EBITDA, as defined in the commitment letter. The Amended and Restated Credit 
Facility will be secured by a general assignment of all the assets of the Company and will require the Company to 
maintain, on a consolidated basis, (1) a debt to Adjusted EBITDA ratio of not more than 3.5:1.0 (or not more than 
4.0:1.0 for the 12-month period immediately following the completion of a permitted acquisition, as defined in the 
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commitment letter, with a purchase price of $50 million or more (including the Acquisition)), and (2) an EBITDA to 
interest expense ratio of not less than 2.0:1.0. 

As security for the Amended and Restated Credit Facility, Morneau Shepell and its subsidiaries, excluding certain 
minor subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Excluded Subsidiaries”) will grant the lenders a security interest 
over all of their respective assets and each of the Company’s subsidiaries (excluding the Excluded Subsidiaries) will 
guarantee the indebtedness under the Amended and Restated Credit Facility. 

The Amended and Restated Credit Facility will be subject to customary terms and conditions for borrowers of this 
nature (on terms consistent with the terms of the Existing Credit Facility), including limits on incurring additional 
indebtedness, granting liens or selling assets without consent of the lenders. The Amended and Restated Credit 
Facility may, in certain circumstances, restrict the Company’s ability to pay dividends on the Common Shares, 
including limiting dividends unless sufficient funds are available for the repayments of indebtedness and the 
payment of interest expenses and taxes. 

The failure to comply with the terms of the Amended and Restated Credit Facility will entitle the lenders to 
accelerate all amounts outstanding under the Amended and Restated Credit Facility, and upon such acceleration, the 
lenders would be entitled to begin enforcement procedures against the assets of the borrowers and their subsidiaries, 
including accounts receivable, work in progress and equipment. The lenders would then be repaid from the proceeds 
of such enforcement proceedings, using all available assets. Only after such repayment and the payment of all other 
secured and unsecured creditors would the holders of Common Shares receive any proceeds from the liquidation of 
the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries. 

The Company’s forward-starting interest rate swap agreement to hedge against the variable interest rate component 
on $50 million notional amount borrowed under the Existing Credit Facility for the period from November 29, 2017 
up to and ending December 20, 2020 will be maintained. 

CONSOLIDATED CAPITALIZATION 

The following table sets forth the consolidated capitalization of the Company as at March 31, 2018 and the pro 
forma consolidated capitalization of the Company as at March 31, 2018, after giving effect to the Offering (but not 
the Over-Allotment Option), the Acquisition and the Amended and Restated Credit Facility. The table should be 
read in conjunction with the pro forma consolidated financial statements of the Company, and the Annual Financial 
Statements and the Interim Financial Statements of the Company incorporated by reference in this Prospectus. 

In thousands of Canadian dollars, 
except number of shares outstanding 

As at December 
31, 2017 
(audited) 

As at March 31, 
2018, before giving 

effect to the Offering, 
Acquisition and 
Amended and 

Restated Credit 
Facility (unaudited) 

As at March 31, 
2018, after giving 

effect to the Offering, 
Acquisition and 
Amended and 

Restated Credit 
Facility (unaudited) 

Bank indebtedness $5,416 $5,284 $5,284 
Long term debt 179,669 182,278 377,778 
Convertible debentures - liability 
component 82,080 82,330 82,330 
Capital    

Convertible debentures – equity 
component 1,045 1,045 1,045 
Accumulated other comprehensive 
loss (2,806) (1,625) (1,625) 
Deficit (223,491) (224,548) (230,185) 
Contributed surplus 27,339 28,549 28,549 
Share capital $558,972 $559,020 $792,802 
Number of Common Shares 
outstanding 53,853,225 53,854,077 62,900,086 
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DESCRIPTION OF THE SUBSCRIPTION RECEIPTS 

The following is a summary of the material attributes and characteristics of the Subscription Receipts and the 
Subscription Receipt Agreement. This summary does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and qualified in 
its entirety by reference to, the terms of the Subscription Receipt Agreement, a copy of which will be filed under the 
Company’s SEDAR profile at www.sedar.com. 

In the event that the closing of the Acquisition occurs on the same date or prior to the date of the closing of the 
Offering, investors in the Offering will receive Common Shares on the Offering Closing instead of Subscription 
Receipts. This summary assumes that Subscription Receipts will be issued on the Offering Closing. 

Overview 

The Subscription Receipts will be issued at the Offering Closing (or the closing of the Over-Allotment Option, as 
the case may be) pursuant to a subscription receipt agreement (the “Subscription Receipt Agreement”) which will 
be dated the date as of the Offering Closing between the Company, the Co-Lead Underwriters, on behalf of the 
Underwriters, and the Subscription Receipt Agent. The proceeds from the sale of the Subscription Receipts, less 
50% of the Underwriters’ Fee in respect of the issue and sale of Subscription Receipts pursuant to the Underwriting 
Agreement and less the Underwriters’ Expenses, will be delivered to and held by the Subscription Receipt Agent 
and invested in short-term obligations of, or guaranteed by, the Government of Canada (or other approved 
investments that would each be a qualified investment for Exempt Plans) pending the earlier to occur of (i) the 
satisfaction or waiver of the Escrow Release Conditions and release of the Escrowed Funds to the Company and (ii) 
the occurrence of a Termination Event. Upon the satisfaction or waiver of the Escrow Release Conditions: (a) one 
Common Share will be automatically issued in exchange for each Subscription Receipt, without payment of 
additional consideration or any further action on the part of the holder; (b) the Dividend Equivalent Payment, if any, 
less applicable withholding taxes, if any, will become payable in respect of each Subscription Receipt; (c) the 
Escrowed Funds (less the remaining half of the Underwriters’ Fee) less any amounts required to pay the Dividend 
Equivalent Payments, if any, will be released by the Subscription Receipt Agent to the Company, which will then be 
utilized to fund a portion of the purchase price of the Acquisition and the Company’s expenses related to the 
Acquisition and the Offering; and (d) the remaining half of the Underwriters’ Fee will be released by the 
Subscription Receipt Agent to the Underwriters. The Escrowed Funds may be subject to a special release to the 
Company or, at its direction, under other escrow conditions, in order to facilitate the actual completion of the 
Acquisition. The Subscription Receipt Agreement will contain customary anti-dilution provisions with respect to the 
Subscription Receipts. 

Upon determining that the Acquisition Closing will occur at or before 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on October 31, 2018 
(the “Deadline”), the Company will execute and deliver to the Subscription Receipt Agent, the Underwriters and the 
Company’s transfer agent a notice of the Acquisition Closing and will issue and deliver the Common Shares (one 
Common Share for each Subscription Receipt then outstanding) to the Subscription Receipt Agent. If the Escrow 
Release Conditions have been satisfied or waived on or before the Deadline, holders of Subscription Receipts will 
automatically receive one Common Share in exchange for each Subscription Receipt held without any further action 
on the part of the holder and become entitled to receive from the Subscription Receipt Agent, without duplication, 
on or about the third business day following the date of the Acquisition Closing, an amount representing the 
Dividend Equivalent Payment, if any, less applicable withholding taxes, if any, for each Subscription Receipt so 
held. The payment of the Dividend Equivalent Payment to a holder of a Subscription Receipt will include such 
holder’s pro rata share of the Earned Interest (provided such amount shall not exceed the Dividend Equivalent 
Payment payable to such holder), and if the Earned Interest is insufficient to pay the Dividend Equivalent Payment 
to such holder, the Company will treat the amount of such shortfall as a reduction in the purchase price of the 
Common Shares issuable to such holder pursuant to the Subscription Receipts held by such holder. To the extent 
that the Dividend Equivalent Payment includes amounts calculated in respect of cash dividends on the Common 
Shares for which record dates have occurred (during the period from and including the Offering Closing to, but 
excluding the date Common Shares are issued or deemed to be issued pursuant to the Subscription Receipt 
Agreement) and have not yet been paid, such amounts shall not be payable to holders of Subscription Receipts, 
unless the Company otherwise elects, until the date that such related cash dividends are paid to shareholders. 
Currently, the Company pays a monthly dividend of $0.065 per Common Share ($0.78 per Common Share on an 
annual basis). The first dividend which purchasers under this Offering may be eligible to receive pursuant to the 
Dividend Equivalent Payment is the dividend expected to be payable on August 15, 2018 to shareholders of record 
on July 31, 2018. If the Escrow Release Conditions have been satisfied or waived on or before the Deadline, the 
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Company shall be entitled to receive the Escrowed Funds (including all Earned Interest, in excess of the Dividend 
Equivalent Payment, if applicable, but less the remaining half of the Underwriters’ Fee) from the Subscription 
Receipt Agent, and the Underwriters shall be entitled to receive the remaining half of the Underwriters’ Fee from the 
Subscription Receipt Agent. Promptly following the Acquisition Closing, the Company will issue a press release 
announcing that the Acquisition Closing has occurred and that the Common Shares have been issued. 

If a Termination Event occurs, the Company will immediately notify the Subscription Receipt Agent and the 
Underwriters, and promptly issue a press release specifying the Termination Event. Upon the occurrence of a 
Termination Event, the subscription evidenced by each Subscription Receipt will be automatically terminated and 
cancelled and each Subscription Receipt will entitle the holder thereof to receive an amount equal to the full 
Subscription Price and his or her pro rata share of the Earned Interest and Deemed Interest, less applicable 
withholding taxes, if any. Despite the fact that 50% of the Underwriters’ Fee and the Underwriters’ Expenses will be 
paid by the Company to the Underwriters from the proceeds from the sale of the Subscription Receipts at the 
Offering Closing, the Company will nonetheless, following a Termination Event, be responsible for payment of any 
shortfall so that the amount received by each holder of a Subscription Receipt is equal to the full Subscription Price 
and his or her pro rata share of the Earned Interest and Deemed Interest. The obligation to make the payment of the 
amounts specified above will be satisfied by mailing payment by cheques payable to the holders of Subscription 
Receipts at such holders’ registered address or by making a wire transfer for the accounts of such holders through 
CDS. Upon the mailing or delivery of a cheque or the making of any wire transfer as provided above (and provided 
such cheque has been honoured for payment, if presented for payment within six months of the date thereof, as the 
case may be) all rights evidenced by the Subscription Receipts relating thereto shall be satisfied and such 
Subscription Receipts shall be void and of no value or effect. 

Holders of Subscription Receipts are not shareholders of the Company and Subscription Receipts do not 
carry any voting rights in the Company. Holders of Subscription Receipts are entitled only to receive 
Common Shares on exchange of their Subscription Receipts, payments in respect of the Dividend Equivalent 
Payment, or to a return of the Subscription Price for the Subscription Receipts together with any payments in 
respect of interest or dividends, in each case as applicable, as described above. 

Amendment of Subscription Receipt Agreement 

From time to time while the Subscription Receipts are outstanding, the Company, the Co-Lead Underwriters and the 
Subscription Receipt Agent may, without the consent of the holders of the Subscription Receipts, amend or 
supplement the Subscription Receipt Agreement for certain purposes, including making any change that, in the 
opinion of the Subscription Receipt Agent, does not prejudice the rights of the holders of Subscription Receipts. The 
Subscription Receipt Agreement provides for other modifications and alterations thereto and to the Subscription 
Receipts issued thereunder by way of a special resolution. The term “special resolution” will be defined in the 
Subscription Receipt Agreement to mean a resolution passed by the affirmative votes of the holders of not less than 
66⅔% of the number of outstanding Subscription Receipts represented and voting at a meeting of Subscription 
Receipt holders or an instrument or instruments in writing signed by the holders of not less than 66⅔% of the 
number of outstanding Subscription Receipts. 

Delivery and Form of Subscription Receipts and Common Shares 

The Subscription Receipts may be represented in either certificated or uncertificated form registered in the name of 
CDS or its nominee and held by, or on behalf of, CDS, as depositary of the Subscription Receipts for the participants 
of CDS (a “CDS-Registered Subscription Receipt Certificate”). 

Each purchaser acquiring a beneficial interest in a Subscription Receipt represented by a CDS-Registered 
Subscription Receipt Certificate will receive a customer confirmation of purchase from the Underwriter from whom 
the beneficial interest is purchased in accordance with the practices and procedures of that Underwriter. Registration 
of ownership and transfers of Subscription Receipts represented by a CDS-Registered Subscription Receipt 
Certificate may be effected through the book-based system administered by CDS or its nominees (with respect to 
interests of participants of CDS) and on the records of participants of CDS (with respect to interests of persons other 
than participants of CDS). The ability of an owner of a beneficial interest in a Subscription Receipt represented by a 
CDS-Registered Subscription Receipt Certificate to pledge such Subscription Receipt or otherwise take action with 
respect to such owner’s interest in such Subscription Receipt (other than through a CDS participant) may be limited 
due to the lack of a physical certificate. 
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Neither the Company, the Underwriters nor the Subscription Receipt Agent shall have any responsibility or liability 
for: (a) any aspect of the records relating to the beneficial ownership of the Subscription Receipts held by CDS or 
any payments relating thereto; (b) maintaining, supervising or reviewing any records relating to the Subscription 
Receipts; or (c) any advice or representation made by or with respect to CDS and contained in this Prospectus and 
relating to the rules governing CDS or any action to be taken by CDS or at the direction of a participant of CDS. The 
rules governing CDS provide that it acts as the agent and depository for the participants of CDS. As a result, 
participants of CDS must look solely to CDS and a purchaser acquiring a beneficial interest in the Subscription 
Receipts represented by a CDS-Registered Subscription Receipt Certificate must look solely to participants of CDS 
for any payments relating to the Subscription Receipts paid by or on behalf of the Company to CDS. 

Common Shares issued upon the exchange of the Subscription Receipts will be delivered electronically through the 
non-certificated inventory (“NCI”) system of CDS. Upon the satisfaction of the Escrow Release Conditions, the 
Company, via its transfer agent, will electronically deliver the Common Shares registered to CDS or its nominee. 
Transfers of ownership of the Common Shares in Canada must be effected through a CDS participant, which 
includes securities brokers and dealers, banks and trust companies. All rights of shareholders who hold Common 
Shares in CDS must be exercised through, and all payments or other property to which such shareholders are 
entitled, will be made or delivered by CDS or the CDS participant through which the shareholder holds such 
Common Shares. A holder of Common Shares participating in the NCI system will not be entitled to a certificate or 
other instrument from the Company or the Company’s transfer agent evidencing that person’s interest in or 
ownership of Common Shares, nor, to the extent applicable, will such holder be shown on the records maintained by 
CDS, except through an agent who is a CDS participant. The ability of a beneficial owner of Common Shares to 
pledge such Common Shares or otherwise take action with respect to such owner’s interest in such Common Shares 
(other than through a CDS participant) may be limited due to the lack of a physical certificate. 

USE OF PROCEEDS 

The estimated net proceeds of the Offering of the Subscription Receipts by the Company, assuming the Acquisition 
Closing occurs and the release of the Escrowed Funds, after deducting the portion of the Underwriters’ Fee payable 
by the Company and the estimated expenses of the Offering, are expected to be approximately $200 million 
excluding Earned Interest, if any, on the Escrowed Funds and the transaction costs associated with the Acquisition. 
The Company intends to use the net proceeds of the Offering to fund a portion of the purchase price of the 
Acquisition, and the Company’s expenses related to the Acquisition and the Offering. See “The Acquisition”. The 
balance of the proceeds of the Offering that are not used to fund the purchase price of the Acquisition and the 
Company’s expenses related to the Acquisition and the Offering will be used for working capital purposes. If the 
Over-Allotment Option is exercised, the additional net proceeds received by the Company will be used to repay 
indebtedness incurred in connection with the Acquisition and/or for general corporate purposes. 

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION 

Pursuant to the terms and conditions of the Underwriting Agreement, the Company has agreed to issue and sell, and 
the Underwriters have agreed to purchase, on the Offering Closing, being on or about July 27, 2018 or any other 
date as may be agreed upon by the Company and the Underwriters, but in any event not later than August 24, 2018, 
7,910,000 Subscription Receipts at a price of $26.55 per Subscription Receipt, for aggregate gross proceeds of 
$210,010,050 payable in cash (less 50% of the Underwriters’ Fee) to the Subscription Receipt Agent against 
delivery of the Subscription Receipts. 

The Subscription Receipts are being offered to the public in all of the provinces of Canada. The terms of the 
Offering, including the Subscription Price were determined by negotiation between the Company and the Co-Lead 
Underwriters, on behalf of the Underwriters. 

The Underwriting Agreement provides that the Company will pay the Underwriters a fee equal to 4% of the gross 
proceeds from the sale of the Subscription Receipts on account of their services rendered in connection with the 
Offering. The Underwriters’ Fee in respect of the Subscription Receipts is payable as to 50% upon the Offering 
Closing and 50% upon the Acquisition Closing. The Underwriters’ Fee payable in respect of the Subscription 
Receipts upon the Acquisition Closing will be payable from the Escrowed Funds under the Subscription Receipt 
Agreement, in accordance with the terms and conditions thereof. If the Acquisition is not completed and the 
Escrowed Funds are refunded to the purchasers of Subscription Receipts, the Underwriters’ Fee in respect of the 
Subscription Receipts shall consist solely of the 50% amount payable at the Offering Closing. In the event that the 
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closing date of the Acquisition occurs prior to or concurrent with the Offering Closing, investors in the offering will 
receive Common Shares on the Offering Closing instead of Subscription Receipts and the Underwriters’ fee in 
respect of the Common Shares will be payable as to 100% on the Offering Closing. This Prospectus also qualifies 
the distribution of such Common Shares. 

Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, the Company has granted to the Underwriters an option, exercisable at the 
Underwriters’ sole option and without obligation, in whole or in part, and at any time not later than the earlier of (i) 
30 days after the Offering Closing and (ii) the occurrence of a Termination Event, to purchase up to 791,000 
additional Subscription Receipts at a price of $26.55 per additional Subscription Receipt. If the Over-Allotment 
Option is exercised in full, the total price to the public, Underwriters’ Fee and net proceeds (before deducting the 
expenses of this Offering) will be $231,011,550, $9,240,462 and $221,771,088, respectively. If the Over-Allotment 
Option is exercised in whole or in part following the completion of the Acquisition, an equal number of Common 
Shares will be issued in lieu of Subscription Receipts. This Prospectus qualifies the distribution of the Over-
Allotment Option. A purchaser who acquires Subscription Receipts forming part of the Underwriters’ over-
allocation position, or Common Shares issuable in lieu of Subscription Receipts if the closing of the Over-Allotment 
Option occurs concurrently with or following the Acquisition Closing, acquires those securities under this 
Prospectus, regardless of whether the over-allocation position is ultimately filled through the exercise of the Over-
Allotment Option or secondary market purchases. If the Over-Allotment Option is exercised, the proceeds received 
by the Company will be used to repay debt incurred in connection with the Acquisition and/or for general corporate 
purposes. See “Use of Proceeds”. 

Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, the Company will pay the Underwriters a fee equal to 4% of the gross 
proceeds of the Over-Allotment Option sold by the Company if the Over-Allotment Option is exercised. 50% of 
such Underwriters’ Fee will be payable upon closing of the exercise of the Over-Allotment Option and, if 
applicable, the remaining 50% upon the Acquisition Closing, provided, however, that if the closing of the Over-
Allotment Option occurs concurrently with or following the Acquisition Closing, the Underwriters will receive 
100% of the Underwriters’ Fee in respect of the Over-Allotment Option on the closing date of the Over-Allotment 
Option. 

The obligations of the Underwriters under the Underwriting Agreement are several and not joint. Each Underwriter 
may be entitled, at its option, without liability, to terminate its obligations to purchase the Subscription Receipts, by 
written notice to that effect given to the Company at or prior to the Offering Closing if, prior to the Offering 
Closing: (i) any inquiry, investigation or other proceeding is commenced or any order is issued under or pursuant to 
any statute of Canada or of any province of Canada, or by any stock exchange or other regulatory authority (other 
than an inquiry, investigation, proceeding or order based upon the activities of any of the Underwriters), or the tax 
opinions delivered under the Underwriting Agreement are revoked or materially modified in a manner not 
favourable to purchasers of the Subscription Receipts, or there is any change of law or regulation, or the 
interpretation or administration thereof, which in the reasonable opinion of the Underwriters, or any of them, 
operates to prevent or materially restrict the trading in the Subscription Receipts or any other securities of the 
Company or the distribution of the Subscription Receipts; (ii) there shall occur or be discovered any material 
change, or any change in a material fact, or there shall exist any material fact which is, or may be, of such a nature 
as to render the Prospectus or any amendment thereto, untrue, false or misleading in a material respect or result in a 
misrepresentation (other than a change or fact related solely to any of the Underwriters), which in the reasonable 
opinion of the Underwriters, or any of them, would be expected to have a material adverse effect on the market price 
or value of the Subscription Receipts or the Common Shares; or (iii) there should be announced, develop, occur or 
come into effect or existence any event, action, state, condition or major financial occurrence of national or 
international consequence, or any action, law or regulation, inquiry, which, in the reasonable opinion of the 
Underwriters, or any of them, materially adversely affects, or will materially adversely affect, the financial markets 
in Canada or the business, operations or affairs of Morneau Shepell, taken as a whole. If an Underwriter fails to 
purchase the Subscription Receipts which it has agreed to purchase, the other Underwriters may, but are not 
obligated to, purchase the Subscription Receipts. The Underwriters are, however, obligated to take up and pay for all 
Subscription Receipts if any securities are purchased under the Underwriting Agreement. 

There is currently no market through which the Subscription Receipts may be sold and purchasers may not 
be able to resell the Subscription Receipts purchased under this Prospectus. 

Subject to certain exceptions, the Company has agreed that it will not issue any additional Common Shares or 
securities convertible into Common Shares for a period of 90 days from the Offering Closing without the prior 
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written consent of the Co-Lead Underwriters, which consent may not be unreasonably withheld or delayed, provided 
that the Co-Lead Underwriters’ prior written consent shall not be required for the issuance of securities to satisfy 
existing instruments already issued as of the date hereof and to satisfy obligations under the Company’s share or 
option plans or other existing employee purchase plans, or under any rights plan adopted from time to time by the 
Company. 

The Underwriters propose to offer the Subscription Receipts initially at the Subscription Price. After the 
Underwriters have made a reasonable effort to sell all of the Subscription Receipts offered under this Prospectus at 
such price, the initially stated Subscription Price may be decreased, and further changed from time to time, by the 
Underwriters to an amount not greater than the initially stated Subscription Price and, in such case, the 
compensation realized by the Underwriters will be decreased by the amount that the aggregate price paid by the 
purchasers for the Subscription Receipts is less than the gross proceeds paid by the Underwriters to the Company. 

Pursuant to policy statements of certain securities regulators, the Underwriters may not, throughout the period of 
distribution, bid for or purchase Subscription Receipts. The foregoing restriction is subject to exceptions, on the 
condition that the bid or purchase is not engaged in for the purpose of creating actual or apparent active trading in, 
or raising the price of, the Subscription Receipts. These exceptions include bids or purchases permitted under the 
bylaws and rules of the TSX relating to market stabilization and passive market making activities and bids or 
purchases made for and on behalf of a customer where the order was not solicited during the period of distribution. 
Under the first mentioned exception, in connection with this Offering, the Underwriters may over-allot or effect 
transactions that stabilize or maintain the market price of the Subscription Receipts and/or the Common Shares at 
levels other than those which might otherwise prevail in the open market. Those transactions, if commenced, may be 
interrupted or discontinued at any time during the Offering. 

The Subscription Receipts have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act or any state 
securities laws. Accordingly, the Subscription Receipts may not be offered, sold or delivered within the United 
States, and each Underwriter has agreed that it will not offer, sell or deliver the Subscription Receipts within the 
United States, its territories or possessions or other areas subject to its jurisdiction, except in accordance with the 
Underwriting Agreement pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities Act 
provided by Rule 144A thereunder (“Rule 144A”) and in compliance with applicable state securities laws. In 
addition, until 40 days after the commencement of the Offering, any offer or sale of the Subscription Receipts 
offered hereby, or any Common Shares issued pursuant to the Subscription Receipts, within the United States by any 
dealer (whether or not participating in the Offering) may violate the registration requirements of the U.S. Securities 
Act if such offer or sale is made otherwise than in accordance with Rule 144A. The Underwriting Agreement also 
provides that the Underwriters will offer and sell the Subscription Receipts outside of the United States only in 
accordance with Regulation S under the U.S. Securities Act. 

This Prospectus does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy the Subscription Receipts in 
the United States. 

Pursuant to the Underwriting Agreement, the Company has agreed to indemnify and hold harmless the Underwriters 
and their respective officers, directors, employees and agents against certain liabilities. 

Subscriptions for the Subscription Receipts will be received subject to rejection or allotment in whole or in part and 
the right is reserved to close the subscription books at any time without notice. The Offering will be conducted 
under the book–based system administered by CDS. Subscription Receipts must be purchased or transferred through 
a CDS participant and all rights of holders of Subscription Receipts must be exercised through, and all payments or 
other property to which such holder is entitled will be made or delivered by, CDS or the CDS participant through 
which the holder of Subscription Receipts holds such Subscription Receipts. Beneficial owners of Subscription 
Receipts will not, except in certain limited circumstances, be entitled to receive physical certificates evidencing their 
ownership of Subscription Receipts or Common Shares issuable upon exchange of Subscription Receipts. See 
“Description of the Subscription Receipts – Delivery and Form of Subscription Receipts and Common Shares”. 

The TSX has conditionally approved the listing of the Subscription Receipts (including the Subscription Receipts 
issuable pursuant to the Over-Allotment Option) and the Common Shares issuable upon exchange of the 
Subscription Receipts. Listing is subject to the Company fulfilling all of the listing requirements of the TSX on or 
before October 11, 2018. 
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Each of TDS, NBF, CIBC World Markets Inc., Scotia Capital Inc. and BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc. are affiliates 
of banks that are lenders to the Company or its subsidiaries under the Existing Credit Facility. NBC, an 
affiliate of NBF, has also committed to underwrite the entire amount available under the Amended and 
Restated Credit Facility. In addition, TDS advised the Company in connection with the Acquisition and, in 
the ordinary course of business, certain of the Underwriters and/or their affiliates have provided and/or may 
provide in the future investment banking, commercial banking and/or other financial services to the 
Company for which they have received or will receive compensation. Accordingly, the Company may be 
considered a “connected issuer” of each of TDS, NBF, CIBC World Markets Inc., Scotia Capital Inc. and 
BMO Nesbitt Burns Inc. within the meaning of applicable Canadian securities legislation. 

DESCRIPTION OF THE COMMON SHARES 

The authorized capital of the Company consists of an unlimited number of Common Shares and 10 million preferred 
shares of the Company issuable in series. As at the date of this Prospectus, 53,883,907 Common Shares are issued 
and outstanding and no Preferred Shares are issued and outstanding. Holders of Common Shares are entitled to 
receive notice of and to attend any meeting of shareholders of the Company and to one vote per Common Share at 
any such meetings, to receive dividends if, as and when declared by the Company’s board of directors, and to 
receive on a pro rata basis the remaining property and assets of the Company upon its dissolution or winding up. 

PRIOR SALES 

The following table sets forth the details regarding all issuances of Common Shares and securities that are 
convertible or exchangeable into Common Shares for the 12-month period prior to the date of this Prospectus.  Each 
of the issuances set forth in the table below were issuances of Common Shares under the Company’s Long Term 
Incentive Plan to employees or former employees.   

Date of Issuance 
Number of Common Shares 

Issued Price per Common Share ($) 

August 1, 2017 2,942 21.119 
August 30, 2017 9,617 20.369 
December 13, 2017 26,783 21.631 
December 13, 2017 2,836 21.471 
December 15, 2017 12,275 22.427 
December 15, 2017 6,460 22.427 
March 16, 2018 852 24.295 
April 4, 2018 2,383 24.295 
May 15, 2018 946 25.2793 
June 4, 2018 22,107 25.0409 
June 7, 2018 2,946 25.04 
June 15, 2018 1,448 25.2793 

 
PRICE RANGE AND VOLUME OF TRADING OF COMMON SHARES 

The Common Shares are listed and posted for trading on the TSX under the symbol “MSI”. The following table 
shows the monthly range of high and low prices per Common Share and total monthly volumes traded on the TSX 
for the 12-month period prior to the date of this Prospectus. 

Month 

Price per Common 
Share ($)  

Monthly High 

Price per Common 
Share ($)  

Monthly Low 
Total Monthly 

Volume 

July 2017 .............................................................................   $21.13 $20.02 715,501 
August 2017 .........................................................................   $20.96 $19.80 874,786 
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Month 

Price per Common 
Share ($)  

Monthly High 

Price per Common 
Share ($)  

Monthly Low 
Total Monthly 

Volume 

September 2017 ...................................................................   $21.27 $20.32 1,149,073 
October 2017 .......................................................................   $21.55 $20.00 2,145,370 
November 2017 ...................................................................   $22.25 $21.12 1,066,622 
December 2017 ....................................................................   $22.74 $21.60 1,020,025 
January 2018 ........................................................................   $22.93 $22.00 1,166,788 
February 2018 ......................................................................   $24.08 $22.44 3,131,923 
March 2018 ..........................................................................   $25.91 $23.18 3,197,510 
April 2018 ............................................................................   $25.99 $25.10 1,617,402 
May 2018 .............................................................................   $25.80 $23.94 1,113,795 
June 2018 .............................................................................   $27.91 $25.50 2,143,165 

July 1 to July 19, 2018 .........................................................   $28.04 $26.73 2,112,642 
 
On July 6, 2018, being the last day on which the Common Shares traded prior to the public announcement of the 
Offering, the closing price of the Common Shares on the TSX was $27.17. On July 19, 2018, being the last trading 
day prior to the date of this Prospectus, the closing price of the Common Shares on the TSX was $27.86. 

CERTAIN CANADIAN FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS 

In the opinion of Goodmans LLP, counsel to the Company, and Torys LLP, counsel to the Underwriters, the 
following is a summary of the principal Canadian federal income tax considerations under the Tax Act generally 
applicable as of the date hereof to a purchaser who acquires, as beneficial owner, Subscription Receipts or Common 
Shares pursuant to this Prospectus and Common Shares on the exchange of such Subscription Receipts (collectively, 
the “Securities”). This summary is applicable to such a purchaser who, for purposes of the Tax Act and at all 
relevant times, (i) is or is deemed to be resident in Canada, (ii) deals at arm’s length with the Company, the 
Underwriters and a subsequent purchaser of the Securities, (iii) is not affiliated with the Company, the Underwriters 
or a subsequent purchaser of the Securities and (iv) holds the Securities as capital property (in this section of the 
Prospectus, referred to as a “Holder”). The Securities generally will be capital property to a Holder provided that 
the Holder does not hold, and is not deemed to hold, such Securities in the course of carrying on a business and has 
not acquired them in a transaction or transactions considered to be an adventure or concern in the nature of trade. 
Certain Holders who might not otherwise be considered to hold their Common Shares as capital property may, in 
certain circumstances, be entitled to make an irrevocable election in accordance with subsection 39(4) of the 
Tax Act to have such Common Shares, and any other “Canadian security” (as defined in the Tax Act) owned in the 
taxation year in which the election is made, and in all subsequent taxation years, deemed to be capital property. This 
election will not be applicable to Subscription Receipts. Holders who do not hold their Securities as capital property 
should consult their own tax advisors regarding their particular circumstances. 

This summary does not apply to a Holder: (i) that is a “financial institution” subject to the mark-to-market rules in 
the Tax Act; (ii) an interest in which would be a “tax shelter investment” within the meaning of the Tax Act; 
(iii) that is a “specified financial institution”, as defined in the Tax Act; (iv) that has elected to determine its 
Canadian tax results in a foreign currency pursuant to the “functional currency” reporting rules in the Tax Act; or 
(v) that has entered into a “derivative forward agreement”, as defined in the Tax Act, with respect to the Holder’s 
Subscription Receipts or Common Shares. All such Holders should consult their own tax advisors to determine the 
tax consequences to them of acquiring, holding and disposing of Securities. In addition, this summary does not 
address the deductibility of interest by a purchaser who has borrowed money to acquire Subscription Receipts or 
Common Shares under this Offering. 

This summary is based on the current provisions of the Tax Act, all specific proposals to amend the Tax Act 
publicly announced by or on behalf of the Minister of Finance (Canada) before the date hereof (“Proposed 
Amendments”) and counsel’s understanding of the current published administrative policies and assessing practices 
of the Canada Revenue Agency. No assurance can be given that the Proposed Amendments will be enacted in the 
form proposed or at all. Except for the Proposed Amendments, this summary does not take into account or anticipate 
any changes in the law, whether by legislative, governmental or judicial action or interpretation, nor does it address 
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any provincial, territorial or foreign tax considerations, which may differ significantly from those discussed herein 
or take into account any changes in the administrative practices or assessing policies of the Canada Revenue 
Agency. 

This summary is based upon counsel’s understanding that a Subscription Receipt is an agreement to acquire one or 
more Common Shares on the satisfaction of certain conditions. This position has not, to the knowledge of counsel, 
been the subject of a judicial determination in Canada and counsel have not applied for advance income tax rulings 
from the Canada Revenue Agency in respect of the Offering. 

This summary is of a general nature only and is not exhaustive of all possible Canadian federal income tax 
considerations applicable to an investment in Securities. The income and other tax consequences of acquiring, 
holding or disposing of Securities will vary depending on a purchaser’s particular status and circumstances, 
including the province or territory in which the purchaser resides or carries on business. This summary is not 
intended to be, nor should it construed to be, legal or tax advice to any particular purchaser. Purchasers 
should consult their own tax advisors for advice with respect to the income tax consequences of an investment 
in Securities in their own circumstances. 

Exchange of Subscription Receipts 

A Holder will not realize a gain or loss on the exchange of a Subscription Receipt for a Common Share pursuant to 
the terms of the Subscription Receipt Agreement. The cost to a Holder of a Common Share received in exchange for 
a Subscription Receipt will be the subscription price for the Subscription Receipt, plus the Holder’s pro rata share of 
any Earned Interest that is included in the Holder’s income and remitted to the Company upon the acquisition of the 
Common Share pursuant to the Subscription Receipt Agreement, less any amount treated as a reduction in the 
purchase price of the Common Share (see “– Dividend Equivalent Payment” below). 

The adjusted cost base to a Holder of Common Shares issued pursuant to the terms of the Subscription Receipts at 
any time will be determined by averaging the cost of such Common Shares with the adjusted cost base of any other 
Common Shares owned by the Holder as capital property at such time. 

Dividend Equivalent Payment 

As described above under “Description of the Subscription Receipts”, upon the satisfaction or waiver of the Escrow 
Release Conditions on or before the Deadline, Holders will automatically receive one Common Share in exchange 
for each Subscription Receipt held and be entitled to receive from the Subscription Receipt Agent an amount 
representing the Dividend Equivalent Payment, if any, for each Subscription Receipt so held. The payment of the 
Dividend Equivalent Payment to a Holder will include such Holder’s pro rata share of the Earned Interest (provided 
such amount shall not exceed the Dividend Equivalent Payment payable to such Holder). The taxation of any such 
Earned Interest paid to a Holder as part of the payment of a Dividend Equivalent Payment is described under “– Pro 
Rata Share of Interest” below. If the amount of such interest is less than the Dividend Equivalent Payment, the 
amount of the shortfall will be treated as a reduction in the purchase price of the Common Share issuable to such 
Holder pursuant to the Subscription Receipt held by such Holder. Any such amount generally will not be included in 
the Holder’s income and should reduce the cost to the Holder of the Holder’s Common Share acquired on the 
exchange of the Subscription Receipt. 

For greater certainty, the Dividend Equivalent Payment will not be treated as a dividend for the purposes of the Tax 
Act and no part of the Dividend Equivalent Payment will benefit from the gross-up and dividend tax credit rules 
normally applicable in respect of taxable dividends received by individuals from “taxable Canadian corporations” 
(as defined in the Tax Act). Where the Dividend Equivalent Payment is received by a corporation, the amount will 
not be deductible in computing the corporation’s taxable income and will not result in a requirement to pay Part IV 
tax (see “– Pro Rata Share of Interest” below). 

Termination Event 

As described above under “Description of the Subscription Receipts”, if a Termination Event occurs, Holders of the 
Subscription Receipts will be entitled to receive from the Subscription Receipt Agent an amount equal to the 
subscription price therefor and their pro rata share of Earned Interest and Deemed Interest. 
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In this event, an amount equal to the Earned Interest will be, and Deemed Interest should be, required to be included 
in the income of such Holders, as described under “– Pro Rata Share of Interest” below. Any such amount on 
account of Earned Interest and Deemed Interest paid to a Holder that is included in the Holder’s income will be 
excluded from the Holder’s proceeds of disposition of a Subscription Receipt. 

In the event that a Holder becomes entitled to the repayment of the subscription price for a Subscription Receipt as a 
consequence of a Termination Event, the repayment of the subscription price for the Subscription Receipt out of the 
Escrowed Funds will generally result in the Holder realizing a capital gain (or capital loss) equal to the amount by 
which the proceeds of disposition are greater (or less) than the aggregate of the Holder’s adjusted cost base 
immediately before such disposition and any reasonable costs of disposition (see “– Capital Gains and Losses” 
below). A Holder’s cost of a Subscription Receipt will generally be the subscription price therefor. The adjusted cost 
base to a Holder of a Subscription Receipt at any time will be determined by averaging the cost of such Subscription 
Receipt with the adjusted cost base of any other Subscription Receipts owned by the Holder as capital property at 
such time. 

Pro Rata Share of Interest 

A Holder that is a corporation, partnership, unit trust or any trust of which a corporation or a partnership is a 
beneficiary will be required to include in computing its income for a taxation year any interest accrued or deemed to 
have accrued to the Holder on the Escrowed Funds, to the end of the Holder’s taxation year, or that is receivable or 
received by the Holder before the end of that taxation year, except to the extent that such interest was included in 
computing the Holder’s income for a preceding taxation year. This will include any Earned Interest and should 
include Deemed Interest, whether or not such amounts are received or receivable by such Holder as full or partial 
payment of a Dividend Equivalent Payment (if any) or otherwise.  

Any other Holder will be required to include in computing its income for a taxation year such interest as is received 
or receivable by the Holder or by the Subscription Receipt Agent on behalf of the Holder in that taxation year, 
depending on the method regularly followed by the Holder in computing income, to the extent that such interest was 
not included in computing the Holder’s income for a preceding taxation year. 

A Holder that is, throughout the relevant taxation year, a “Canadian-controlled private corporation” (as defined in 
the Tax Act) may be liable to pay an additional refundable tax on its “aggregate investment income” (as defined in 
the Tax Act) for the year, including interest income. 

Other Dispositions of Subscription Receipts 

A disposition or deemed disposition by a Holder of a Subscription Receipt (other than on the exchange thereof for a 
Common Share pursuant to the terms of the Subscription Receipt Agreement or on the repayment of the subscription 
price therefor by the Company if a Termination Event occurs, each as described above) will generally result in the 
Holder realizing a capital gain (or capital loss) equal to the amount by which the proceeds of disposition are greater 
(or less) than the aggregate of the Holder’s adjusted cost base immediately before such disposition and any 
reasonable costs of disposition (see “– Capital Gains and Losses” below). A Holder’s cost of a Subscription Receipt 
will generally be the subscription price therefor. 

The adjusted cost base to a Holder of a Subscription Receipt at any time will be determined by averaging the cost of 
such Subscription Receipt with the adjusted cost base of any other Subscription Receipts owned by the Holder as 
capital property at such time. 

Dividends on Common Shares 

A Holder will be required to include in computing its income for a taxation year any taxable dividends received or 
deemed to be received on the Common Shares. 

In the case of a Holder who is an individual (other than certain trusts), such dividend will be subject to the gross-up 
and dividend tax credit rules normally applicable under the Tax Act to taxable dividends received from “taxable 
Canadian corporations” (as defined in the Tax Act). A dividend will be eligible for the enhanced gross-up and 
dividend tax credit provided that such dividend is designated by the Company as an “eligible dividend” (within the 
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meaning of the Tax Act). There may be limitations on the ability of the Company to designate dividends as eligible 
dividends. 

Taxable dividends received by a Holder who is an individual (including certain trusts) may result in such Holder 
being liable for alternative minimum tax under the Tax Act. Such Holders should consult their own tax advisors in 
this regard. 

In the case of a Holder that is a corporation, the amount of any taxable dividend that is included in computing the 
corporation’s income for a taxation year will generally be deductible in computing its taxable income. In certain 
circumstances, subsection 55(2) of the Tax Act will treat a taxable dividend received or deemed to be received by a 
Holder that is a corporation as proceeds of disposition or a capital gain. Holders that are corporations should consult 
their own tax advisors having regard to their own circumstances. 

A Holder that is a “private corporation” or a “subject corporation” (as such terms are defined in the Tax Act) will 
generally be liable to pay a tax under Part IV of the Tax Act, which is refundable in certain circumstances, on 
dividends received or deemed to be received to the extent such dividends are deductible in computing the Holder’s 
taxable income. 

Disposition of Common Shares 

Upon the disposition or deemed disposition of Common Shares by a Holder, other than to the Company unless 
purchased by the Company in the open market in the manner in which shares are normally purchased by any 
member of the public in the market, the Holder generally will realize a capital gain (or a capital loss) equal to the 
amount by which the proceeds of disposition are greater (or less) than the aggregate of the Holder’s adjusted cost 
base immediately before such disposition and any reasonable costs of disposition (see “– Capital Gains and Losses” 
below). The adjusted cost base to a Holder of Common Shares acquired pursuant to this Prospectus will be 
determined by averaging the cost of such acquired shares with the adjusted cost base of all other Common Shares of 
the Company owned by such holder as capital property at that time. The adjusted cost base to a Holder of Common 
Shares issued pursuant to the terms of Subscription Receipts will be determined as described under “– Exchange of 
Subscription Receipts” above. 

Capital Gains and Losses 

One-half of any capital gain (a “taxable capital gain”) realized by a Holder on the disposition of a Security will be 
included in the Holder’s income under the Tax Act. One-half of any capital loss (an “allowable capital loss”) 
realized on the disposition of a Security will be deducted against any taxable capital gains realized by the Holder in 
the year of disposition, and any excess of allowable capital losses over taxable capital gains for such year may be 
carried back and deducted in any of the three preceding taxation years or carried forward and deducted in any 
subsequent taxation year against net taxable capital gains in those years, subject to the detailed rules contained in the 
Tax Act. 

Capital gains realized by a Holder who is an individual (including certain trusts) may result in such Holder being 
liable for alternative minimum tax under the Tax Act. Such Holders should consult their own tax advisors in this 
regard. 

The amount of any capital loss realized by a Holder that is a corporation on the disposition of a Common Share may 
be reduced by the amount of dividends received or deemed to be received by it on such Common Share (or on a 
share for which the Common Share has been substituted) to the extent and under the circumstances described by the 
Tax Act. Similar rules may apply where a Holder that is a corporation is a member of a partnership or a beneficiary 
of a trust that owns Common Shares, directly or indirectly, through a partnership or trust. Holders to whom these 
rules may be relevant should consult their own tax advisors. 

A Holder that is, throughout the relevant taxation year, a “Canadian-controlled private corporation” (as defined in 
the Tax Act) may be liable to pay an additional refundable tax on its “aggregate investment income” (as defined in 
the Tax Act) for the year, including amounts in respect of taxable capital gains. 
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RISK FACTORS 

An investment in the Subscription Receipts is subject to a number of risks. Before deciding whether to invest in the 
Subscription Receipts, prospective investors should carefully consider the risk factors set forth under the heading 
“Risk Factors” in the Annual Information Form and all of the other information in this Prospectus (including, 
without limitation, the documents incorporated by reference herein). 

The risks described herein and in the documents incorporated by reference in this Prospectus are not the only risks 
that affect the Company. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to the Company, or that the 
Company currently deems immaterial, may also potentially materially adversely affect its business and/or the value 
of the Subscription Receipts and Common Shares. 

Risks Relating to the Offering and the Subscription Receipts 

There is no prior public market for the Subscription Receipts 

There is currently no market through which the Subscription Receipts may be sold and purchasers may not be able 
to resell the Subscription Receipts purchased under this Prospectus. Although the TSX has conditionally approved 
the listing of the Subscription Receipts and the Common Shares issuable upon the exchange of the Subscription 
Receipts, listing is subject to the fulfillment of all listing conditions of the TSX on or before October 11, 2018 and 
there can be no assurance that these conditions will be met. There can be no assurance that an active trading market 
will develop for the Subscription Receipts after the Offering, or if developed, that such a market will be sustained at 
or above the Subscription Price. To the extent that an active trading market for the Subscription Receipts does not 
develop, the liquidity and trading prices of the Subscription Receipts may be adversely affected. The Subscription 
Price was determined by negotiation between the Company and the Co-Lead Underwriters, on behalf of the 
Underwriters, and may not be indicative of the price at which the Subscription Receipts or Common Shares will 
trade following the completion of the Offering. The Company cannot assure investors that the market price of the 
Subscription Receipts or Common Shares will not materially decline below the Subscription Price. 

The market price of the Subscription Receipts and Common Shares may decline or be volatile 

The market price of the Subscription Receipts and Common Shares may decline or be volatile. This may affect the 
ability of holders of Subscription Receipts and Common Shares to sell the Subscription Receipts and Common 
Shares at an advantageous price. The market price for Subscription Receipts and Common Shares may be subject to 
fluctuations in response to numerous factors, many of which are beyond the Company’s control, including the 
following: 

• actual or anticipated fluctuations in the Company’s quarterly results of operations; 

• changes in estimates of the Company’s future results of operations by the Company or securities 
research analysts; 

• adverse changes in general market conditions or economic trends; 

• changes in the economic performance or market valuations of other companies that investors deem 
comparable to the Company; 

• change of the Company’s executive officers and other key personnel; 

• sales of additional Common Shares; 

• significant acquisitions or business combinations, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital 
commitments by or involving the Company or its competitors; and 

• news reports relating to trends, concerns or competitive developments, regulatory changes and other 
related issues in the Company’s industry or target markets. 
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As well, certain institutional investors may base their investment decisions on consideration of the Company’s 
performance against such institutions’ respective investment guidelines and criteria, and failure to meet such criteria 
may result in a limited or no investment in the Common Shares by those institutions, which could adversely affect 
the trading price of the Subscription Receipts and Common Shares. There can be no assurance that fluctuations in 
market price and volume of trading of the Subscription Receipts and Common Shares will not occur. 

The conditions for release of the Escrowed Funds (less the remaining 50% of the Underwriters’ Fee) to the 
Company may not be satisfied prior to the occurrence of a Termination Event 

There can be no assurance that Escrow Release Conditions will be satisfied prior to the occurrence of a Termination 
Event. Each subscriber’s subscription proceeds will be held in escrow pending the satisfaction of the Escrow 
Release Conditions or the occurrence of a Termination Event, and accordingly subscribers will not be able to use 
such funds to take advantage of other investment opportunities that occur prior to the satisfaction of the Escrow 
Release Conditions or the occurrence of a Termination Event nor to participate in any growth in the trading price of 
the Common Shares if the Escrow Release Conditions are not satisfied before the occurrence of a Termination 
Event. Holders of Subscription Receipts have only the rights described under “Description of the Subscription 
Receipts” and as set out in the Subscription Receipt Agreement. 

If the Escrow Release Conditions are not satisfied prior to the occurrence of a Termination Event, the subscription 
evidenced by each Subscription Receipt will be automatically terminated and cancelled, and each Subscription 
Receipt will entitle the holder thereof to receive an amount equal to the Subscription Price and its pro rata share of 
the Earned Interest and the Deemed Interest, less applicable withholding taxes, if any. For greater certainty, in the 
event that the gross proceeds of the Offering are required to be remitted to purchasers of the Subscription Receipts, 
the Company has agreed and has undertaken to pay the Subscription Receipt Agent an amount equal to 50% of the 
Underwriters’ Fee plus the amount of the Underwriters’ Expenses plus the Deemed Interest such that 100% of the 
gross proceeds of the Offering, plus the Earned Interest and the Deemed Interest, would be delivered to purchasers 
of the Subscription Receipts. 

The issuance of Common Shares pursuant to the Subscription Receipts may be diluted by subsequent offerings by the 
Company or because of the exercise or conversion of securities of the Company 

The issuance of the Common Shares in connection with the exchange of the Subscription Receipts may have a 
dilutive effect on the existing holders of Common Shares and the Company may issue additional Common Shares in 
subsequent offerings. While the Company cannot predict the size or timing of future issuances of securities, any 
future issuance of Common Shares may have a dilutive effect on those purchasers who receive Common Shares 
issuable pursuant to Subscription Receipts. 

Rights of holders of Subscription Receipts may change 

From time to time while the Subscription Receipts are outstanding, the Company, the Co-Lead Underwriters and the 
Subscription Receipt Agent, without the consent of the holders of the Subscription Receipts, may amend or 
supplement the Subscription Receipt Agreement for certain purposes, including making any change that does not 
prejudice the rights of the holders of Subscription Receipts. The Subscription Receipt Agreement will provide for 
other modifications and alterations thereto and to the Subscription Receipts issued thereunder by way of a resolution 
passed by the affirmative votes of the holders of not less than 66⅔% of the number of outstanding Subscription 
Receipts represented and voting at a meeting of Subscription Receipt holders or an instrument or instruments in 
writing signed by the holders of not less than 66⅔% of the number of outstanding Subscription Receipts. The 
description of the Subscription Receipt Agreement contained in this Prospectus is qualified in its entirety by the 
provisions of such agreement, which should be reviewed by holders of Subscription Receipts. The Subscription 
Receipt Agreement will be filed by the Company on SEDAR on the date of the Offering Closing. 

Dividends 

Dividends on the Common Shares, and accordingly, the Dividend Equivalent Payment that may be receivable in 
respect of the Subscription Receipts, may fluctuate or may not be declared at all. The board of directors of the 
Company reviews the financial performance of the Company and makes a determination of the appropriate level of 
dividends to be declared. The Company’s ability to pay dividends following the closing of the Acquisition could be 
adversely affected if the free cash flow resulting from the Acquisition does not materialize as expected when 
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coupled with the potentially dilutive effect of the additional Common Shares issued pursuant to the terms of the 
Subscription Receipts. 

Historical financial information and unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information 

The historical financial information relating to LifeWorks included in this Prospectus, including the information 
used to prepare the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information, has been derived on a historical basis 
from the historical accounting records of such entities. The historical financial information may not reflect what the 
respective financial position, results of operations or cash flows of LifeWorks would have been had the Company 
owned such entities during the period presented or what the Company’s financial position, results of operations or 
cash flows will be in the future. The historical financial information does not contain any adjustments to reflect 
changes that may occur in the Company’s cost structure, financing and operations as a result of the Acquisition. 

In preparing the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information in this Prospectus, the Company has given 
effect to, among other items, the Offering and the completion of the Acquisition. The assumptions and estimates 
underlying the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information may be materially different from the 
Company’s actual experience going forward. See “Caution Regarding Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial 
Statements” and “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements”. 

Risks Related to the Acquisition 

Possible failure to complete the Acquisition 

Completion of the Acquisition is subject to the satisfaction of certain closing conditions, including, among other 
things, delivery of certain ancillary closing documents required for closing and obtaining certain third party consents 
(which are currently in progress). As such, there is no assurance that the Acquisition will be completed or, if 
completed, will be on terms that are exactly the same as disclosed in this Prospectus. In the event that the 
Acquisition Closing does not occur prior to a Termination Event, the Subscription Receipts will be cancelled and the 
holders of Subscription Receipts will be entitled to the amount equal to the full Subscription Price and his, her or its 
pro rata share of the Earned Interest and Deemed Interest. Accordingly, holders of Subscription Receipts would not 
participate in any growth in the trading price of the Common Shares and would be restricted from using the funds 
devoted to the acquisition of the Subscription Receipts for any other investment opportunities until such funds are 
returned to the holder. 

The Company intends to use the net proceeds of the Offering to fund a portion of the purchase price of the 
Acquisition and the Company’s expenses related to the Acquisition and the Offering. 

There may be unexpected costs or liabilities related to the Acquisition 

Although the Company has conducted what it believes to be a prudent level of investigation in connection with the 
Acquisition, an unavoidable level of risk remains regarding any undisclosed or unknown claims against, liabilities 
of, or issues concerning, LifeWorks. Following the Acquisition, the Company may discover that it has acquired 
substantial undisclosed liabilities. 

The indemnities contained in the Purchase Agreement (and the corresponding representation and warranty insurance 
policy related to the Acquisition) may not provide the Company with sufficient protection against a breach of the 
applicable selling shareholders’ representations, warranties and covenants and certain of the applicable selling 
shareholders’ indemnification obligations under the Purchase Agreement are subject to, a minimum aggregate 
basket of US$1,625,000 and a maximum aggregate liability of: (i) $3,000,000 with respect to certain representations 
and warranties relating to taxes and (ii) US$1,625,000 with respect to all other representations and warranties. 

None of the selling shareholders are certifying the disclosure in this Prospectus relating to the Acquisition and 
Purchase Agreement, and none of the selling shareholders have certified that such disclosure represents full, true and 
plain disclosure and that the disclosure does not contain a misrepresentation. The selling shareholders will not have 
liability to purchasers of Subscription Receipts pursuant to this Offering if the disclosure relating to the Acquisition 
or LifeWorks contains a misrepresentation. 
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The existence of undisclosed liabilities could have an adverse impact on the Company’s business, financial 
condition and results of operations. 

Retention of LifeWorks’ employees 

The Company may be unable to retain LifeWorks’ employees following the Acquisition. The continuing efforts of 
LifeWorks’ senior management and other employees are important to its success and its business would be harmed 
if it were to lose their services. Although all such senior management and employees are expected to remain with the 
Company following the Acquisition Closing, it is possible that some key personnel may choose to resign, which 
could negatively impact the operations and profitability of the post-Acquisition business. 

The inability to retain LifeWorks’ employees could have an adverse impact on the Company’s business, financial 
condition and results of operations. 

There can be no assurances about the performance of LifeWorks going forward 

Transactions such as the Acquisition involve risks that could materially and adversely affect the Company’s 
business plan, including the failure of the Company to realize the results expected from the Acquisition. There can 
be no assurance that management of the Company will be able to fully realize some or all of the expected benefits of 
the Acquisition, including, among other things, those described under “Rationale for the Acquisition and Investment 
Highlights”. The ability to realize these anticipated benefits will depend in part on successfully consolidating 
functions and integrating operations, procedures and personnel in a timely and efficient manner, as well as on the 
ability to realize growth opportunities and potential synergies from integrating LifeWorks with the Company’s 
existing business following the Acquisition Closing. There is a risk that some or all of the expected benefits will fail 
to materialize, or may not occur within the time periods anticipated by management and there is a risk that the 
Company may incur unexpected costs related to the Acquisition. The realization of some or all of such benefits may 
be affected by a number of factors, many of which are beyond the control of the Company. 

Possible failure to realize expected run-rate synergies 

Although management currently anticipates that the Acquisition will generate significant run-rate synergies of 
approximately $10 million in 2019 and approximately $15 million per year by 2020, inclusion of the projected cost 
synergies in this Prospectus should not be viewed as a representation that the Company will in fact achieve any of 
these run-rate synergies. Actual run-rate synergies, the expenses required to realize the run-rate synergies and the 
sources of the run-rate synergies could differ materially from these estimates, and no assurance can be given that the 
Company will achieve all or any of the run-rate synergies, on the anticipated timelines or otherwise, or that these 
run-rate synergy programs will not have other adverse effects on the Company’s business. In light of these 
significant uncertainties, an investor should not place undue reliance on the estimated cost synergies. See 
“Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements”. 

Currency risk 

Following completion of the Acquisition, a portion of the Company’s revenues will be generated in U.S. dollars, 
pound sterling and Australian dollars while the Company will generally raise funds, incur significant expenses and 
pay dividends in Canadian dollars. At this time, the Company does not have in place an active hedging program to 
offset the foreign exchange risk. Management will continue to assess the Company’s currency hedging strategy from 
time to time. 

Information about LifeWorks may not be correct 

All information relating to LifeWorks and its business has been provided to the Company by LifeWorks, or other 
third parties. Although the Company has conducted what it believes to be a prudent level of investigation, an 
unavoidable level of risk remains regarding the accuracy and completeness of such information. While the Company 
has no reason to believe that the information provided by LifeWorks or other third parties is misleading, untrue or 
incomplete in any material respect, neither the Company nor the Underwriters can assure the accuracy or 
completeness of such information nor can they compel LifeWorks or other third parties to disclose events which 
may have occurred or may affect the completeness or accuracy of such information but which are unknown to the 
Company or the Underwriters. For the avoidance of doubt, nothing stated in this paragraph operates to relieve the 

32 



 

Company or the Underwriters from liability for any misrepresentation contained in this Prospectus under applicable 
Canadian securities laws. 

Risks Related to the integration of LifeWorks into the Company’s business 

In order to achieve the benefits of the Acquisition, the Company will rely upon its ability to successfully retain staff, 
consolidate functions and integrate operations, procedures and personnel in a timely and efficient manner and to 
realize the anticipated growth opportunities from combining LifeWorks and its related operations with those of the 
Company. Although substantially all of the employees of LifeWorks will be offered employment by the Company 
following the Acquisition Closing, the integration of LifeWorks and its related operations requires the dedication of 
management effort, time and resources, which may divert management’s focus and resources from other strategic 
opportunities and from operational matters during the integration process. The integration process may result in the 
disruption of ongoing business and customer relationships that may adversely affect the Company’s ability to 
achieve the anticipated benefits of the Acquisition. 

Rapid technological advancement 

LifeWorks’ unified technology platform was developed relatively recently and continues to be developed and 
enhanced to address rapidly changing technology and increasingly sophisticated customer requirements. Following 
the completion of the Acquisition, the Company must be able to anticipate and react quickly to changes in 
technology or in the marketplace and develop new and enhanced products to meet the demands of the Company’s 
existing and potential customers. There can also be no assurance that the Company will be able to increase adoption 
of LifeWorks’ unified technology platform across its existing EAP-focused clients. If the Company is unable to 
develop products that are competitive in technology and price and that meet client needs, it could have a material 
adverse effect on the Company’s business, financial condition or results of operations. 

Investment in research and development 

LifeWorks currently re-invests a significant percentage of its revenue in research and development. Following the 
Acquisition, the Company expects to continue investing in these areas. Investments in new technology are inherently 
speculative. Commercial success depends on many factors including the degree of innovation of the products 
developed through the Company’s research and development efforts, sufficient support from the Company’s sales 
channel and effective marketing. Management believes that the Company must continue to dedicate resources to its 
research and development efforts in order to maintain the competitive position of the LifeWorks platform. There is 
no guarantee that new products and services will be profitable. 

Potential failure of the Company to protect intellectual property acquired in connection with the Acquisition 

Proprietary protection of LifeWorks’ technology is important to its business. If the Company is unable to enforce 
LifeWorks’ intellectual property rights acquired in connection with the Acquisition, the Company’s competitive 
position may suffer. The Company may need to spend significant resources monitoring its intellectual property 
rights. Its competitive position may be harmed if it cannot detect infringement and enforce its intellectual property 
rights quickly or at all. Competitors might avoid infringement by designing around the Company’s intellectual 
property rights acquired in connection with the Acquisition or by developing non-infringing competing 
technologies. The Company’s ability to enforce intellectual property rights may be unavailable or limited in some 
countries which could make it easier for competitors to capture market share and could result in lost revenues. 

LifeWorks currently relies upon unpatented proprietary know-how and continuing technological innovation and 
other trade secrets to develop and maintain its competitive position. There can be no assurance that existing 
confidentiality agreements will not be breached or provide meaningful protection for the Company’s trade secrets or 
proprietary know-how and adequate remedies in the event of an unauthorized use or disclosure of these trade secrets 
and know-how following the Acquisition. In addition, there can be no assurance that others will not obtain 
knowledge of these trade secrets through independent development or other access by legal means.  
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AUDITORS, TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR AND SUBSCRIPTION RECEIPT AGENT 

The auditors of the Company are KPMG LLP, in Toronto, Ontario (“KPMG Toronto”). KPMG Toronto has 
advised the Company that it is independent in accordance with the Rules of Professional Conduct of the Chartered 
Professional Accountants of Ontario. 

The transfer agent and registrar for the Common Shares is AST Trust Company (Canada) at its principal offices in 
Toronto, Ontario. 

The Subscription Receipt Agent for the Subscription Receipts is AST Trust Company (Canada) at its principal office 
in Toronto, Ontario. 

EXPERTS 

Certain legal matters in connection with the Offering are being reviewed on behalf of the Company by Goodmans 
LLP and on behalf of the Underwriters by Torys LLP. As of the date hereof, the respective partners and associates 
of each firm beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, less than one percent of the securities or other property of the 
Company and its associates and affiliates. 

As noted above, KPMG Toronto are independent auditors with respect to the Company and related companies 
within the meaning of the relevant rules and related interpretations prescribed by the relevant professional bodies in 
Canada and any applicable legislation or regulation. 

The consolidated financial statements of LifeWorks as of December 31, 2017, and for the year then ended, included 
in this Prospectus, have been audited in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the United States 
of America, by KPMG LLP, Minneapolis, Minnesota, independent auditors, as stated in their report appearing 
herein.   

ENFORCEMENT OF JUDGEMENTS AGAINST FOREIGN PERSONS OR COMPANIES 

Kevin Pennington and Michele Trogni, each a director on the Issuer’s board of directors, reside outside of Canada. 
Kevin Pennington and Michele Trogni have each appointed GODA Incorporators Inc. located at 333 Bay Street, 
Suite 3400, Toronto, Ontario, M5H 2S7 as their agent for service of process. Purchasers are advised that it may not 
be possible for investors to enforce judgments obtained in Canada against any person or company that is 
incorporated, continued or otherwise organized under the laws of a foreign jurisdiction or resides outside of Canada, 
even if the party has appointed an agent for service of process. 

PURCHASERS’ STATUTORY AND CONTRACTUAL RIGHTS OF WITHDRAWAL AND RESCISSION 

Securities legislation in certain of the provinces of Canada provides purchasers with the right to withdraw from an 
agreement to purchase securities. This right may be exercised within two business days after receipt or deemed 
receipt of a prospectus and any amendment. In several of the provinces, the securities legislation further provides a 
purchaser with remedies for rescission or, in some jurisdictions, revisions of the price or damages if the prospectus 
and any amendment contains a misrepresentation or is not delivered to the purchaser, provided that the remedies for 
rescission, revisions of the price or damages are exercised by the purchaser within the time limit prescribed by the 
securities legislation of the purchaser’s province. The purchaser should refer to any applicable provisions of the 
securities legislation of the purchaser’s province for the particulars of these rights or consult with a legal advisor. 

Under the Subscription Receipt Agreement, original purchasers of Subscription Receipts pursuant to the Offering 
will have a non-assignable contractual right of rescission, exercisable against the Company following the issuance of 
Common Shares to such purchaser upon the exchange of the Subscription Receipts, to receive the Subscription Price 
paid for each such Subscription Receipt (including any Earned Interest and Deemed Interest) in the event that this 
Prospectus or any amendment hereto contains a misrepresentation, provided that the right of rescission is exercised 
within 180 days of the Offering Closing. This contractual right of rescission will be consistent with the statutory 
right of rescission described under Section 130 of the Securities Act (Ontario), and is in addition to any other right or 
remedy available to original purchasers of Subscription Receipts under Section 130 of the Securities Act (Ontario) or 
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otherwise at law. The purchaser should refer to such statutory provision for the particulars of this statutory right of 
action for damages, or consult with a legal adviser. 

Original purchasers of Subscription Receipts are advised that in certain provinces the statutory right of action for 
damages in connection with a prospectus misrepresentation is limited to the amount paid for the exchangeable 
security that was purchased under a prospectus, and therefore a further payment at the time of exchange may not be 
recoverable in a statutory action for damages. The purchaser should refer to any applicable provisions of the 
securities legislation of the province in which the purchaser resides for the particulars of these rights, or consult with 
a legal advisor.  
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS 

In this Prospectus, the following terms will have the meanings set forth below, unless otherwise indicated. Words 
importing the singular include the plural and vice versa and words importing any gender include all genders: 

“Acquisition” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“Acquisition Closing” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“affiliate” has the meaning ascribed thereto in the Securities Act (Ontario); 

“allowable capital loss” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax 
Considerations – Capital Gains and Losses” of this Prospectus; 

“Amended and Restated Credit Facility” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Financing of the Acquisition”; 

“Annual Financial Statements” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Documents Incorporated by Reference” 
of this Prospectus; 

“Annual Information Form” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Documents Incorporated by Reference” of 
this Prospectus; 

“CDS” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“CDS-Registered Subscription Receipt Certificate” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Description of 
Subscription Receipts – Delivery and Form of Subscription Receipts and Common Shares” of this Prospectus; 

“Co-Lead Underwriters” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“Common Shares” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“Company” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “General Matters”; 

“Deadline” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Description of Subscription Receipts – Overview” of this 
Prospectus; 

“Deemed Interest” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus and described under 
“Description of Subscription Receipts – Overview” of this Prospectus; 

“Dividend Equivalent Payment” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus and 
described under “Description of Subscription Receipts – Overview” of this Prospectus; 

“DPSP” means a deferred profit sharing plan; 

“Earned Interest” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“Escrow Release Conditions” means the satisfaction or waiver of each of the conditions precedent to the 
Acquisition in accordance with the terms of the Purchase Agreement, without amendment or waiver in a manner that 
would be materially adverse to the Company, but for (i) the payment of the purchase price under the Purchase 
Agreement to be satisfied in part by the release of the Escrowed Funds, and (ii) such other conditions precedent that, 
by their nature, are to be satisfied at the time of the Acquisition Closing; 

“Escrowed Funds” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus and described under 
“Description of Subscription Receipts”; 

“Excluded Subsidiaries” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Financing of the Acquisition”; 
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“Exempt Plan” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Eligibility for Investment”; 

“Existing Credit Facility” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Financing of the Acquisition”; 

“forward-looking statements” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-
Looking Statements”; 

“Holder” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations”; 

“IFRS” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Non-IFRS Measures”; 

“Marketing Materials” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Documents Incorporated by Reference”; 

“NBC” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Financing of the Acquisition”; 

“NBF” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“NCI” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Description of Subscription Receipts – Delivery and Form of 
Subscription Receipts and Common Shares”; 

“Non-IFRS Measures” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Non-IFRS Measures”; 

“OBCA” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “The Company” in this Prospectus; 

“Offering” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“Offering Closing” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“Over-Allotment Option” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus and described 
under “Plan of Distribution”; 

“Proposed Amendments” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax 
Considerations”; 

“Prospectus” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“Purchase Agreement” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“RDSP” means a registered disability savings plan; 

“RESP” means a registered education savings plan; 

“RRIF” means a registered retirement income fund; 

“RRSP” means a registered retirement saving plan; 

“Rule 144A” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Plan of Distribution” of this Prospectus; 

“Securities” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax Considerations” of this 
Prospectus; 

“SEDAR” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“Subscription Price” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“Subscription Receipt Agent” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 
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“Subscription Receipt Agreement” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Description of Subscription Receipts 
– Overview” of this Prospectus; 

“Subscription Receipts” means the subscription receipts of the Company being offered pursuant to this Prospectus; 

“Tax Act” means the Income Tax Act (Canada) and the regulations thereunder, as amended; 

“taxable capital gains” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Certain Canadian Federal Income Tax 
Considerations – Capital Gains and Losses” of this Prospectus; 

“TDS” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“Term Sheet” has the meaning ascribed thereto under “Documents Incorporated by Reference”; 

“Termination Event” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“TFSA” means a tax-free savings account; 

“TSX” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“U.S. Securities Act” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“Underwriters” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“Underwriters’ Expenses” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus; 

“Underwriters’ Fee” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus, as described under 
“Plan of Distribution”; and 

“Underwriting Agreement” has the meaning ascribed thereto on the cover page of this Prospectus, as described 
under “Plan of Distribution”. 

38 



 

F 

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 Page 
Unaudited Pro forma Consolidated Financial Statements of Morneau Shepell Inc.  
Pro forma Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at March 31, 2018 F-2 
Pro forma Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income for the year ended 
December 31, 2017 and three months ended March 31, 2018 

F-3 

Notes to the Pro forma Consolidated Financial Statements F-5 
  
Consolidated Financial Statements of LifeWorks Corporation Ltd.  
Independent Auditors’ Report on the 2017 Consolidated Financial Statements F-16 
Independent Accountants’ Review Report on the 2016 Consolidated Financial Statements F-18 
Consolidated Balance Sheets as at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 F-19 
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the year ended December 
31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 

F-20 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity for the year ended December 31, 2017 
and December 31, 2016 

F-21 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 
2016 

F-22 

Notes to Consolidated financial statements F-23 
  
Unaudited Consolidated Financial Statements of LifeWorks Corporation Ltd.  
Interim Consolidated Balance Sheets as at March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017 F-37 
Interim Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Income for the Quarter ended 
March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017 

F-38 

Interim Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Quarter ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 
2017 

F-39 

Notes to Interim Consolidated financial statements F-40 
  
 

F-1 



 

MORNEAU SHEPELL INC. 
Pro Forma Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 

As at March 31, 2018 
(In thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts, unless otherwise stated, unaudited) 

   

Morneau Shepell 
Inc 

 

LifeWorks 
(Note 4) 

  

Pro forma 
adjustments 

(Note 5) 
 

Pro forma 
Consolidated 

Assets 
  

        
           Current assets: 

 
        

Cash and cash equivalents $             -  $    5,827   $    (5,827) (d) $             - 
Trade and other receivables  82,669  16,191   -  98,860 
Unbilled fees 

 
69,862  3,105   -  72,967 

Prepaid expenses and other 10,757  2,944   -  13,701 
Cash and investments held in trust 12,260  -   -  12,260 
Deferred implementation costs 12,541  -   -  12,541 
Interest rate swaps 

 
47  -   -  47 

Total current assets 
 

188,136  28,067   (5,827)  210,376 
           Non-current assets: 

 
        

Deferred implementation costs 40,809  -   -  40,809 
Interest rate swaps 

 
506  -   -  506 

Capital assets 
 

36,925  530   -  37,455 
Intangible assets 

 
222,778  8,153   198,000 (c) 428,931 

Goodwill 
 

324,422  161,022   106,480 (c) 591,924  
Deferred tax asset 

 
600  -   -  600 

Investments in joint ventures 6,763  -   -  6,763 
Total non-current assets 632,803  169,705   304,480  1,106,988 
           Total assets  

 
820,939  197,772   298,653  1,317,364 

           Liabilities and Equity 
 

        
           Current liabilities: 

 
        

           Bank indebtedness  
 

$    5,284  $             -   $             -  $5,284 
Trade and other payables  70,167  11,715   -  81,882 
Income taxes payable  

 
3,255  10,849   (2,033) (g) 12,071 

Deferred revenue 
 

13,442  3,190   -  16,632 
Insurance premium liabilities 12,260  -   -  12,260 
Future consideration related to acquisitions 749  -   -  749 
Dividends payable 

 
3,460  -   -  3,460 

Total current liabilities 108,617  25,754   (2,033)  132,338 
           Non-current liabilities:         
Deferred revenue 

 
12,522  -   -  12,522 

Long-term debt  
 

182,278  -   195,500 (b) 377,778 
Convertible debenture payable 82,330  -   -  82,330 
Future consideration related to acquisitions 929  -   -  929 
Other liabilities  

 
18,300  574   -  18,874 

Provisions  
 

3,797  -   -  3,797 
Deferred tax liability  

 
49,725  958   47,527 (a),(c),(f) 98,210 

Total non-current liabilities 349,881  1,532   243,027  594,440 
           Equity: 

  
        

Share capital  
 

559,020  179,995   53,787 (a),(e) 792,802 
Contributed surplus  

 
28,549  4,763   (4,763) (e) 28,549 

Equity component of convertible debenture  1,045  -   -  1,045 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss  (1,625)  (5,041)   5,041 (e) (1,625) 
Deficit 

  
(224,548)  (9,231)   3,594 (e),(g) (230,185) 

Total equity 
 

362,441  170,486   57,659  590,586 
           Total liabilities and equity  820,939  197,772   298,653  1,317,364 
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MORNEAU SHEPELL INC. 
Pro Forma Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income 

For the year ended December 31, 2017 
(In thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts, unless otherwise stated, unaudited) 

    

Morneau 
Shepell 

Inc 
 

LifeWorks  
(Note 4) 

 

Pro forma 
adjustments 

(Note 6) 
 

Pro forma 
Consolidated 

                      Operating revenue 
  

$   631,155  $    105,233  $              -  $    736,388 
           Operating expenses: 

                    Salaries, benefits and contractors  429,026  75,413  -  504,439 
Rent and occupancy 

 
29,868  3,715  -  33,583 

Office and administration 
 

71,124  20,469  7,670 (f) 99,263 
Depreciation and amortization  

 
38,200  5,346  31,947 (a) 75,493 

Total operating expenses 
 

568,218  104,943  39,617  712,778 
           Finance costs 

  
13,165  (36)  6,187 (b) 19,316 

           Profit (loss) before income taxes 
 

49,772  326  (45,804)  4,294 
           Income tax expense (recovery): 

        Current 
   

15,356  10,257  (2,823) (c) 22,790 
Deferred 

   
(166)  (3,294)  (8,961) (c) (12,421) 

Total income taxes 
  

15,190  6,963  (11,784)  10,369 
           Profit (loss) for the year 

 
34,582  (6,637)  (34,020)  (6,075) 

           Other comprehensive income (loss):        Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit:        Effective portion of change in interest rate cash flow hedges 2,058  -  -  2,058 
Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations (1,995)  (5,323)  (6,506) (e) (13,824) 
Income taxes on the above items 

 
(551)  -  -  (551) 

    
(488)  (5,323)  (6,506)  (12,317) 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit:        Actuarial gain on post-employment benefit plans 185  -  -  185 
Income taxes on the above item 

 
(52)  -  -  (52) 

    
133  -  -  133 

           Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax effect (355)  (5,323)  (6,506)  (12,184) 
           Comprehensive income (loss) for the year $    34,227  $    (11,960)  $    (40,526)  $    (18,259) 
           Earnings (loss) per share: 

        Basic  
   

$0.62     (d) $(0.09) 
Diluted 

   
$0.62     (d) $(0.09) 

           Weighted average common shares (Note 6)        Basic 
   

55,331,514      64,377,523 
Diluted 

   
55,913,226      64,959,235 
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MORNEAU SHEPELL INC. 
Pro Forma Consolidated Statement of Income and Comprehensive Income 

For the three months ended March 31, 2018 
(In thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts, unless otherwise stated, unaudited) 

    

Morneau 
Shepell Inc 

 

LifeWorks 
(Note 4) 

 

Pro forma 
adjustments 

(Note 6) 
 

Pro forma 
Consolidated 

                      Operating revenue 
  

$    167,526  $    27,174  $             -  $    194,700 
           Operating expenses: 

                    Salaries, benefits and contractors  109,306  21,122  -  130,428 
Rent and occupancy 

  
6,953  1,362  -  8,315  

Office and administration 
 

17,989  4,122  -  22,111 
Depreciation and amortization  

 
10,220  1,303  7,891 (a) 19,414 

Total operating expenses 
 

144,468  27,909  7,891  180,268 
           Finance costs 

  
3,155  (58)  1,786 (b)  4,883 

           Share of income of joint ventures 
 

20  -  -  20 
           Profit before income taxes 

 
19,923  (677)  (9,677)  9,569 

           Income tax expense (recovery): 
        Current 

   
6,402  979  (273)  (c)   7,108 

Deferred 
   

(708)  -  (2,205)  (c)   (2,913) 
Total income taxes 

  
5,694  979  (2,478)  4,195 

           Profit (loss) for the period 
  

14,229  (1,656)  (7,199)  5,374 
           Other comprehensive income:        Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit:        Effective portion of change in interest rate cash flow hedges 120  -  -  120 

Foreign currency translation differences for foreign operations 1,090  4,868  3,234 (e)  9,192 
Income taxes on the above items 

 
(32)  -  -  (32) 

    
1,178  4,868  3,234  9,280 

Items that will not be reclassified to profit:        Actuarial gain on post-employment benefit plans 4  -  -  4 
Income taxes on the above item 

 
(1)  -  -  (1) 

    
3  -  -  3 

              
Other comprehensive income, net of tax effect 1,181  4,868  3,234  9,283 
           Comprehensive income for the period $    15,410  $    3,212  $    (3,965)  $   14,657 
           Earnings per share: 

                    Basic  
   

$0.26     (d) $0.08 
Diluted 

   
$0.25     (d) $0.08 

           Weighted average Common Shares (Note 6):                   Basic 
   

55,600,071      64,646,080 
Diluted 

   
56,270,595      65,316,604 
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MORNEAU SHEPELL INC. 
NOTES TO THE PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(In thousands of Canadian dollars, except per share amounts, unless otherwise stated, unaudited) 

1. Reporting entity 

Morneau Shepell Inc. was incorporated pursuant to the laws of the Province of Ontario on October 19, 2010 and is a 
continuation of Morneau Sobeco Income Fund, which was converted from an income trust structure into Morneau 
Shepell Inc., effective January 1, 2011. 

Morneau Shepell Inc., its subsidiaries, and joint ventures (the “Company”) provide health and productivity, 
administrative and retirement solutions to assist employers in managing the financial security, health and 
productivity of their employees. The Company’s principal and head office is located at One Morneau Shepell 
Centre, 895 Don Mills Road, Suite 700, Toronto, Ontario, M3C 1W3. The Company offers its services to 
organizations that are situated in Canada, in the United States and internationally. 

2. Basis of preparation: 

The accompanying unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared by 
management of the Company for inclusion in a Short Form Prospectus of the Company to be dated July 20, 2018 
(the “Prospectus”) and to give effect to the proposed acquisition (the “Acquisition”) of all of the outstanding shares 
of capital stock of LifeWorks Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries (collectively “LifeWorks”). 

The unaudited consolidated statements of financial position of the Company and LifeWorks as at March 31, 2018, 
the consolidated statements of income of the Company and the LifeWorks for the year ended December 31, 2017, 
and the unaudited consolidated statements of income of the Company and LifeWorks for the three months ended 
March 31, 2018, have been adjusted to give effect to pro forma events that are (1) directly attributable to the 
Acquisition and the funding to be raised for the purposes of the Acquisition, (2) factually supportable, and (3) with 
respect to the statement of income, expecting to have a continuing impact on the consolidated financial results. The 
unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements reflect the adjustments and assumptions outlined in the notes 
below. 

The unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2018 of the Company, and the 
unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income of the Company for the year 
ended December 31, 2017 and the three months ended March 31, 2018 have been derived from the following: 

• The unaudited consolidated statement of financial position of the Company as at March 31, 2018; 
• The unaudited consolidated balance sheet of LifeWorks as at March 31, 2018; 
• The consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income of the Company for the year ended 

December 31, 2017; 
• The consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive loss of LifeWorks for the year ended 

December 31, 2017; 
• The unaudited consolidated interim statement of income and comprehensive income of the Company for 

the three months ended March 31, 2018; and 
• The unaudited consolidated interim statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss) of LifeWorks 

for the three months ended March 31, 2018. 

The unaudited consolidated statement of financial position as at March 31, 2018 and the unaudited consolidated 
interim statement of income and comprehensive income of the Company for the three months ended March 31, 2018 
were prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards 34, Interim Financial Reporting, as issued by 
the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). The unaudited consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 
2018 and the unaudited consolidated statement of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2018 of 
LifeWorks were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America (‘‘US GAAP’’) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 270, Interim Reporting, as issued by the 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”). 
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The audited consolidated statement of income and comprehensive income of the Company for the year ended 
December 31, 2017 was prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘‘IFRS’’) as 
issued by the IASB. The audited consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2017 of 
LifeWorks was prepared in accordance with US GAAP. 

For purposes of preparing the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements, adjustments have been made to 
the historical unaudited consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2018, the unaudited consolidated statement of 
operations for the three months ended March 31, 2018, and the audited consolidated statement of operations for the 
year ended December 31, 2017 of LifeWorks (collectively referred to as the ‘‘historical financial statements of 
LifeWorks’’) to convert those financial statements as prepared in accordance with US GAAP to IFRS, as measured 
in U.S. dollars to be presented in Canadian dollars, and to conform the accounting policies used by LifeWorks to 
those of the Company. Details on these adjustments are described in Note 4, Reconciliation of Historical 
Consolidated Financial Statements from US GAAP to IFRS. 

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements for the 
three months ended March 31, 2018 are consistent with those described in the audited consolidated financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017, with the exception of IFRS 15, Revenue from 
Contracts with Customers (“IFRS 15”), and IFRS 9, Financial Instruments (“IFRS 9”) which were adopted by the 
Company on January 1, 2018, as required, and are described in the Company’s unaudited consolidated interim 
financial statements for the three months ended March 31, 2018. 

The accounting policies used in the preparation of the unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of income and 
comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2017 are consistent with those described in the audited 
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017.  As such the unaudited pro 
forma consolidated financial statements do not reflect any adjustments related to the adoption of IFRS 15 by the 
Company on January 1, 2018, elected to be applied on a retroactive restatement basis. The estimated impact of the 
adoption of IFRS 15 is as described in the notes to the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year 
ended December 31, 2017. 

The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the acquisition method of 
accounting in accordance with IFRS 3, Business Combinations (‘‘IFRS 3’’). The pro forma adjustments are 
determined based on available financial information and certain estimates and assumptions. Management of the 
Company believes that such assumptions provide a reasonable basis for presenting all of the significant effects of the 
Acquisition, including financing contemplated, and that the pro forma adjustments give appropriate effect to those 
assumptions and are properly applied in the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements. However, the 
actual adjustments to the Company’s future financial statements will be based on the closing date of the Acquisition 
and will depend on a number of factors and, therefore, the actual pre-tax and income tax adjustments will differ, 
possibly materially, from the pro forma adjustments as per the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial 
statements. The unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income are not intended 
to reflect the results of operations which would have actually resulted had the Acquisition and financing in 
connection with the Acquisition assumed to have been completed on January 1, 2017 occurred. Further, the 
unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income and consolidated statement of 
financial position are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations or the financial position, respectively, 
that may be obtained by the Company in the future. If the proposed transactions are completed, the actual 
adjustments to the unaudited consolidated financial statements of the Company will depend on a number of factors 
and, therefore, the actual adjustments will differ from the pro forma adjustments. 

In addition, the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the 
unaudited consolidated interim financial statements and the audited consolidated financial statements of the 
Company which are incorporated by reference in the Prospectus and the unaudited consolidated interim financial 
statements and audited consolidated financial statements of LifeWorks that are included in the Prospectus. 

On June 19, 2018, LifeWorks acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of Optum Health & Technology 
(Australia) Pty Ltd (“Optum”), an established employee well-being service provider in Australia. Optum offers an 
employee assistance program (“EAP”) platform complementary to the existing LifeWorks model and expands 
LifeWorks’ customer reach into Australia. The acquisition of Optum is not included in the unaudited pro forma 
consolidated financial statements of the Company as this acquisition is immaterial to the unaudited pro forma 
consolidated statement of financial position and results of operations of the Company. 
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3. Description of Transactions: 

On July 9, 2018, the Company announced that its principal operating subsidiary, Morneau Shepell Ltd., had entered 
into an agreement of purchase and sale (the “Purchase Agreement”) to acquire all of the issued and outstanding 
shares of Lifeworks Corporation Limited (“Lifeworks”) for an aggregate purchase price of US$325.0 million, 
subject to working capital adjustments and other adjustments relating to outstanding debt and acquisition costs 
incurred by Lifeworks related to this transaction. The purchase price will be satisfied by delivering cash in the 
amount US$301.1 million and issuance of approximately 1.1 million Common Shares of the Company equivalent to 
US$23.9 million. 

To finance the Acquisition, the Company will: 

(i) raise $210,011 of gross proceeds through the issuance of 7.9 million subscription receipts of the Company 
(“Receipts”), with each Receipt entitling the holder thereof, without payment of any additional consideration or 
further action on the part of the holder, to receive one Common Share of the Company upon the Acquisition 
Closing; 

(ii) issue approximately 1.1 million common shares from treasury equivalent to US$23,937 (Cdn $30,865 based on 
the foreign exchange rate as at March 31, 2018) , calculated based on the volume weighted average share price 
of the common shares for the five day trading period immediately prior to the execution of the Purchase 
Agreement; 

(iii) draw-down of the amended credit facility agreement (the “Amended and Restated Credit Facility Agreement”) 
in the amount of approximately $187,829, subject to (i) and (ii) above.  See Note 5(b) for further details on the 
proposed Amended and Restated Credit Facility Agreement. 

As the cash portion of the consideration is payable in U.S. dollars, on July 9, 2018 the Company also entered into a 
forward exchange contract and a currency exchange option contract to purchase in aggregate US$310,500 to reduce 
the variability in the Canadian dollar equivalent of the cash portion of the purchase price due at the date of 
Acquisition Closing. 

For purposes of these unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements, the Acquisition is assumed to occur, 
the Common Shares of the Company are assumed to be issued and the Amended and Restated Credit Facility 
Agreement is assumed to be drawn down on March 31, 2018, while the Over-Allotment Option is assumed not to be 
exercised, for purposes of the pro forma consolidated statement of financial position, and on January 1, 2017 for 
purposes of the pro forma consolidated statements of income. 

4. Reconciliation of Historical Financial Statements from US GAAP to IFRS 

The unaudited consolidated interim balance sheet as at March 31, 2018, the unaudited consolidated interim 
statement of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2018, and the audited statement of operations for the 
year ended December 31, 2017 of LifeWorks were prepared in accordance with US GAAP. For purposes of the 
unaudited pro forma consolidated financial statements, those financial statements have been adjusted to conform to 
the recognition, measurement and presentation requirements of IFRS as well as the presentation currency from U.S. 
dollars to Canadian dollars. The adjustments made to these historical financial statements of LifeWorks are 
described below: 
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(a) US GAAP-IFRS reconciliation of the LifeWorks’ unaudited consolidated balance sheet as at March 31, 2018 
(in thousands of Canadian dollars): 

    

USD 
LifeWorks 
(US GAAP) 

 

CDN LifeWorks 
(US GAAP) (1) 

 

IFRS 
Adjustments

 (2)(a) 
 

LifeWorks 
(IFRS) 

Presentation
-Conforming 
adjustments 

(2) 
 LifeWorks 

Adjusted 
Assets 

                           Current assets: 
            Cash and cash equivalents 

 
$     4,519  $5,827  $             -  $5,827 $             -  $    5,827 

Trade and other receivables  
 

14,965  19,296  -  19,296 (3,105) (b) 16,191 
Unbilled fees 

  
-  -  -  - 3,105 (b) 3,105 

Prepaid expenses and other 
 

1,697  2,188  -  2,188 756 (b) 2,944 
Other current assets 

  
586  756  -  756 (756) (b) - 

Total current assets 
  

21,767  28,067  -  28,067 -  28,067 
              Non-current assets: 

            Capital assets 
  

411  530  -  530 -  530 
Intangible assets 

  
6,323  8,153  -  8,153 -  8,153 

Goodwill 
   

124,881  161,022  -  161,022 -  161,022 
Total non-current assets 

 
131,615  169,705  -  169,705 -  169,705 

              Total assets  
  

153,382  197,772  -  197,772 -  197,772 
              Liabilities and Equity 

                          Current liabilities: 
                          Trade and other payables  

 
$     7,472  $     9,634  $             -  $     9,634 $     2,081 (b) $   11,715 

Income taxes payable  
  

-  -  -  - 10,849 (b) 10,849 
Deferred revenue 

  
2,474  3,190  -  3,190 -  3,190 

Employee compensation and benefits 1,614   2,081  -  2,081 (2,081) (b) - 
Other accrued expenses 

 
445  574  -  574 (574) (b) - 

Total current liabilities 
 

12,005  15,479  -  15,479 10,275  25,754 
              Non-current liabilities: 

           Other liabilities  
  

9,157  11,807  -  11,807 (11,233) (b) 574 
Deferred tax liability  

  
-  -  -  - 958 (b) 958 

Total non-current liabilities 
 

9,157  11,807  -  11,807 (10,275)  1,532 
              Equity: 

             Common stock 
  

221  285  -  285 (285) (b),(c) - 
Additional paid in capital 

 
139,905  180,394  -  180,394 (180,394) (b),(c) - 

Share capital  
  

-  -  -  - 179,995 (b),(c) 179,995 
Contributed surplus  

  
-  -  -  - 4,763 (b),(c) 4,763 

Equity component of convertible debenture  -     -  -  - -  - 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss  (662)  (853)  -  (853) (4,188) (c) (5,041) 
Deficit 

   
(7,244)  (9,340)  -  (9,340) 109 (c) (9,231) 

Total equity 
  

132,220  170,486  -  170,486 -  170,486 
              Total liabilities and equity  

 
153,382  197,772  -  197,772 -  197,772 

              
(1) Translated into Canadian dollars at a FX rate of US $1.00 = CDN $1.2894 as at March 31, 2018. 

(2) IFRS Adjustments and Presentation Conforming Adjustments: 

(a) There were no adjustments required to reconcile the LifeWorks’ US GAAP unaudited statement of financial position to IFRS. 
(b) Presentation conforming adjustments to present certain asset, liability and equity balances consistently with Morneau Shepell Inc.’s 
presentation. 
(c) Impact recognized through accumulated other comprehensive loss of translating LifeWorks’ financial statements into the presentation 
currency of Morneau Shepell, Canadian dollars, while translating equity balances at historical exchange rates, consistent with Morneau 
Shepell’s accounting policy. 
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(b) US GAAP-IFRS reconciliation of LifeWorks’ audited consolidated statement of operations for the year ended 
December 31, 2017 (in thousands of Canadian dollars): 

 

USD 
LifeWorks 
(US GAAP) 

 

CDN LifeWorks 
(US GAAP)(1) 

 

IFRS 
Adjustments

 (2)(a) 
 

LifeWorks 
(IFRS) 

Presentation
-Conforming 
adjustments (

2) 
 LifeWorks 

Adjusted 
Revenue $   81,036  $   105,233  $             -  $   105,233 $               -  $   105,233 
           
   Cost of revenue 36,974  48,014  -  48,014 (48,014) (c) - 
           
Gross Profit 44,062  57,219  -  57,219 48,014  105,233 
           
Costs and expenses:           
           
   Selling, general, and administrative 36,126  46,913  -  46,913 (46,913) (c) - 
   Product development 7,713  10,016  -  10,016 (10,016) (c) - 
   Interest income, net (28)  (36)  -  (36) 36 (c) - 
   Salaries, benefits and contractors -  -  -  - 75,413 (c) 75,413 
   Rent and occupancy -  -  -  - 3,715 (c) 3,715 
   Office and administration -  -  -  - 20,469 (c) 20,469 
   Depreciation and amortization -  -  -  - 5,346 (c) 5,346 
Total costs and expenses 43,811  56,893  -  56,893 48,050  104,943 
           
   Finance costs -  -  -  - (36) (c) (36) 
           
Income from operations before income taxes 251  326  -  326 -  326 
           
Income tax expense/(recovery) 5,362  6,963  -  6,963 (6,963) (c) - 
           
Income tax expense              Current -  -  -  - 10,257 (c) 10,257 
   Deferred -  -  -  - (3,294) (c) (3,294) 
           
Net loss $    (5,111)  $    (6,637)  $             -  $     (6,637) $          -  $     (6,637) 
           
Change in foreign currency translation 
adjustment 4,590  5,961  -  5,961 (11,284) (b) (5,323) 

           
Comprehensive loss $      (521)  $       (676)  $             -  $        (676) $  (11,284)  $  (11,960) 

(1) Translated into Canadian dollars at an average FX rate for the year ended December 31, 2017 of US $1.00 = CDN $1.2986 

(2) IFRS Adjustments and Presentation Conforming Adjustments: 
(a) There were no adjustments required to reconcile LifeWorks’ US GAAP audited statement of operations to IFRS. 
(b) Consistent with Morneau Shepell’s accounting policy, translate equity balances at historical exchange rates with resultant impact 
recognized in other comprehensive income. 
(c) Presentation confirming adjustments to recategorize expenses to conform with Morneau Shepell’s presentation. 
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(c) US GAAP-IFRS reconciliation of LifeWorks’ unaudited consolidated statement of operations for the three 
months ended March 31, 2018 (in thousands of Canadian dollars): 

 

USD 
LifeWorks 
(US GAAP) 

 

CDN LifeWorks 
(US GAAP) (1) 

 

IFRS 
Adjustments

 (2)(a) 
 

LifeWorks 
(IFRS) 

Presentation
-Conforming 
adjustments (

2) 
 LifeWorks 

Adjusted 
Revenue $   21,488  $   27,174  $             -  $   27,174 $             -  $    27,174 
           
   Cost of revenue 10,871  13,747  -  13,747 (13,747) (c) - 
           
Gross Profit 10,617  13,427  -  13,427 13,747  27,174 
           
Costs and expenses:           
           
   Selling, general, and administrative 9,559  12,088  -  12,088 (12,088) (c) - 
   Product development 1,640  2,074  -  2,074 (2,074) (c) - 
   Interest income, net (46)  (58)  -  (58) 58 (c) - 
   Salaries, benefits and contractors -  -  -  - 21,122 (c) 21,122 
   Rent and occupancy -  -  -  - 1,362 (c) 1,362 
   Office and administration -  -  -  - 4,122 (c) 4,122 
   Depreciation and amortization -  -  -  - 1,303 (c) 1,303 
Total costs and expenses 11,153  14,104  -  14,104 13,805  27,909 
           
   Finance costs -  -  -  - (58) (c) (58) 
           
Loss from operations before income taxes (536)  (677)  -  (677) -  (677) 
           
Income tax expense 774  979  -  979 (979) (c) - 
           
Income tax expense              Current -  -  -  - 979 (c) 979 
   Deferred -  -  -  - -  - 
           
Net loss $     (1,310)  $    (1,656)  $             -  $     (1,656) $             -  $      (1,656) 
           
Change in foreign currency translation 
adjustment 623  788  -  788 4,080 (b) 4,868 

           
Comprehensive gain (loss) $     (687)  $     (868)  $             -  $     (868) $    4,080 (b) $       3,212 
           

(1) Translated into Canadian dollars at an average FX rate for the three months ended March 31, 2018 of US $1.00 = CDN $1.2646 

(2) IFRS Adjustments and Presentation Conforming Adjustments: 
(a) There were no adjustments required to reconcile LifeWorks’ US GAAP unaudited statement of operations to IFRS. 
(b) Consistent with Morneau Shepell Inc.’s accounting policy, translate equity balances at historical exchange rates with resultant impact 
recognized in other comprehensive income. 
(c) Presentation confirming adjustments to recategorize expenses to conform with Morneau Shepell’s presentation. 

5. Unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of financial position of the Company 

The unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of financial position of the Company as at March 31, 2018 was 
created through the combination of the Company’s and LifeWorks’ unaudited consolidated balance sheets (inclusive 
of the adjustments denoted in Note 4 to reconcile LifeWorks’ historical unaudited consolidated financial statements 
from US GAAP to IFRS), each as at March 31, 2018, along with the following adjustments prepared as if the 
Acquisition and related proposed transactions had been completed on March 31, 2018: 

Acquisition financing 

(a) The Company will raise, pursuant to an underwriting agreement, gross proceeds of $210,011 through the 
issuance of 7.9 million Receipts that entitle the holder thereof to receive upon the closing of the Acquisition and 
without payment of additional consideration, one (1) Common Share, at a price of $26.55 per Receipt. Costs to 
be incurred in connection with the offering of Receipts are estimated to be $9,650 and are recorded against 
equity net of a deferred income tax amount of $2,557. The Company will also issue approximately 1.1 million 
of Common Shares of the Company from treasury at $27.17 per share based on the volume weighted average 
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price of the Common Shares for the five day period immediately preceding the execution of the Purchase 
Agreement, as partial consideration for the Acquisition.  

(b) The Company will draw down approximately US$153,699 ($198,180) under the Amended and Restated Credit 
Facility Agreement. 

On July 9, 2018 the Company entered into a commitment letter to amend and restate the Company’s existing 
credit facility (the “Existing Credit Facility”) which provided for a revolving facility of $300,000 (including a 
swing line of $14,000). The Company’s revolving facility under the Amended and Restated Credit Facility will 
be increased from $300,000 to $600,000, and have a maturity date five years from closing. 

The interest rates for the Amended and Restated Credit Facility will be floating, based on a margin over certain 
referenced rates of interest. The applicable margin may vary up or down depending on the ratio of the 
Company’s consolidated debt to Adjusted EBITDA, as defined in the agreement. The Amended and Restated 
Credit Facility will be secured by a general assignment of all the assets of the Company and will require the 
Company to maintain, on a consolidated basis, a debt to Adjusted EBITDA financial covenant of not more than 
3.5:1.0 (or not more than 4.0:1.0 for the 12-month period immediately following the completion of a permitted 
acquisition, as defined in the agreement, with a purchase price of $50,000 or more (including the Acquisition)), 
and an EBITDA to interest expense ratio of not less than 2.0:1.0. 

Costs incurred to amend the Company’s Existing Credit Facility are estimated to be $2,681. 

We assumed the amendments to the Existing Credit Facility Agreement will not be considered substantive and 
therefore, amounts owing under the Existing Credit Facility Agreement are not deemed to be extinguished for 
the purposes of preparing the pro forma financial statements. 

(c) The purchase price of LifeWorks is as follows: 

The Acquisition will be accounted for using the acquisition method as specified in IFRS 3 whereby the fair 
values of the net assets acquired and the consideration paid are estimated as follows: 

Total Identifiable net assets acquired (1)  
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,827 
Net working capital (4) (4,089) 
Capital assets 530 
Intangible assets (2) 206,154 
Goodwill (3) 267,502 
Deferred tax liability (51,042) 
 $ 424,882 
  
  
Total consideration(1)  
Purchase price $  419,055 
Cash and cash equivalents on closing 5,827 
 $  424,882 
  
Total consideration financed by  
Gross proceeds from Common Shares $210,011 
Issuance costs of Common Shares 
Net proceeds from issuance 

(9,650) 
200,361 

Draw down of Amended and Restated Credit facility(1) 187,829 
Cash acquired (1) 5,827 
Common Shares issued from treasury (1) 30,865 
 $  424,882 
  

(1) Represents U.S. dollars converted to Canadian dollars at a rate of 1.2894 as at March 31, 2018 

(2) The estimated fair values and average estimated useful lives of the acquired intangible assets acquired are as follows: 
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 Estimated fair value Average estimated useful 
life (years) 

Trade names $6,834 Indefinite 
Proprietary software 14,033 5 
Customer relationships 134,871 15 
Customer contracts 50,416 2 
Total $206,154  
   

(3) Goodwill is calculated as the difference between the acquisition date fair value of the consideration expected to be transferred and the 
preliminary fair values assigned to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. Goodwill is not amortized and is not deductible for tax 
purposes. 

(4) Assumes net working capital on closing is equal to target net working capital as per the Acquisition agreement. 

The actual calculation and allocation of the purchase price of the Acquisition will be based on the assets 
acquired and liabilities assumed at the effective date of the Acquisition and other information available at that 
date to support the allocation of the purchase price to the respective acquired assets and liabilities. Accordingly, 
the allocation shown is preliminary and actual amounts for each of the assets and liabilities will vary from the 
pro forma amounts and the variations may be material. 

(d) The following adjustments have been made to cash and cash equivalents: 

Cash consideration for the acquisition $ (388,190) 
Proceeds from issuance of equity 210,011 
Equity issuance costs (note 5(a)) (9,650) 
Draw drown of Amended and Restated Credit Facility 
(note 5(b)) 

198,180 

Credit facility amendment costs (2,681) 
Cash acquired used for repayment of Credit facility (5,827) 
Total transaction costs related to the Acquisition (7,670) 
Total pro forma adjustment $(5,827) 
  

(e) The unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of financial position requires the elimination of the historical 
cost accounts for share capital, contributed surplus, accumulated other comprehensive loss and deficit of 
LifeWorks. 

(f) The incurrence of equity issuance costs results in the recognition of a deferred tax asset in the amount of 
$2,557, which has been netted against deferred tax liability on the unaudited pro form consolidated statement of 
financial position. 

(g) The incurrence of transaction costs results in the recognition of an income tax receivable in the amount of 
$2,032, with the after-tax impact increasing the deficit by $5,637. 

6. Unaudited pro forma consolidated statements of income of the Company 

The unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of income of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2017 
was created through the combination of the historical audited consolidated statement of income of the Company and 
the audited consolidated statement of operations of LifeWorks (inclusive of adjustments denoted in Note 4 to 
reconcile Lifeworks’ historical consolidated financial statements from US GAAP to IFRS) for the year ended 
December 31, 2017, adjusting for the effects of the proposed transactions as if the proposed transactions had taken 
place on January 1, 2017. 

The unaudited pro forma consolidated statement of income of the Company for the three months ended March 31, 
2018 was created through the combination of the historical unaudited consolidated interim statement of income of 
the Company and the unaudited consolidated statement of operations of LifeWorks (inclusive of adjustments 
denoted in Note 4 to reconcile Lifeworks’ historical consolidated financial statements from US GAAP to IFRS) for 
the three months ended March 31, 2018, adjusting for the effects of the proposed transactions as if the proposed 
transactions had taken place on January 1, 2017. 
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The effects of the proposed transactions as if the proposed transactions had taken place on January 1, 2017 is as 
follows: 

(a) The elimination of LifeWorks’ historical amortization of intangible assets and recognition of amortization of 
intangible assets recognized as described in Note 5(c). 

(b) The recognition of interest expense on the incremental amounts borrowed under the Amended and Restated 
Credit Facility agreement to partially fund the Acquisition as described in Note 5(b). 

(c) Recognition of the tax impact of the pro forma consolidated statement of income adjustments, which is 
calculated using applicable tax rates in the United States (26.5%), Canada (26.7%), and the United Kingdom 
(19.0%). 

(d) The weighted average Common Shares used to calculate pro forma basic and diluted earnings per share are as 
follows: 

 Three months ended 
March 31, 2018 

Year ended December 
31, 2017 

 Basic Diluted Basic Diluted 
Historical weighted average Common Shares outstanding 55,600,071 56,270,595 55,331,514 55,913,226 
Weighted average shares issued to finance the Acquisition 7,910,000 7,910,000 7,910,000 7,910,000 
Weighted average shares issued as Acquisition consideration 1,136,009 1,136,009 1,136,009 1,136,009 
Pro forma weighted average Common Shares 
outstanding 

64,646,080 65,316,604 64,377,523 64,959,235 

     
(e) The impact on foreign currency translation differences through other comprehensive income for fair market 

value adjustments related to the net assets acquired of LifeWorks and translating pro forma adjustments into the 
functional currency of Morneau Shepell. 

(f) The recognition of transaction costs incurred in respect of the Acquisition. 
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Independent Auditors’ Report 

The Board of Directors 
LifeWorks Corporation Limited: 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of LifeWorks Corporation Limited and its 
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2017, and the related consolidated 
statement of operations and comprehensive loss, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the year then 
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. 
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and 
fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of 
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well 
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the 2017 consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, 
the financial position of LifeWorks Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2017, and the 
results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles. 
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Other Matter 

The 2016 consolidated financial statements were reviewed by us and our report thereon, dated July 20, 2018, stated 
we were not aware of any material modifications that should be made to those statements for them to be in 
conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. However, a review is substantially less in scope than 
an audit and does not provide a basis for the expression of an opinion on the financial statements. 

 

Minneapolis, Minnesota 
July 20, 2018 
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Independent Accountants’ Review Report 

The Board of Directors 
LifeWorks Corporation Limited: 

We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated financial statements of LifeWorks Corporation Limited and its 
subsidiaries, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2016, and the related consolidated 
statement of operations and comprehensive loss, changes in stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for the period then 
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical 
procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries of Company management. A review is 
substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the 
consolidated financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due from fraud or error. 

Accountants’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting 
and Review Services issued by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require us to 
perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any material 
modifications that should be made to the consolidated financial statements for them to be in accordance with U.S. 
generally accepted accounting principles. We believe that the results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis 
for our conclusion. 

Accountants’ Conclusion 

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the 2016 consolidated 
financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. 

Emphasis of Matter 

Report of 2017 Financial Statements 

The accompanying 2017 consolidated financial statements of LifeWorks Corporation Limited and its subsidiaries 
were audited by us and we expressed an unmodified opinion on them in our report dated July 20, 2018.  

 

Minneapolis, Minnesota 

July 20, 2018 
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LifeWorks Corporation Limited and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 
December 31, 2017 & 2016 
(U.S. Dollars in thousands) 

 

 
2017 

2016 
(unaudited) 

ASSETS 
  

Current assets:   
Cash and cash equivalents $ 5,311 $ 10,672 
Trade and other receivables , net 13,297 6,883 
Prepaid expenses 1,550 1,574  
Other current assets 539 761 

 
Total current assets 20,697 19,890 

Property, plant, and equipment, net 384 208 
Goodwill 124,082 119,669 
Other intangible assets, net 7,331 11,210 

 
Total assets $ 152,494 $ 150,977 

   
 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY    
Current liabilities:    

Accounts payable 6,092 7,169  
Deferred revenue 2,828 3,625 

 
Employee compensation and benefits 1,385 1,048 

 
Other accrued expenses 641 473 

 
Total current liabilities 10,946 12,315  

 
  

 
Other liabilities  8,859 7,216 

 
Total liabilities 19,805 19,531 

 
Commitments and contingencies (Note 4)    
Stockholders equity:    

Common stock 221 220 
 

Additional paid in capital 139,687 137,924 
 

Accumulated deficit (5,934) (823) 
 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,285) (5,875) 
 

Total stockholders equity 132,689 131,446 
 

Total liabilities and stockholders equity $ 152,494 $ 150,977  
 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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LifeWorks Corporation Limited and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Operations and Comprehensive Loss 
Year Ended December 31, 2017 & 2016 
(U.S. Dollars in thousands) 

 

 
2017 

2016 
(unaudited) 

Revenue: $ 81,036 $ 67,536 
Cost of revenue 36,974 33,299 

Gross profit 44,062 34,237 
Costs and expenses:   

Selling, general, and administrative 36,126 25,213 
Product development 7,713 5,620 
Interest (income) expense, net (28) 6 

Total costs and expenses 43,811 30,839 
Income from operations before income 

251 3,398 
taxes 
Income tax expense 5,362 4,221 
Net loss $ (5,111) $ (823) 

Change in foreign currency translation 
4,590 (5,845) 

adjustment 
Comprehensive loss $ (521) $ (6,668) 
 

 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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LifeWorks Corporation Limited and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity 
Year Ended December 31, 2017 & 2016 
(U.S. Dollars in thousands) 

 

 Common Stock  
Additional Paid In 

Capital  Accumulated Deficit  
Accumulated Other 
Comprehensive Loss  Total Equity 

 Shares  $             

Balance as of January 28, 2016 (unaudited) -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ -  $ - 
Net loss -  -   -   (823)   -   (823) 
Issuance of Common Stock upon creation 18,397  219   136,202   -   -   136,421 
Issuance of Common Stock upon exercise of options 6  1   3   -   -   4 
Share-based compensation -  -   1,719   -   -   1,719 
Foreign currency translation -  -   -   -   (5,875)   (5,875) 

Balance as of December 31, 2016 (unaudited) 18,403  $ 220  $ 137,924  $ (823)  $ (5,875)  $ 131,446 

Net loss -  -   -   (5,111)   -   (5,111) 
Issuance of Common Stock upon exercise of options 47  1   23   -   -   24 
Share-based compensation -  -   1,740   -   -   1,740 
Foreign currency translation -  -   -   -   4,590   4,590 

Balance as of December 31, 2017 18,450  $ 221  $ 139,687  $ (5,934)  $ (1,285)  $ 132,689 

 

 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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LifeWorks Corporation Limited and Subsidiaries 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 
Year Ended December 31, 2017 & 2016 
(U.S. Dollars in thousands) 

 

 
2017 

2016 
(unaudited) 

Net loss $ (5,111) $ (823) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in 
operating activities:   

Deferred income tax expense 1,574 3,479 
Depreciation and amortization 4,116 3,353 
Share-based compensation 1,740 1,719 
Other   

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:   
Trade and other receivables (5,059) (957) 
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 365 (863) 
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses (2,541) 2,856 
Deferred revenue (949) 729 
Employee compensation and benefits 295 579 
Other assets and liabilities 161 (284) 
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (5,409) 9,788 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities   
Expenditures for property, plant, and equipment (302) (141) 
Net cash used in investing activities (302) (141) 
Cash Flows from Financing Activities   
Proceeds from issuance of stock 24 4 
Net cash provided by financing activities 24 4 
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash 326 (204) 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents (5,361) 9,447 
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 10,672 1,225 
Cash and equivalents at end of year $ 5,311 $ 10,672 

 
  

Supplemental Cash Flow Information: 
Cash paid for interest $ - $ 30 
Cash paid for income taxes $ 3,296 $ 1,974 
 

 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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LifeWorks Corporation Limited and Subsidiaries 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 & 2016 
(U.S. Dollars in thousands) 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Description of Business 
WorkAngel Organization Ltd. (“LifeWorks”) (the Company”), was formed on January 28, 2016, as a 
private company limited by share capital, incorporated in the United Kingdom (“UK”). The Company 
subsequently changed its name to LifeWorks Corporation Ltd on January 20, 2017. 

LifeWorks offers an employee well-being and engagement platform that delivers employee assistance 
programs, social recognition, exclusive perks and discounts, a private social network, employee and 
corporate wellness, and employee engagement analytics in the United States, Canada, and the United 
Kingdom through its three wholly owned operating subsidiaries: Lifeworks US Inc., Lifeworks Canada Ltd 
and WorkAngel Technology Ltd, respectively. 

Formation of the Company 
On March 1, 2016, Ceridian Global Holding Company Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Ceridian”) and 
WorkAngel Technology Ltd (“WorkAngel”) entered into a Joint Venture Agreement to form LifeWorks. 
The results of operations cover the period March 1, 2016 through December 31, 2017. 

Ceridian contributed its existing LifeWorks business in exchange for 8,299,574 Class A Ordinary Shares 
and 1,764,175 Exchangeable Shares of the Company. The exchangeable shares may be exchanged by 
Ceridian Canada Ltd for Class A Ordinary shares in the Company in certain circumstances but so that the 
aggregate holding of shares in the Company by Ceridian will never exceed 50%. The exchangeable shares 
mirror the economic rights of Class A Ordinary shares in the Company. 

The stockholders of WorkAngel contributed all of its issued and outstanding shares of WorkAngel in 
exchange for 10,063,749 Class B Ordinary Shares of the Company. As Ceridian has a controlling interest in 
the Company, including certain preferential distribution rights, the Company is consolidated within the 
Ceridian financial statements. The acquisition of WorkAngel has been accounted for as a business 
combination whereby the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of WorkAngel in 
exchange for 10,063,749 Class B shares of the Company. WorkAngel was valued at $39.2 million as of 
March 1, 2016. At the acquisition date, the net assets of WorkAngel were approximately $2.1 million, 
which were comprised of $1.2 million of cash and $0.9 million of net working capital. As a result, the 
Company has recorded $37.1 million of goodwill related to the acquisition of WorkAngel. The goodwill 
recorded principally relates to the assembled workforce of WorkAngel and expected synergies. 

Basis of Consolidation 
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LifeWorks Corporation Ltd. 
and its wholly owned subsidiaries, LifeWorks US Inc., LifeWorks Canada Ltd and WorkAngel Technology 
Ltd. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The 
results of acquired operations are included in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive 
loss from the date on which control is obtained. They are deconsolidated from the date control ceases. 

Foreign Currency Translation 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the average monthly 
exchange rates. At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the translation at 
period-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are 
recognized in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
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LifeWorks Corporation Limited and Subsidiaries 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 & 2016 
(U.S. Dollars in thousands) 

date of the consolidated financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Revenue Recognition 
The Company recognizes revenue as services are performed when persuasive evidence of an arrangement 
exists, collectability is reasonably assured, and amounts are fixed or determinable. Our fees are generally 
billed per member per month (“PMPM”), with certain additional services based on a fee for service. For 
PMPM fees, we generally determine our contract fees by multiplying the contractually negotiated PMPM 
rate by the number of covered lives for our services during the month. We bill our customers on either a 
monthly, quarterly or annual basis, based on the contract terms, for the entire amount of the fees 
contractually due for the period covered. We recognize revenue as follows: (1) we recognize the PMPM 
fees as revenue during the period we perform our services; and (2) we recognize fee for service based 
revenue when services are performed. 

Subscription (PEPM) revenues are generated from the agreements entered into with customers for 
unlimited access to and usage of the Company’s platform for a specified period. This revenue is recognized 
ratably over the subscription period. 

Fee for Service revenues are generated from services provided for certain training, critical incidents and 
other services. These services include time, materials, and expenses incurred, all of which are in turn billed 
to the customer. This revenue is recognized as the services are performed or expenses are incurred. 

Deferred Costs 
Costs are generally expensed as incurred. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk 
of change in value. 

Accounts Receivable 
Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less anticipated trade discounts less an estimate 
made for doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts. Accounts are written off when 
deemed uncollectible. Recoveries of accounts receivable previously written off are recorded when received. 
No interest is charged on customer accounts. 

 
2017 

2016 
(unaudited) 

Accounts receivable trade $ 14,044 $ 6,269 
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,460) (503) 
Accrued revenue 713 1,117 

 $ 13,297 $ 6,883 
 
Leases 
Rent expense under operating leases is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of 
the lease. The aggregate benefit of lease incentives are recognized as reduction to the expense recognized 
over the lease term on a straight-line basis. 

Property and Equipment 
Property and equipment consist of furniture and fixtures, computers, other office equipment, and leasehold 
improvements, and is composed of the following for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. 
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LifeWorks Corporation Limited and Subsidiaries 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 & 2016 
(U.S. Dollars in thousands) 

Asset class 

Estimated 
Useful Lives 

(Years) 2017 
2016 

(unaudited) 
    
Furniture, fittings and equipment  3 $ 385 $ 180 
Leasehold improvements 3 240 120 
  $ 625 $ 300 
    
Less: Accumulated depreciation  (241) (92) 
    
Net property and equipment  $ 304 $ 208 
 
Property and equipment are carried at cost. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as 
incurred, while renewals and improvements that materially extend the life of an asset are capitalized. The 
cost of assets sold, retired, or otherwise disposed of and the related accumulated depreciation are eliminated 
from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included in operations. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 
The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. For long-lived assets, including 
amortizing intangible assets, an impairment loss is recognized when the undiscounted future cash flows 
estimated to be generated by the asset are not sufficient to recover the unamortized balance of the asset. 

Internally Developed Software Costs 
We capitalize costs associated with software developed or obtained for internal use when both the 
preliminary project stage is completed and our management has authorized further funding for the project, 
which it deems probable of completion. Capitalization of these costs ceases no later than the point at which 
the project is substantially complete and ready for its intended purpose. We did not have any capitalized 
software costs for the year ended December 31, 2017 and 2016. 

Impairment of Goodwill 
Goodwill represents the excess purchase price over the estimated fair value of net assets acquired in a 
business combination. Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, and more frequently, if events or 
changes in circumstances indicate that goodwill might be impaired. 

Income Taxes 
The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred 
tax assets and liabilities were recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between 
the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to be recovered or settled. 
The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates are recognized in income in the 
period that includes the enactment date. 

Stock-Based Compensation 
ASC topic 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation requires all share-based payments to employees, 
including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the statement of operations based on their 
fair values at grant date. Stock options awarded vest annually on a pro rata basis over a four-year period. 
The stock option awards have a seven-year contractual term. During 2017, 49,753 stock options were 
awarded as a bonus to employees that were fully vested upon grant. 
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December 31, 2017 & 2016 
(U.S. Dollars in thousands) 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 
In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, “Leases,” which is intended to increase 
transparency and comparability among organizations by recognizing lease assets and lease liabilities on the 
balance sheet and disclosing key information about leasing arrangements. This standard requires balance 
sheet recognition for both finance leases and operating leases. This guidance is effective for non-public 
companies for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2019, and interim periods within fiscal years 
beginning after December 15, 2020. The guidance is required to be adopted using a modified retrospective 
approach. An entity will, in effect, continue to account for leases that commence before the effective date 
in accordance with previous U.S. GAAP unless the lease is modified, except that lessees are required to 
recognize a right-of use asset and a lease liability for all operating leases at each reporting date based on the 
present value of the remaining minimum rental payments that were tracked and disclosed under previous 
U.S. GAAP. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this standard. 

In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-04, Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment, which 
eliminates step 2 of the goodwill impairment test and replaces the qualitative assessment. Under the 
standard, an entity will perform its annual or interim goodwill impairment test by comparing the fair value 
of the reporting unit with its carrying amount, and recognize an impairment loss for the amount by which 
the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit’s fair value, with the loss not exceeding the total amount of 
goodwill allocated to that reporting unit. ASU 2017-04 is effective for the Company for the annual period 
beginning after December 15, 2021. We are currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this 
standard. 

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-09, Scope of Modification Accounting, which clarifies when 
changes to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award are accounted for as a modification. 
Under ASU 2017-09, a company is required to apply modification accounting unless the fair value, vesting 
conditions and classification of the modified award are the same immediately before and after the 
modification of the award. ASU 2017-09 is effective for the Company for the annual period beginning after 
December 15, 2017 and early adoption is permitted. Adopting the standard had no effect on the Company’s 
consolidated financial statements because there were no changes to the terms or conditions of its share-
based payments awards during the reporting year. 

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which requires a 
company to recognize revenue when the company transfers control of promised goods and services to the 
customer. Revenue is recognized in an amount that reflects the consideration a company expects to receive 
in exchange for those goods or services. A company also is required to disclose sufficient quantitative and 
qualitative information to enable users of financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing, and 
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. The FASB also has issued 
several amendments to the standard, which are intended to promote a more consistent interpretation and 
application of the principles outlined in the standard. 

Companies are permitted to adopt the standard using a retrospective transition method (i.e. restate all prior 
periods presented) or a cumulative effect method (i.e. recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying 
the guidance at the date of initial application with no restatement of prior periods). However, both methods 
allow companies to elect certain practical expedients on transition that will help to simplify how a company 
restates its contracts. The Company currently anticipates adopting the standard using the cumulative effect 
method and expects to elect the practical expedient for contract modifications. 

The standard is effective for the Company for annual periods in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2018. The Company will implement the provisions of ASU 2014-09 as of January 1, 2019. The Company 
continues to assess all potential effects of the standard. 

The Company has identified some effects of the standard that could change the timing of commission 
expenses. The Company is continuing to evaluate its contracts and has not yet determined the ultimate 
dollar impact of the changes to the consolidated financial statements. 

F-26 



LifeWorks Corporation Limited and Subsidiaries 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
December 31, 2017 & 2016 
(U.S. Dollars in thousands) 

2. Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over 4 years for customer relationships and 3 years 
for developed software. Amortization expense was $3,795 and $3,342, for the periods ended December 31, 
2017 and 2016 respectively. 

Intangible assets at December 31, 2017 and 2016 consisted of the following: 

 2017 2016 (unaudited) 

 Gross 
Carrying 

Value 
Accumulated 
Amortization 

Net 
Carrying 

Value 

Gross 
Carrying 

Value 
Accumulated 
Amortization 

Net 
Carrying 

Value 

       
Customer list $ 11,777 $ (5,842) $ 5,935 $ 11,777 $ (2,655) $ 9,122 
Developed software 2,775 (1,379) 1,396 2,775 (687) 2,088 

 $ 14,552 $ (7,221) $ 7,331 $ 14,552 $ (3,342) $ 11,210 

 
Estimated amortization expense of intangible assets for the next five years is as follows: 

Year Ending December 31,  
2018 $ 4,384 
2019 2,947 
Thereafter - 

Total $ 7,331 
 
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the 
company’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the entity recognized at 
the date of acquisition.    

The Company reviews the goodwill amounts on an annual basis and determined that no impairment existed 
as of December 31, 2017. 

Balance at January 28, 2016 (unaudited) $ - 
Acquired 37,140 
Transferred 87,653 
Foreign currency translation adjustment (5,124) 
Balance at December 31, 2016 (unaudited) $ 119,669 

Foreign currency translation adjustment 4,413 
Balance at December 31,2017 $ 124,082 
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3. Income Taxes 

The components of federal, state, and foreign income tax expense (benefit) for the year ended December 
31, 2017 & 2016 are as follows: 

 
2017 

2016 
(unaudited) 

U.S.   
Current $ 5,626 $ 4,608 
Deferred (2,283) (1,576) 

Income tax expense 3,343 3,032 

State   
Current 1,565 752 
Deferred (280) (287) 

Income tax expense 1,285 465 

Foreign   
Current 708 547 
Deferred 26 177 

Income tax expense 734 724 

Total income tax expense $ 5,362 $ 4,221 

 
The Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (“the Act”) was enacted on December 22, 2017. The Act made broad and 
significant changes to the U.S. tax code that affect the year ended December 31, 2017.  The only material 
impact to the Company was the reduction in the maximum corporate income tax rate from 35% to 21%.  
Pursuant to the requirements of ASC 740, the Company’s income tax provision above reflects the impact of 
the Act, which is a $423 income tax benefit associated with the rate reduction on the Company’s 
cumulative differences between the financial statement and tax basis of its assets and liabilities. 

As it relates to the Act, the Company is following the guidance in SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin 118 
(“SAB 118”), which provides additional clarification regarding the application of ASC 740 in situations 
where the Company does not have the necessary information available, prepared, or analyzed in reasonable 
detail to complete the accounting for certain income tax effects of the Act for the reporting period in which 
the Act was enacted.  SAB 118 provides for a measurement period beginning in the reporting period that 
includes the Act’s enactment date and ending when the Company has obtained prepared, and analyzed the 
information needed in order to complete the accounting requirements.  In no circumstances should the 
measurement period extend beyond one year from the enactment date. 

As the Company’s estimate of the impact of the rate reduction may be affected by typical provision-to-
return adjustments associated with the upcoming 2017 tax return filings, it is disclosing that the $423 
income tax benefit is provisional in nature as allowed in SAB 118. 
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A reconciliation of the income tax expense (benefit) computed using the federal statutory income tax rate to 
Lifework’s provision for income taxes is as follows: 

 
2017 

2016 
(unaudited) 

Income before provision or income taxes $ 251 $ 3,398 
   
Provision at federal statutory rate $ 104 $ 815 
State tax (benefit) expense (72) 69 
Foreign tax rate differential (68) (36) 
Permanent differences 129 8 
Change in uncertain tax positions 5,391 3,087 
Change in valuation allowance 1,373 248 
Prior year true-ups (1,072) - 
Change in tax rates (397) 26 
FX Adjustment / Rounding (26) 4 

Total income tax expense $ 5,362 $ 4,221 

 
The tax effects of temporary differences and tax attributes, such as net operating loss carryforwards and 
credits and deferred tax liabilities at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows: 

 
2017 

2016 
(unaudited) 

Deferred Tax Assets:   
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 428 $ 215 
Deferred revenue - 332 
Accrued expenses 76 21 
Net operating loss carryforwards 782 184 
Share-based compensation 850 107 
Deferred rent 10 11 
UK R&D Credit 97 - 
Other 531 - 

Total Noncurrent Deferred Tax Assets 2,774 870 
Valuation Allowance (1,527) (184) 

Net Noncurrent Deferred Tax Assets 1,247 686 
 

Noncurrent Deferred Tax Liabilities:   
Prepaid expenses (15) (2) 
Intangibles (1,705) (3,784) 
Fixed Assets (276) (171) 

Total Noncurrent Deferred Tax Liabilities (1,996) (3,957) 
 

Net Deferred Tax Asset (Liability) $ (749) $ (3,271) 
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As of December 31, 2017, the Company has $4,114 of net operating loss carryforwards in the United 
Kingdom that have an indefinite carryforward period. The Company reduces deferred tax assets by a 
valuation allowance if, based on the weight of the available evidence, it is more likely than not that some 
portion of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. As of December 31, 2017, the Company determined 
that a valuation allowance on the gross deferred tax assets of its UK operations was warranted due to the 
fact the Company believes it is more likely than not that it will be unable to realize its UK deferred tax 
asset. As of December 31, 2017, a valuation allowance of $1,527 was established against its UK deferred 
tax asset.  The Company believes that it will be able to realize its deferred tax assets in the US and Canada, 
so it has not established a valuation allowance against these assets. 

As of December 31, 2017, the Company’s total uncertain tax liability including interest and penalties is 
$5,922. Penalties and interest related to the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits are recorded in income 
tax expense. The Company does not expect that any unrecognized tax liability will reverse within 12 
months of the reporting date. The Company files U.S. and state income tax returns with varying statutes of 
limitations (generally three or four years). The Company files UK and Canadian tax returns with one year 
and four year statutes of limitations, respectively.  The 2016 tax year remains open for all jurisdictions. 

4. Commitments and Contingencies 

Operating Leases 
The Company leases office space under multiple operating lease agreements. For the year ended December 
31, 2017 and 2016, office rent expense was recorded for $2,403 and $2,199, respectively. In addition, the 
Company leases certain office equipment under operating lease agreements that are charged to operations 
as incurred.  

Future minimum payments under the non-cancelable operating leases and outstanding minimum fixed 
purchase commitments to be paid in future years as of December 31, 2017 are as follows: 

Year Ending December 31, Lease payments 
2018 $ 2,150 
2019 864 
2020 485 
2021 78 
Thereafter - 

Total $ 3,577 
 

Litigation 
The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business. As of 
December 31, 2017, there were no open legal proceedings or claims.   

5. Capital Stock 

 31 December 2017 
 No. $ 
Ordinary shares of $0.012 each 18,450,244 221,403 

 
The company currently has 23,719,640 Authorized shares, consisting of 8,299,574 Class A Ordinary 
Shares, 1,764,175 Exchangeable Shares which may be exchanged for Class A Ordinary shares in certain 
circumstances, 10,063,749 Class B Ordinary Shares, 1,796,071 Class C Ordinary Shares and 1,796,071 
Class D Ordinary Shares. Class C shares are ordinary shares in the Joint Venture Company with rights and 
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liquidation preferences comparable to Class B shares.  Class D shares are ordinary shares in the Joint 
Venture Company with rights and liquidation preferences comparable to Class A shares. 

All shares carry equal voting rights. On a dividend or capital distribution, Class A and D shares receive 
(pro rata to their holdings) 75% of the first $250 million and 25% of the next $250 million. Class B and C 
shares receive (pro rata to their holdings) 25% of the first $250 million and 75% of the next $250 million. If 
total distributions exceed $500 million, all is shared pro rata amongst the different classes of shares. 

Ordinary shares outstanding as of December 31, 2017 consist of 8,299,574 Class A shares, 10,063,749 
Class B shares and 40,231 Class C shares. 

6. Share-Based Compensation 

In connection with the formation of the Joint Venture Company, a share-based compensation scheme under 
English law (the “JV SIP”) was created. The JV SIP has authorized the issuance of 3,551,911 options to 
purchase Class C or Class D shares of the Joint Venture Company Eligible participants in the JV SIP 
include the Joint Venture Company directors and employees. 

Stock options awarded under the JV SIP vest annually on a pro rata basis over a four-year period. The stock 
option awards have a seven-year contractual term.  During 2017, stock options were awarded as a bonus to 
employees that were fully vested upon grant.  Stock options awarded under the JV SIP also include rollover 
options granted to previous WorkAngel employees that have continued to follow the original vesting period 
and contractual term granted to the employees prior to the formation of the Joint Venture Company. These 
stock options have a vesting period that range from one to three years and a 10-year contractual term. 

Share-based compensation expense for the JV SIP was $1.7 for each of the years ended December 31, 2017 
and 2016. 

Class C Stock Options 

Joint venture option activity in the table below for the period from formation on March 1, 2016, to 
December 31, 2017, represents Class C stock options activity under the JV SIP. 

 Shares 

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 
(per share) 

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Term 
(in years) 

Aggregate 
Intrinsic Value 

(in millions) 

Options outstanding at January 28, 2016 — $ — — $ — 
Granted 1,166,402 2.12 — — 
Exercised (40,231)  (0.51) — — 
Forfeited or expired (35,408)  (3.26) — — 

Options outstanding at December 31, 2016 1,090,763 $ 2.15 7.9 $ 3.3 
Granted 212,651 2.12 — — 
Exercised (46,690)  (0.57) — — 
Forfeited or expired (152,250)  (3.02) — — 

Options outstanding at December 31, 2017 1,104,474 $ 2.44 6.9 $ 3.0 
Options exercisable at December 31, 2017 570,932 $ 1.53 6.8 $ 2.1 
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Class D Stock Options 

Joint venture option activity in the table below for the period from formation on March 1, 2016 to 
December 31, 2017, represents Class D stock option activity under the JV SIP. 

 Shares 

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 
(per share) 

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Term 
(in years) 

Aggregate 
Intrinsic Value 

(in millions) 

Options outstanding at January 28, 2016 — $ — — $ — 
Granted 873,142 8.84 — — 
Exercised — — — — 
Forfeited or expired (25,000) (8.84) — — 

Options outstanding at December 31, 2016 848,142 $ 8.84 6.4 $ 0.7 
Granted 253,797 7.91 — — 
Exercised — — — — 
Forfeited or expired (115,414) (8.84) — — 

Options outstanding at December 31, 2017 986,525 $ 8.60 5.8 $ 1.0 
Options exercisable at December 31, 2017 241,436 $ 8.62 5.7 $ 0.2 
 

Other information pertaining to JV SIP options is as follows: 

 Year Ended December 31, 
2017 

Year Ended December 31, 
2016 

 Class C Class D Class C Class D 

Weighted average grant date fair value per share $2.41 $3.32 $ 2.57 $ 3.30 
 

The fair value of the term-based stock options was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes 
option pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions for both Class C and Class D 
options: 

 Year Ended December 31, 

 2017 2016 

Expected volatility 45.0% 45.0% 
Expected dividend rate — — 
Risk-free interest rate 2.0% 1.2% 

 
For stock options granted under the JV SIP, excluding the WorkAngel rollover options, we estimated an 
expected term of 5.0 years, based on the vesting period and contractual life. For WorkAngel rollover 
options granted under the JV SIP, we estimated an expected term of 3 or 4 years, based on the vesting 
period and contractual life. As of December 31, 2017, there was $2.5 of share-based compensation related 
to unvested awards not yet recognized, which is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period 
of 2.0 years.  

The risk-free interest rate is based on the implied yield currently available on U.S. Treasury zero coupon 
issues with remaining term equal to the contractual term of the performance based options and the expected 
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term of the term based option. The estimated volatility of the Joint Venture Company common stock is 
based on the historical volatility of comparable public companies. 

7. Employee Benefit Plan 

The Company’s US based employees are eligible to participate in the LifeWorks Retirement Plan (the US 
Plan) and may enroll to participate on the first day of the month following employment.  Employees may 
defer up to the maximum amount established annually by the Internal Revenue Service.  The Company 
may, but is not required to, make discretionary matching contributions and additional discretionary profit-
sharing contributions to the Plan.  During the periods ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company 
made matching contributions of up to 3.5% of salaries totaling $415 and $219, respectively. 

The Company’s Canada based employees are eligible to enroll in the Group Retirement Plan on the 1st of 
the month immediately following 6 months of service. LifeWorks will contribute 4% of employee’s pay 
before taxes once the 6 months of service has been met. The contribution and any growth there on are 
immediately vested. During the periods ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company made matching 
contributions totaling $307 and $233, respectively. 

Beginning in 2017 the Company’s UK based employees are auto-enrolled into the Company Pension 
Scheme. All employees will contribute 2.5% of their pay before taxes into the Pension Scheme. LifeWorks 
matches the 2.5%. Employees only receive the matched amount if employees are contributing to the 
scheme. Employees have the ability to opt-out of the scheme after 1 month of hire and receive their 
personal contributions back. If employees opt out after the 1-month window, employees will not receive 
back their contributions and it will remain in the Pension Fund. During the period ended December 31, 
2017 the Company made matching contributions totaling $125. 

8. Related Party Transactions 

As part of the Joint Venture, the Company entered into a Transitional Services Agreement (“TSA”) with 
Ceridian to provide certain operations and services until they were set up and moved to Lifeworks. These 
services included IT support, Finance, Legal and HR functions. In addition, the company subleases office 
space from Ceridian. As of December 31, 2017, the Company has completed the migration of HR and some 
of the IT and Finance functions. For 2017 and 2016 the Company paid $5,302 and $7,186 for all transition 
services, respectively. As at December 31, 2017, $1,591 was outstanding and is included in accounts 
payable.  

9. Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Company maintains its cash in bank deposits which, at times, may exceed federally insured limits.  
The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.  The Company believes it is not exposed to 
any significant credit risk on cash. 

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company derived approximately 62% of its revenue from sales 
in the U.S., 30% from Canada and 8% from the UK.  Additionally, approximately 33%, of accounts 
receivable are from non-U.S. Companies at December 31, 2017. 

10. Significant Customers 

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Company had one customer with revenue of $7,936 or 
approximately 9.8%, respectively, of revenues.  At December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company had no 
customers who accounted for more than 10%, of accounts receivable. 
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11. Subsequent Events 

As part of a corporate restructuring of the corporate group of Ceridian HCM Holding Inc. (“Ceridian”), on 
April 30, 2018, among other things, (i) the exchangeable shares in the capital of LifeWorks Canada Limited 
(the “LW Exchangeable Shares”), which had been held by Ceridian LifeWorks Holdco CA Ltd (“Ceridian 
LW Holdco”) were cancelled, with such exchangeable shares no longer being issued and outstanding and 
(ii) Ceridian contributed (the “Contribution”) its entire equity interest in LifeWorks to Lifeworks UK 
Holding Company Limited (“UK Holdco”), a newly formed subsidiary of Ceridian.  Following the 
Contribution, Ceridian declared a dividend on April 30, 2018 to its stockholders of record as of April 24, 
2018 (the “Record Date” and such holders as of such date, the “Holders of Record”) of the entire issued 
share capital of UK Holdco.   

Following the dividend, the entire equity interest of LifeWorks previously held by Ceridian is held 
indirectly by the Holders of Record through their ownership of UK Holdco, and none of Ceridian or any of 
member of the Ceridian group holds an equity interest in LifeWorks. 

On June 18, 2018 the company acquired all the shares of Optum Health & Technology Australia Pty Ltd 
from Optum UK Solutions Group Limited for total cash consideration of $2 million.  Optum Health & 
Technology Australia Pty Ltd (since renamed to LifeWorks.Com Pty Limited) offers employee assistance 
programs to over 850 companies within Australia and the neighbouring region. We intend to expand into 
the region, offering our full employee well-being and engagement platform. 

Subsequent events have been evaluated through July 20, 2018, which is the date the consolidated financial 
statements were available to be issued. 
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3/31/2018 12/31/2017 

    
ASSETS     
Current assets:   Cash and equivalents $ 4,519 $ 5,311 

Trade and other receivables, net 14,965 13,297 
Prepaid expenses 1,697 1,550 
Other current assets 586 539 

Total current assets 21,767 20,697 
Property, plant, and equipment, net 411 384 
Goodwill 124,881 124,082 
Other intangible assets, net 6,323 7,331 

Total assets $ 153,382 $ 152,494 

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY     
Current liabilities:   Accounts payable 7,472 6,092 

Deferred revenue 2,474 2,828 
Employee compensation and benefits 1,614 1,385 
Other accrued expenses 445 641 

Total current liabilities 12,005 10,946 
   

Other liabilities 9,157 8,859 
Total liabilities 21,162 19,805 

Commitments and contingencies   Stockholders’ equity:   Common stock 221 221 
Additional paid in capital 139,905 139,687 
Accumulated deficit (7,244) (5,934) 
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (662) (1,285) 

Total stockholders’ equity 132,220 132,689 
Total liabilities and equity $ 153,382 $ 152,494 

 

 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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 Q1 2018 Q1 2017 

Revenue: $ 21,488 $ 19,641 
Cost of revenue 10,871 8,736 

Gross profit 10,617 10,905 
Costs and expenses:   Selling, general, and administrative 9,559 7,527 

Product development 1,640 2,024 
Interest income, net (46) (21) 

Total costs and expenses 11,153 9,530 
(Loss)/income from operations before income taxes (536) 1,375 
Income tax expense 774 1,504 
Net loss $ (1,310) $ (129) 
Change in foreign currency translation adjustment 623 483 
Comprehensive (loss)/income $ (687) $ 354 
 

 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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 Q1 2018 Q1 2017 
Net income/(loss) $ (1,310) $ (129) 
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash 
used in operating activities:   

Deferred income tax expense (benefit) 314 939 
Depreciation and amortization 1,030 1,026 
Share-based compensation 218 284 
Other   Changes in operating assets and liabilities:   Trade and other receivables (1,720) (4,388) 

Prepaid expenses and other current assets (199) 517 
Accounts payable and other accrued expenses 1,359 (222) 
Deferred revenue (408) (2,042) 
Employee compensation and benefits 220 163 
Other assets and liabilities (196) (243) 
Net cash used in operating activities (692) (4,095) 
Cash Flows from Investing Activities   Expenditures for property, plant, and equipment (64) (31) 
Net cash provided by used in activities (64) (31) 
Cash Flows from Financing Activities   Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities - - 
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash (36) 71 
Net decrease in cash and equivalents (792) (4,055) 
Cash and equivalents at beginning of year 5,311 10,672 
Cash and equivalents at end of year $ 4,519 $ 6617 
 

 

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Description of Business 

WorkAngel Organization Ltd. (“LifeWorks”) (the Company”), was formed on January 28, 2016, as a private 
company limited by share capital, incorporated in the United Kingdom (“UK”). The Company subsequently 
changed its name to LifeWorks Corporation Ltd on January 20, 2017. 

LifeWorks offers an employee well-being and engagement platform that delivers employee assistance programs, 
social recognition, exclusive perks and discounts, a private social network, employee and corporate wellness, and 
employee engagement analytics in the United States, Canada, and the United Kingdom through its three wholly 
owned operating subsidiaries: Lifeworks US Inc., Lifeworks Canada Ltd and WorkAngel Technology Ltd, 
respectively. 

Formation of the Company 

On March 1, 2016, Ceridian Global Holding Company Inc. and its subsidiaries (“Ceridian”) and WorkAngel 
Technology Ltd (“WorkAngel”) entered into a Joint Venture Agreement to form LifeWorks. 

Ceridian contributed its existing LifeWorks business in exchange for 8,299,574 Class A Ordinary Shares and 
1,764,175 Exchangeable Shares of the Company. The exchangeable shares may be exchanged by Ceridian Canada 
Ltd for Class A Ordinary shares in the Company in certain circumstances but so that the aggregate holding of shares 
in the Company by Ceridian will never exceed 50%. The exchangeable shares mirror the economic rights of Class A 
Ordinary shares in the Company. 

The stockholders of WorkAngel contributed all of its issued and outstanding shares of WorkAngel in exchange for 
10,063,749 Class B Ordinary Shares of the Company. 

As Ceridian has a controlling interest in the Company, including certain preferential distribution rights, the 
Company is consolidated within the Ceridian financial statements. The acquisition of WorkAngel has been 
accounted for as a business combination whereby the Company acquired all of the issued and outstanding shares of 
WorkAngel in exchange for 10,063,749 Class B shares of the Company. WorkAngel was valued at $39.2 million as 
of March 1, 2016. At the acquisition date, the net assets of WorkAngel were approximately $2.1 million, which were 
comprised of $1.2 million of cash and $0.9 million of net working capital. As a result, the Company has recorded 
$37.1 million of goodwill related to the acquisition of WorkAngel. The goodwill recorded principally relates to the 
assembled workforce of WorkAngel and expected synergies. 

Basis of Consolidation 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of LifeWorks Corporation Ltd. and its 
wholly owned subsidiaries, LifeWorks US Inc., LifeWorks Canada Ltd and WorkAngel Technology Ltd.  All 
material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The results of acquired 
operations are included in the consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss) from the date 
on which control is obtained. 

Foreign Currency Translation 

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the average monthly exchange rates. 
At each period end foreign currency monetary items are translated using the closing rate. 

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the 
consolidated statement of operations and comprehensive income (loss). 
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Use of Estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated 
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual results 
could differ from those estimates. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company recognizes revenue as services are performed when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, 
collectability is reasonably assured, and amounts are fixed or determinable. Our fees are generally billed per 
member per month (“PMPM”), with certain additional services based on a fee for service. For PMPM fees, we 
generally determine our contract fees by multiplying the contractually negotiated PMPM rate by the number of 
covered lives for our services during the month. We bill our customers on either a monthly, quarterly or annual 
basis, based on the contract terms, for the entire amount of the fees contractually due for the period covered. We 
recognize revenue as follows: (1) we recognize the PMPM fees as revenue during the period we perform our 
services; and (2) we recognize fee for service based revenue when services are performed. 

Subscription (PEPM) revenues are generated from the agreements entered into with customers for unlimited access 
to and usage of the Company’s platform for a specified period.  This revenue is recognized ratably over the 
subscription period. 

Fee for Service revenues are generated from services provided for certain training, critical incidents and other 
services.  These services include time, materials, and expenses incurred, all of which are in turn billed to the 
customer.  This revenue is recognized as the services are performed or expenses are incurred. 

Deferred Costs 

Costs are generally expensed as incurred. 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and call deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments 
that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable are carried at original invoice amount less anticipated trade discounts less an estimate made for 
doubtful receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts.  Accounts are written off when deemed 
uncollectible.  Recoveries of accounts receivable previously written off are recorded when received.  No interest is 
charged on customer accounts. 

Trade and other receivables, net   
 March 31, December 31, 
 2018 2017 
Accounts receivable trade $       14,005 $       14,044 
Allowance for doubtful accounts (1,448) (1,460) 
Accrued revenue 2,408 713 
 $       14,965 $       13,297 
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Leases 

Rent expense under operating leases is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease. 
The aggregate benefit of lease incentives are recognized as reduction to the expense recognized over the lease term 
on a straight-line basis. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consist of furniture and fixtures, computers, other office equipment, and leasehold 
improvements, and is composed of the following for the periods ended March 31, 2018 and December 31, 2017. 

 Estimated 
Useful Lives 

(Years) 2018 2017 
Asset class    
    
Furniture, fittings and equipment  3 $      430 $      385 
Leasehold improvements 3 237 240 

  $      667 $      625 

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization  (256) (241) 
Net property and equipment  $      411 $      384 
 
Property and equipment are carried at cost.  Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred, 
while renewals and improvements that materially extend the life of an asset are capitalized.  The cost of assets sold, 
retired, or otherwise disposed of and the related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the accounts, and any 
resulting gain or loss is included in operations. 

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets 

The Company reviews its long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the 
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.  For long-lived assets, including amortizing intangible assets, 
an impairment loss is recognized when the undiscounted future cash flows estimated to be generated by the asset are 
not sufficient to recover the unamortized balance of the asset. 

Internally Developed Software Costs 

We capitalize costs associated with software developed or obtained for internal use when both the preliminary 
project stage is completed and our management has authorized further funding for the project, which it deems 
probable of completion. Capitalization of these costs ceases no later than the point at which the project is 
substantially complete and ready for its intended purpose. We did not have any capitalized software costs for the 
quarter ended March 31, 2018 and 2017. 

Impairment of Goodwill 

Goodwill represents the excess purchase price over the estimated fair value of net assets acquired in a business 
combination. Goodwill is tested for impairment at least annually, and more frequently, if events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that goodwill might be impaired. 

Income Taxes 

The Company accounts for income taxes under the asset and liability method. Under this method, deferred tax assets 
and liabilities were recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial 
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statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets 
and liabilities of a change in tax rates are recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. 

Stock-Based Compensation 

ASC topic 718, Compensation - Stock Compensation requires all share-based payments to employees, including 
grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the statement of operations based on their fair values at grant 
date. Stock options awarded vest annually on a pro rata basis over a four-year period. The stock option awards have 
a seven-year contractual term.  During the first quarter of 2018, 12,830 stock options were awarded as a bonus to 
employees that were fully vested upon grant. 

2. Intangible Assets 

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over 4 years for customer relationships and 3 years for 
developed software.  Amortization expense was $1,010 and 997 for the quarter ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, 
respectively. 

Intangible assets at March 31, 2018 consisted of the following: 

 2018 

 
Gross 

Carrying 
Value 

 Accumulated 
Amortization 

 Net 
Carrying 

Value 
      
Customer list $    11,777  $    (6,638)  $    5,139 
Developed software 2,776  (1,592)  1,184 

 $    14,553  $    (8,230)  $    6,323 
 
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of an entity represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the company’s 
interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the entity recognized at the date of acquisition. 

The Company reviews the goodwill amounts on an annual basis and determined that no impairment existed as of 
March 31, 2018. 

Balance at December 31, 2017 $    124,082 
  
Foreign currency translation adjustment 799 

Balance at March 31, 2018 $    124,881 
 
3. Income Taxes 

Our income tax provision (benefit) represents federal, state, and international taxes on our income recognized for 
financial statement purposes, which includes the effect of temporary differences between financial statement income 
and income recognized for tax return purposes. Our income tax provision is negatively affected by the need for a 
valuation allowance against our deferred tax assets. We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax asset 
when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of the deferred tax asset will not be realized. In determining the 
requirement for a valuation allowance, we assess the available positive and negative evidence to estimate if 
sufficient future taxable income will be generated to utilize our deferred tax assets not already identified as requiring 
a valuation allowance. As of March 31, 2018, and March 31, 2017, we continued to record a full valuation 
allowance against our UK deferred tax assets that are not offset by the reversal of deferred tax liabilities. As of 

F-43 



LifeWorks Corporation Limited and Subsidiaries 
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
March 31, 2018 & 2017 
(unaudited, U.S. Dollars in thousands) 

March 31, 2018, we also have a full valuation allowance against our Australian deferred tax assets that are not offset 
by the reversal of deferred tax liabilities.  In the future, if it is determined that we no longer have a requirement to 
record a valuation allowance against all or a portion of our deferred tax assets, the release of the valuation allowance 
would have a positive impact on our income tax provision. 

On December 22, 2017, the Tax Cut and Jobs Act legislation (the “Act”) was signed into law. The Act made broad 
and complex changes to the U.S. tax code including: (a) lower U.S. federal corporate income tax rate from 35% to 
21% effective January 1, 2018, (b) accelerated expensing of qualified capital investments for a specific period, and 
(c) a transition from a worldwide tax system to a territorial tax system. 

ASC 740, Income Taxes, requires a company to record the effects of a tax law change in the period of enactment; 
however, shortly after enactment of the Tax Act, the SEC staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (“SAB”) 118, 
which allows a company to record a provisional amount when it does not have the necessary information available 
to complete its accounting for the change in the tax law. The FASB subsequently issued ASU 2018-05 to codify 
SAB 118 by amending ASC 740. ASU 2018-05 continues to allow a company to record a provisional amount when 
it does not have the necessary information available, prepared, or analyzed in reasonable detail to complete its 
accounting for the change in the tax law. The measurement period ends when the company has obtained, prepared, 
and analyzed the information necessary to finalize its accounting, but cannot extend beyond one year. 

We recorded income tax expense of $0.8 and $1.4 during the three months ended March 31, 2018 and March 31, 
2017, respectively.  We have not updated any of its provisional amounts related to the Act as we do not have any 
new information that would result in a material difference to the amount provided for the twelve months ended 
December 31, 2017. 

The income tax expense above includes $0.2 and $0.2 related to unrecognized tax benefits.  The total amount of 
unrecognized tax benefits as of March 31, 2018 and March 31, 2017, were $6.8 and $4.0, respectively. Of the total 
amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of March 31, 2018, $6.8 represents the amount that, if recognized, would 
favorably impact our effective income tax rate. We do not expect that any unrecognized tax liability will reverse 
within twelve months. 

The Company files U.S. and state income tax returns with varying statutes of limitations (generally three or four 
years). The Company files UK and Canadian tax returns with one-year and four-year statutes of limitations, 
respectively.  The 2016 and 2017 tax years remains open for all jurisdictions. 

4. Commitments and Contingencies 

Operating Leases 

The Company leases office space under multiple operating lease agreements. For the quarter ended March 31, 2018 
and 2017, office rent expense was recorded for $594 and $581, respectively. In addition, the Company leases certain 
office equipment under operating lease agreements that are charged to operations as incurred. 

Litigation 

The Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course of business. As of March 
31, 2018, there were no open legal proceedings or claims. 

5. Capital Stock 

 
31 March 

2018 
 No. $ 
Ordinary shares of $0.012 each 18,460,749 221,529 
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The company currently has 23,719,640 Authorized shares, consisting of 8,299,574 Class A Ordinary Shares, 
1,764,175 Exchangeable Shares which may be exchanged for Class A Ordinary shares in certain circumstances, 
10,063,749 Class B Ordinary Shares, 1,796,071 Class C Ordinary Shares and 1,796,071 Class D Ordinary Shares. 
Class C shares are ordinary shares in the Joint Venture Company with rights and liquidation preferences comparable 
to Class B shares.  Class D shares are ordinary shares in the Joint Venture Company with rights and liquidation 
preferences comparable to Class A shares. 

All shares carry equal voting rights. On a dividend or capital distribution, Class A and D shares receive (pro rata to 
their holdings) 75% of the first $250 million and 25% of the next $250 million. Class B and C shares receive (pro 
rata to their holdings) 25% of the first $250 million and 75% of the next $250 million. If total distributions exceed 
$500 million, all is shared pro rata amongst the different classes of shares. 

Ordinary shares outstanding as of March 31, 2018 consist of 8,299,574 Class A shares, 10,063,749 Class B shares 
and 97,426 Class C shares. 

6. Share-Based Compensation 

In connection with the formation of the Joint Venture Company, a share-based compensation scheme under English 
law (the “JV SIP”) was created. The JV SIP has authorized the issuance of 3,551,911 options to purchase Class C or 
Class D shares of the Joint Venture Company. Class C shares are ordinary shares in the Joint Venture Company with 
rights and liquidation preferences comparable to Class B shares.  Class D shares are ordinary shares in the Joint 
Venture Company with rights and liquidation preferences comparable to Class A shares.  Eligible participants in the 
JV SIP include the Joint Venture Company directors and employees. 

Stock options awarded under the JV SIP vest annually on a pro rata basis over a four-year period. The stock option 
awards have a seven-year contractual term.  During 2017, stock options were awarded as a bonus to employees that 
were fully vested upon grant.  Stock options awarded under the JV SIP also include rollover options granted to 
previous WorkAngel employees that have continued to follow the original vesting period and contractual term 
granted to the employees prior to the formation of the Joint Venture Company. These stock options have a vesting 
period that range from one to three years and a 10-year contractual term. 

Share-based compensation expense for the JV SIP was $218 and 284 for the quarter ended March 31, 2018 and 
2017, respectively. 
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Class C Stock Options 

Joint venture option activity in the table below for the period from December 31, 2017 to March 31, 2018, 
represents Class C stock options activity under the JV SIP. 

 

Shares  

Weighted 
Average   
Exercise   

Price   
(per share)  

Weighted 
Average   

Remaining   
Contractual 

Term   
(in years)  

Aggregate 
Intrinsic Value 

(in millions) 

Options outstanding at December 31, 2017 1,104,474   $ 2.44   6.9  $ 3.0  
Granted 31,416   3.90   —  — 
Exercised —   —   —  — 
Forfeited or expired (21,590)   (4.57)   —  — 

Options outstanding at March 31, 2018 1,114,300    2.44   6.7  $ 3.1  
Options exercisable at March 31, 2018 624,820    1.74   6.5  $ 2.2  
             
 
Class D Stock Options 

Joint venture option activity in the table below for the period from December 31, 2017 to March 31, 2018, 
represents Class D stock option activity under the JV SIP. 

 

Shares  

Weighted 
Average   
Exercise   

Price   
(per share)  

Weighted 
Average   

Remaining   
Contractual 

Term   
(in years)  

Aggregate 
Intrinsic Value 

(in millions) 

Options outstanding at December 31, 2017 986,525   $ 8.60   5.8  $ 1.0  
Granted 31,414   7.91   —  — 
Exercised —   —   —  — 
Forfeited or expired (26,200)   (8.83)   —  — 

Options outstanding at March 31, 2018 991,739    8.57   5.5  $ 1.1  
Options exercisable at March 31, 2018 404,014    8.58   5.5   $ 0.4  
              
 
7. Related Party Transactions 

As part of the Joint Venture the Company entered into a Transitional Services Agreement (“TSA”) with Ceridian to 
provide certain operations and services until they were set up and moved to Lifeworks. These services included IT 
support, Finance, Legal and HR functions. In addition, the company subleases office space from Ceridian. As of 
March 31, 2018, the Company has completed the migration of HR and some of the IT and Finance functions. For the 
quarter ended March 31, 2018 and 2017, the Company had $745 and $1,608 for all transition services. As at March 
31, 2018 and December 31, 2017, $1,680 and $1,591 was outstanding, respectively and is included in accounts 
payable. 
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8. Subsequent Events 

As part of a corporate restructuring of the corporate group of Ceridian HCM Holding Inc. (“Ceridian”), on April 30, 
2018, among other things, (i) the exchangeable shares in the capital of LifeWorks Canada Limited (the “LW 
Exchangeable Shares”), which had been held by Ceridian LifeWorks Holdco CA Ltd (“Ceridian LW Holdco”) were 
cancelled, with such exchangeable shares no longer being issued and outstanding and (ii) Ceridian contributed (the 
“Contribution”) its entire equity interest in LifeWorks to Lifeworks UK Holding Company Limited (“UK Holdco”), 
a newly formed subsidiary of Ceridian.  Following the Contribution, Ceridian declared a dividend on April 30, 2018 
to its stockholders of record as of April 24, 2018 (the “Record Date” and such holders as of such date, the “Holders 
of Record”) of the entire issued share capital of UK Holdco. 

Following the dividend, the entire equity interest of LifeWorks previously held by Ceridian is held indirectly by the 
Holders of Record through their ownership of UK Holdco, and none of Ceridian or any of member of the Ceridian 
group holds an equity interest in LifeWorks. 

On June 18, 2018 the company acquired all the shares of Optum Health & Technology Australia Pty Ltd from 
Optum UK Solutions Group Limited for total cash consideration of $2 million.  Optum Health & Technology 
Australia Pty Ltd (since renamed to LifeWorks.Com Pty Limited) offers employee assistance programs to over 850 
companies within Australia and the neighbouring region. We intend to expand into the region, offering our full 
employee well-being and engagement platform. 
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CERTIFICATE OF THE COMPANY 

Dated: July 20, 2018 

This short form prospectus, together with the documents incorporated by reference, constitutes full, true and plain 
disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities offered by this short form prospectus as required by the 
securities legislation of each of the provinces of Canada. 

 

MORNEAU SHEPELL INC. 

(Signed) Stephen Liptrap 
Chief Executive Officer 

(Signed) Scott Milligan 
Chief Financial Officer 

On behalf of the Board of Directors 

(Signed) Luc Bachand 
Director 

(Signed) Dale R. Ponder 
Director 
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CERTIFICATE OF THE UNDERWRITERS 

Dated: July 20, 2018 

To the best of our knowledge, information and belief, this short form prospectus, together with the documents 
incorporated by reference, constitutes full, true and plain disclosure of all material facts relating to the securities 
offered by this short form prospectus as required by the securities legislation of each of the provinces of Canada. 

 

TD SECURITIES INC. NATIONAL BANK FINANCIAL INC. 

(Signed) Alan Polak 
 

(Signed) Joe Kulic 
 

 

CIBC WORLD MARKETS INC. SCOTIA CAPITAL INC. 

(Signed) Shannan M. Levere 
 

(Signed) David Garg 
 

 

BMO NESBITT BURNS INC. 

(Signed) Timothy Tutsch 
 

 

CANACCORD GENUITY CORP. 

 
(Signed) Michael Shuh 

 
 

GMP SECURITIES L.P. 

 
(Signed) Kevin Sullivan  
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